II.

STATE OF HAWAI‘I
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION MEETING/WORKSHOP AGENDA

Kihio Hale, 64-756 Mamalahoa Highway, Kamuela, Hawai‘i, 96743
Monday, May 20, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. to be continued, if necessary, on
Tuesday, May 21, 2019, at 8:30 a.m. (Executive Session) 9:00 a.m. (Regular Meeting)

Note: Commission Meeting Packets will be available at dhhl. hawaii.gov, by Friday, May 17, 2019.

ORDER OF BUSINESS

COowp

Roll Call

Approval of Agenda .
Approval of Minutes for June 2018
Public Testimony on Agendized Items

ITEMS FOR DECISION MAKING

A. CONSENT AGENDA

Homestead Services Division

D-2
D-3
D-4
D-5
D-6
D-7

D-8
D-9

D-10
D-11

Approval of Consent to Mortgage (see exhibit)

Approval of Refinance of Loans (see exhibit)

Approval of Streamline Refinance of Loans (see exhibit)

Approval to Schedule Loan Delinquency Contested Case Hearings (see exhibit)
Approval of Homestead Application / Cancellations (see exhibit)

Commission Designation of Successors to Application Rights — Public Notice 2016 &
2017 (see exhibit) ’

Approval of Designation of Successors to Leasehold Interest and Designation of
Persons to Receive the Net Proceeds (see exhibit)

Approval of Assignment of Leasehold Interest (see exhibit)

Approval of Amendment of Leasehold Interest (see exhibit)

Approval to Issue Non-Exclusive Licenses for Rooftop Photovoltaic Systems for
Certain Lessees (see exhibit)

Cancellation of Leasehold Interest - DAISY K.T. SIMEONA, Residential Lease No.
12522, Lot No. UNDV203, Kapolei, Oahu

Commission Designation of Successor — JAMES D.H. WONG, Residential Lease
No. 11848, Lot No. UNDV305, Kapolei, Oahu

Cancellation of Tenant-In-Common Leasehold Interest — JOY K. PALAKIKO,
Residential Lease No. 4478, Lot No. 86, Waianae, Oahu

Request to Surrender Lease - CARMELA K. GOMEZ, Agricultural Lot Lease No.
6139, Lot No. 158, Kalamaula, Molokai, Hawaii

Approval of Subdivision and Transfer of a Portion of Lease and Amendment to Lease
— OSAJASI TUAKALAU, SESILILI TUAKALAU, CARRILYN K. MAIMA,
JOHN M. TUAKALAU, Residential Lease No. 2397, Lot No. 43A, Keaukaha, Hilo,
Hawaii :

Cancellation of Tenant-In-Common Leasehold Interest - NEWTON K. LESLIE,
Residential Lease No. 2943, Lot No. 206-A, Keaukaha, Hawaii

Cancellation of Lease — KELBY K. PUNG, Agricultural Lease No. 7016, Lot No.
74, Makuu, Hawaii




B. REGULAR AGENDA
Homestead Services Division

D-19 Request to Schedule Contested Case Hearing — DENISE ROSEHILL-MAHI,
Residential Lease No. 01891, Lot No. 63, Waiakea, Hawaii

Land Development Division

E-1  Approval of Lease Award — Earl Kaina, Keaukaha Residence, [.ease Number 12873,
Lot Number 131 A-2, Keaukaha, Hawaii

E-2  Approval of Lease Award — Maude P.W.A. Tanaka, Kauluokaha’i Residence, Lease
Number 12857, Lot Number 117, Ewa Beach, Hawaii

Land Management Division
F-1 ~ Annual Renewal of Right of Entry Permits, East, Central and South Hawaii Island
F-2  Annual Renewal of Right of Entry Permits, North & West Hawaii Island

F-3  Approval to Extend and Amend Right of Entry Permit No. 683 to Kohala Watershed
Partnership for Fence Project, Phase I, Kawaihae, Hawai’i, TMK No. (3)61001003

(por.)

F-4  Authorize Termination of General Lease No. 270, Takahashi LLC, Waiakea, South
Hilo, Island of Hawaii, TMK No. (3) 2-2-060:019

F-5  Authorize Termination of General Lease No. 144, Balberde & Balberde, Waiakea,
South Hilo, Island of Hawaii, TMK No. (3) 2-2-060:049

F-6  Authorize Consent to Assignment of Lease & Consent to Mortgage, General Lease No.
265, The Agency Inc., Waiakea, South Hilo, [sland of Hawaii, TMK No. (3) 2-2-
060:026

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION (discussion to be held during lunch break)

The Commission anticipates convening in executive meeting pursuant to Section 92-
5(a)(4), HRS, to consult with its attorney on questions and issues pertaining to the
Commission’s powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and liabilities on these matters.

1. Cattle Removal License Request For Proposals
2. Update on Honokaia Non-Potable Water System Settlement

IV.  ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION

A. GENERAL AGENDA

Requests to Address the Commission

J-1 Terri Napeahi — Alaska Aerospace Rocket Launching




J-2 Kaui Almeida - Panaewa Hawaiian Home Lands Community Association

J-3 Maxine Kahaulelio — Puukapu Lease

J-4  Robin Danner -Homestead Housing Authority Workforce Rental and Transitional
Housing Initiative

J-5 Jason A. Mattos Sr. — Relocation Request

J-6 Kalaniakea Wilson — Beneficiary Trust Council

J-7 Paula Kekahuna — Makuu Farmers Market

J-8  Jordan Hollister — Kailapa Community Association

J-9  Pat Kahawaiolaa — Keaukaha Community Association

J-10  Carol Lopez — Kaua‘i Lease

J-11  Claren Kealoha-Beaudet — Kipuka o ke Ola Proposal

J-12 Randolph Pomai Freitas - MHC Board of Hawaiian Affairs and Initiatives Proposal

J-13  Skippy Ioane — 99-Year Lease Kings Landing

J-14  Vanessa lopa — Panaewa Lease

J-15  Leila Kealoha — Lease Transfer

. WORKSHOPS

Office of the Chairman

C-1 Hawaiian Home Lands Unexploded Ordnance (UXO) Update, former Waikoloa
Maneuver Area (WMA)

Land Development Division

E-3  For Information Only — West Hawaii Project Updates

Land Management Division

F-7  For Information Only - Authorization for Issuance of Land Licenses to highest ranked

applicants for the Aina Mauna Feral Cattle Removal Project, Humuula and Piihonua
Sections, Island of Hawaii

. REGULAR AGENDA

Office of the Chairman

C-2  For Information Only —Report of Chapter 91, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, Public
Hearings for Administrative Rules Related to Planned Communities, Multi-Family
Housing, and Rentals

Planning Office

G-1  For Information Only - Water Policy Plan Implementation Program Report for FY
2019 and Draft Water Policy Plan Implementation Program for FY 2020

G-2  For Information Only - West Hawai i Water Projects Update

G-3  For Information Only - Pu ‘ukapu Water System Water Rates

G-4  For Information Only - West Hawai‘i Regional Update



STATE OF HAWAI‘I
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION MEETING/WORKSHOP AGENDA

Kuhio Hale, 64-756 Mamalahoa Highway, Kamuela, Hawaii
Tuesday, May 21, 2019, at 8:30 a.m. (Executive Session) 9:00 a.m. (Regular Meeting)

I.  ORDER OF BUSINESS

A. Roll Call
B. Public Testimony on Agendized Items

II.  EXECUTIVE SESSION (discussion to be held from 8:30 a.m. —9:00 a.m.)

The Commission anticipates convening in executive meeting pursuant to Section 92-5(a)(4), HRS, to consult
with its attorney on questions and issues pertaining to the Commission’s powers, duties, privileges,
immunities, and liabilities on these matters.

1. Civil Nuisance Abatement on Hawaiian home lands

III. ITEMS FOR DECISION MAKING
A. REGULAR AGENDA
Land Management Division

F-7  Authorization for Issuance of Land Licenses to highest ranked applicants for the Aina
Mauna Feral Cattle Removal Project, Humuula and Piihonua Sections, Island of
Hawaii

IV. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION
A. REGULAR AGENDA
Homestead Services Division
D-1 HSD Status Reports
A - Homestead Lease and Application Totals and Monthly Activity Reports
B — Delinquency Report

C —~ DHHL Guarantees for USDA-RD Mortgage Loans
D — DHHL Guarantees for FHA Construction Loans

B. WORKSHOPS
Planning Office
G-5  Update on the DHHL Final Environmental Impact Statement (FEIS) for the

Pilehunui Regional Infrastructure Master Plan, Piilehunui, Maui; TMK (2) 3-8-008,
035, 036 (Pilehunui North) and (2) 3-8-008:034 (Piilehunui South)



IV.  ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ADJOURNMENT

A. Next Regular Meeting — June 17 & 18, 2019, Kapolei, O‘ahu (No Community Meeting)
B. Adjournment

Note: Contested Case Hearings begin at 1:00 p.m.

“William J. Aila Jr.Zcting Chairman
Hawaiian Homes Commission

COMMISSION MEMBERS

Randy K. Awo, Maui Zachary Z. Helm, Moloka‘i

Michael P. Kahikina, O‘ahu David B. Ka‘apu, West Hawai‘i
Wren W. Wescoatt, O‘ahu Pauline N. Namu‘o, O‘ahu

Dennis L. Neves, Kaua‘i East Hawai‘i, Vacant
b bl

Next community meeting is scheduled for Sunday, June 16, 2019 at Hana High School Cafeteria.

Special Accommodations (such as Sign Language Interpreter, large print, taped material) can be provided, if
requested, at least five (5) working days before the scheduled meeting on the respective island by calling the
Information & Community Relations Office, on Oahu, (808) 620-9590.




LESSEE
ABBEY, Dannelle
ALVERIO, Joel K. K.
AMINA, Edward
AURIO, Kacie
BROWN, Rosalynn K.
COSTA, Geraldine L.
ENOKA, Jeffrey-Lee
FUJIMOTO, Ruth J. K.A

GAMBILL, Mahealani M. H.

GONSALVES, Angie
GRACE, Abraham
KAHALIOUMI, Keenan K.
KAIAWE, Jeffrey S.
KAIWI, Adam, Jr.
KALIKO, Tricie K. L. D.
KALIKO, William E.
KAMAKEEAINA, Loyna L.
KEALOHA, Rodney K.
KELHKOA, William K.
KIDO, Roland L. N.
LEWIS, Gary D.

LIKE, Raelene

LOPES, Phoebe P.
NAHINA, Solomon K.
NAONE, Moses K.
NEEDHAM, Kimo W.
PACHECO, Curstyn J. L.
PASCUA, Colleen L. W. K.
RAMOS, Maui J.
RAWLINS, Makaala
SAGIAO, Gail P.
SCHOLTZ, Jon T. K.
TANAKA, Maude
TIFFANY, Petricia K.

LESSEE
KEOHULOA, Nolan H.

ITEM D-2 EXHIBIT

APPROVAL OF CONSENT TO MORTGAGE

LEASE NO.
5966
3805
12868
12113
5129
9085
12867
5927
7128
12854
3132
4263
9716
8187
2598
2598
9709
8574
5621
4542
9811
12381
8815
11868
8590
12279
9941
11921
11179
4004A
4579
1998
12857
4718

ITEM D-3 EXHIBIT

APPROVAL OF REFINANCE OF LOANS

LEASE NO.
9326

AREA
Waiehu, Maui
Nanakuli, Oahu
Kaulukahai, Oahu
Kaupea, Oahu
Nanakuli, Oahu
Keaukaha, Hawaii
Kaulukahai, Oahu
Waiehu, Oahu
Kawaihae, Hawaii
Kaulukahai, Oahu
Waimanalo, Oahu
Keaukaha, Hawaii
Maluohai, Oahu
Waimanalo, Oahu
Nanakuli, Oahu
Nanakuli, Oahu
Lualualei, Oahu
Nanakuli, Oahu
Lualualei, Oahu
Nanakuli, Oahu
Maluohai, Oahu
Kaulukahai, Oahu
Waimanalo, Oahu
Kanehili, Oahu
Nanakuli, Oahu
Waiehu 4, Maui
Waiehu 3, Maui
Kaupea, Oahu
Panaewa, Hawaii
Panaewa, Hawaii
Waianae, Oahu
Waimanalo, Oahu
Kaulukahai, Oahu
Nanakuli, Oahu

AREA

Kaniohale, Hawaii



ITEM D-4 EXHIBIT
APPROVAL OF STREAMLINE REFINANCE OF LOANS

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA

LOUIS, Ivan K. 9426 Kaniohale, Hawaii

ITEM D-5 EXHIBIT
APPROVAL TO SCHEDULE LOAN DELINQUENCY CONTESTED CASE HEARINGS

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA
PALIL Wesley K. 9923 Waiehu Kou 111, Maui

ITEM D-6 EXHIBIT

HOMESTEAD APPLICATION TRANSFERS / CANCELLATIONS

APPLICANT
AU, Lesmond E.
DELIMA, Charmaine L.
HOOKE, Deirdree L.I.
HUGO, Jan K.
KAAIAKAMANU, Clint P.
KAMAKANA, Rex E.K.
KAUKA, Elizabeth K.
KAUPU, Starlynn M.K.
KAUPU, Starlynn M.K.
KEKAWA, Nolen K., Jr.
LOBO, Trudy A.
LOBO, Trudy A.
LONO, Joel K.
LONO, Joel K.
NAKATA, Tiare Lynn K.
NAWELI, George K.
OSTERMILLER, Reggie Ann K.
PAI Evelyn U.
PAIO, Moses J.K.K.
POAI Avis K.
PORTER, Salamasina T.
RITTE, Tyler L.
RITTE, Tyler L.
ROSA, Marshall K.
RUSSELL, Joanne K.H.O.
STEVENS, Howard C.
WILLING, Kendall
WILLING, Kendall

AREA
Oahu IW Res to Hawaii IW Res
Oahu IW Res
Hawaii IW Res
Hawaii IW Agr to Oahu IW Agr
Oahu IW Res
Hawaii J[W Res

Maui IW Res to Oahu IW Res
Hawaii IW Agr to Kauai IW Agr
Hawaii IW Res to Kauai JW Res

Oahu IW Agr

Hawaii IW Agr to Oahu IW Agr

Hawaii IW Res to Oahu IW Res

Molokai IW Agr to Hawaii IW Agr

Molokai IW Res to Oahu IW Res

Oahu IW Res

Molokai IW Res

Maui IW Res

Oahu IW Res

Hawaii IW Res

Oahu IW Res to Hawaii IW Res

Oahu IW Res

Molokai IW Agr

Molokai IW Res

Molokai IW Agr

Hawaii IW Agr to Oahu IW Agr

Oahu IW Res to Hawaii W Res

Hawaii IW Agr to Molokai IW Agr

Hawaii IW Res to Molokai IW Res
* [W = Islandwide



ITEM D-7 EXHIBIT
COMMISSION DESIGNATION OF SUCCESSORS - PUBLIC NOTICE 2016, 2017

APPLICANT AREA
AKOI, Samuel A., IV Maui IW Pas
DELIMA, Charmaine L. Waimanalo Area / Oahu IW Res
KEKAWA, Nolen K., Jr. Oahu IW Agr
PUU, Rodney H., Jr. Oahu IW Res
RITTE, Tyler L. Oahu IW Agr
RITTE, Tyler L. Molokai IW Res

* IW = [slandwide

ITEM D-8 EXHIBIT
APPROVAL OF DESIGNATION OF SUCCESSORS TO LEASEHOLD INTEREST AND
DESIGNATION OF PERSONS TO RECEIVE THE NET PROCEEDS

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA
ANDERSON, Rose A. 4885 Kuhio Village, Hawaii
GANDIA, Dellvyne L. 9998 Anahaola, Kauai
KANAHELE, Richard I.K. 5380 Kekaha, Kauai
KAULIA, Albert E. 12529 Lalamilo, Hawaii
KELII, Christmas K. 3801 Nanakuli, Oahu
KUHAULUA, Abraham 3090 Anahola, Kauai

ITEM D-9 EXHIBIT
APPROVAL OF ASSIGNMENT OF LEASEHOLD INTEREST

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA
ADAMS, Jocelynn M. 3429 Nanakuli, Oahu
CHOW, Wesley K. 10218 Anahola, Kauai
DOWSETT, Mary Ann K. 4759 Waimea, Hawaii
ENOKA, James A. 12867 Kauluokahai, Oahu
HAUHIO, June K. 12852 Kauluokahai, Oahu
MOISA, Leonora K. 12855 Kauluokahai, Oahu
SATO, Hyenie E. 12870 Kauluokahai, Oahu
SILVA, Hannah E. 12113 Kaupea, Oahu
UAHINUI, Alexander E., Jr. 12850 Kauluokahai, Oahu
WONG, Wallis K. 4441 Waianae, Oahu
CASTRO, Haaheo F. 4441 Waianae, Oahu
KAMOKU, Mary Jane L.N. 7009 Makuu, Hawaii

ITEM D-10 EXHIBIT
APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT OF LEASEHOLD INTEREST

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA v
KELII, Christmas K. 3801 Nanakuli, Oahu
KILBEY, La Vaina N.A. 6054 Hoolehua, Molokai
KUHAULUA, Abraham 3090 Anahola, Kauai

WAIOLAMA, Henry 3118 Waimanalo, Oahu



ITEM D-11 EXHIBIT

APPROVAL TO ISSUE A NON-EXCLUSIVE LICENSE FOR ROOFTOP PHOTOVOLTAIC

LESSEE

GASPAR, Puahauoliokalani
HANAWAHINE, Kahaleone
KAMALANI, Benjamin
KANIAUPIO, Francis J.

MANDAC, Adeline W.L.
NAKEA-FRANCISCO, Corinna
NAEOLE-RAYMONDO, Vanna M.K.

SYSTEMS FOR CERTAIN LESSEES

LEASE NO.
11806
11574
8112
11388
11883
12318
9990

ITEM F-1 EXHIBIT

AREA

Kanehili, Oahu
Kanehili, Oahu

Waiakea, Hawaii

Kaupea, Oahu
Kanehili, Oahu

Kaniohale, Hawaii

Waianae, Oahu

RIGHT OF ENTRY PERMITS, EAST, CENTRAL, AND SOUTH HAWAII ISLAND

LOCATION Date Started

Kamaoa-Puueo 2/9/1998
Kau 9/7/2000

Kau 4/19/2001

Kamaoa-Puueo 7/15/2004
Honomu 7/7/2005

Humuula 2/26/2007
Honomu 2/1/2010
Waiakea 8/2/2010
Panaewa 2/1/2011
Humuula 3/1/2003
Kamaoa-Puueo 6/1/2004

LOCATION Date Started
Kawaihae 7/1/1989
Kawaihae 2/20/1990
Puukapu 12/29/2012
Waimea 1/1/2000
Kawaihae 2/14/2011
Kawaihae 2/1/2011
Kawaihae 6/1/2011
Waimea 7/1/1977

ACRE NO. USE PERMITEE
280.0 465 Pastoral Gilbert Medeiros, Jr. *
450.0 469 Pastoral Daryl K. Kalua’u *
750.0 471 Pastoral Daleico Ranch
1,500.0 473 Pastoral Dean Kaniho *
301.0 476 Pastoral Charles & Jelena Clay
2.0 477  Agriculture Guy Kaniho *
300.0 478 Pastoral April Awana-Mattos *
2210 481 Landscape Ginger Patch
1.0 482  Community Keaukaha/Panaewa Farmers Assn. *
0.02 597 Recreation Hawaii Forest & Trails, Ltd.
5,000.0 610  Landscape Native Hawaiian General Services *
ITEM F-2 EXHIBIT
RIGHT OF ENTRY PERMITS, NORTH & WEST HAWAII ISLAND
ACRE NO. USE PERMITEE
0.540 461 Commercial Edward J. Laau/Naomi K. Peck *
0.670 462  Commercial Kawaihae Spirits
50.0 464 Pastoral Marian Kapuniai *
105.73 466 Pastoral Malama Solomon *
0.560 483  Commercial Guy Startsman
1,420.0 484 Pastoral Kahua Ranch
7,600.0 485 Pastoral Palekoki Ranch, Inc.
381.0 599 Pastoral ker ch




NOTICE

Hawaiian Homes Commission

Regular Meeting — Hawai i Island
Monday, May 20, 2019 at *10:00 a.m.

Tuesday, May 21, 2019, *9:00 a.m.
Tuesday, May 21, 2019, Executive Session at *8:30 a.m.

Kihio Hale
64-756 Mamalahoa Highway

Kamuela, Hawai'i

Hawaiian Homes Commission Meeting agendas are available approximately one
week in advance on the HHC Meetings page of our website: dhhl.hawaii.gov

*Meeting times are subject to change. Please check the DHHL website for an updated schedule.

Hawailan Home Lands Meeting with the

Waimea Homestead Community

on Monday May 20, 2019
from 6:30 p.m. - 8:30 p.m.
Kihio Hale
64-756 Mamalahoa Highway
Kamuela, Hawai i
AGENDA
6:30 - 7:00 p.m. DHHL Update
7:00 - 7:30 p.m. Homestead Community Update

7:30 - 8:30 p.m. Open House*
8:30 p.m. Adjournment

**During Open House, representatives from the DHHL divisions will be available for
beneficiary questions. Community organizations will also be present.

To request accommodations for a sign language interpreter or accessible parking (must be requested five days prior to the meeting
date), or for more information, please contact the DHHL Information and Community Relations Office on O<ahu at 808-620-9591.




C ITEMS



STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAITITAN HOME LANDS

May 20-21, 2019

TO: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission

FROM: Ninitau K. Simmons, NAHASDA Manager

SUBJECT: Hawarian Home Lands Unexploded Ordnance (UX0O) Update,
former Waikoloa Maneuver Area (WMA)

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: None; for information only.
DISCUSSION:

The former Waikoloa Maneuver Area (WMA) is comprised of
approximately 100,000 acres on Hawairi Island.

The Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (DHHL) currently has the
following Trust Lands in the former WMA:

e Kuhio Village, Puukapu
e Lalamilo Phase 1, Kawaihae
e Lalamilo Phase 2

In Exhibit A, Mr. Loren Zulick of the US Army Corps of Engineers
(USACE)provides a review of status of Trust Lands in the WMA. In
Exhibit B, the Hawaii Department of Health, In the capacity as UXO
regulator, debuts i1ts Areawide Environmental Hazard Management
Plan (AEHMP)for the WMA. The history of WMA is provided in the
AEHMP along with descriptions of US Department of Defense (DoD)
clean-up efforts In recent times.

While the overall scanning/removal of UXO in the former WMA is
expected to cost $720,000,000 and take another 72 vyears to
complete, the residual risk that remains has had an impact on the
DHHL’s ability to develop affordable housing; engage in capital
improvement projects with costs associated with UXO construction
support; and not being able to utilize federal funds from Title
VIl of the Native American Housing Assistance and Self
Determination Act (NAHASDA) and 184-A homeowner Tfinancing.

ITEM C-1



Lessees on affected Trust Lands are paying an additional amount
for UXO construction support when conducting ground disturbing
activities that exceed depth of detection or face the risk of
catastrophic harm in the event UXO is accidentally discovered or
detonated. The DHHL did seek state legislative appropriations in
its budget since 2015 to assist lessees and the department with
the additional costs of UXO construction support but the request
was not funded.

At present, Lalamilo Phase Il is the furthest along in the USACE
cleanup process with a Decision Document 1issued iIn 2016 and
Remedial Action currently underway. Lalamilo Phase I; identified

lots 1n Kawaithae; Puukapu; and Kuhio Village are in active Remedial
Investigations with the USACE responding to DOH comments on draft
reports.

Compliance with the AEHMP will satisfy US Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD) requirements for a DOH-issued
Conditional No Further Action (CNFA)letter and once again allow
the use of NAHASDA and 184-A in Puukapu and Kuhio Village. Federal
Housing Administration (FHA)loans, including FHA 247, were not
impacted by the UXO issue.

2 ITEM C-1



STATUS OF TRUST LANDS
AFFECTED BY UXO
ISLAND OF HAWAII

“The views, opinions and findings contained in this report are
those of the authors(s) and should not be construed as an
official Department of the Army position, policy or decision,

unless so designated by other official documentation.” US Army Corps
of Engineers.




Topics

= FUDS Program / CERCLA Process
= Former Waikoloa Maneuver Area
» Kawaihae, Lalamilo Phase 1
» Puukapu/Kuhio Village
» Lalamilo Phase 2
* Public Education: 3Rs of UXO Safety

BUILDING STRONGg,



Formerly Used Defense Site

» The Department of Defense is committed to
protecting human health and the environment and

improving public safety by cleaning up environmental
contamination at former military properties.

» Formerly Used Defense Sites (FUDS) Program

» Established by Congress in the mid-1980s cleans up
properties formerly used by the military services.

= The Army is the DoD Executive Agent for FUDS,

» The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers is responsible for
carrying out the program.

BUILDING STRONGg,



Comprehensive Environmental

CERCLA Process Response, Compensation &
p— e Liability Act
reliminary Assessmen ite
‘ Inspection (SI) ‘ (Inventory)
\1, Removal Action Process
Remedial Investigation/ | - : ; ; :
o nvestiaation Engineering Evaluation/
‘ Feasibility Study (RI/FS) ‘ ( 9 ) Cost Analysis (EE/CA)
jmmm———— P —— 1
I Proposed Plan (PP) I
jmm e - Removal Actions
1__ Decision Document LD_Dl__: (Non-Time Critical Removal
{ action/ Time Critical
Removal Actions)

‘ Remedial Design /Remedial Action (Cleanup)

(RD/RA)

I Remedy-in-Place/ Response :
L Complete (RIP/RC) I

I Long Term Management (LTM) !

BUILDING STRONGg,



BUILDING STRONGg,



Kawalhae & Lalamilo Phase 1

DHHL Properties in Sector 16 With Active
Remedial Investigations

/(Oha/a M

(o)

BUILDING STRONGg,



Kawalhae & Lalamilo Phase 1

BUILDING STRONGg,



Puukapu / Kuhio Village

BUILDING STRONGg,



Way Forward

Kawaihae & Lalamilo Phase 1 (Sector 16)
Puukapu / Kuhio Village (Sector 15)

» Remedial Investigation fieldwork complete

» Data analysis complete

» Remedial Investigation report written — responding to
Regulator comments (Jun 2019)
summarize nature and extent of Munitions and Explosives of Concern

» Develop Feasibility Study (if necessary) Aug 2019

evaluate all remedial alternatives and identify a Preferred Remedy for each site

» Develop Proposed Plan for remediation (Nov 2019)

presents the Preferred Remedy for each site. This document will be released
for a 30-day public review

» Decision Document (Mar 2020)

BUILDING STRONGg,



Lalamilo Phase 2

BUILDING STRONGg,



Lalamilo Phase 2

= Lalamilo Phase 2 (B,0,Q,J-Cleared)

» Start Remedial Action (UXO clearance) fieldwork for Area
B,0,Q,J-Cleared next month, June 2019

» Prioritized work in Lalamilo Phase 2A, Increment 1
uninvestigated area, and will start fieldwork there

» Looking to conduct Post Removal Verification and close out
remainder of Lalamilo Phase 2, where previous removal
action was conducted

» Looking to write separate Remedial Action Report (RAR) for
Lalamilo Phase 2 to expedite development progress

11 BUILDING STRONGg,



Practice the 3Rs of Unexploded Ordnance Safety:

® RECOGNIZE when you may have come across a munition and
that munitions are dangerous

~ RETREAT by carefully leaving the area - DO NOT touch, move, or
disturb the item

® REPORT what you saw and where you saw it to local law
enforcement — call 911.

12



DAVID Y. IGE

OOOOOOOOOO BRUCE S. ANDERSON, Ph.D.
H DIRECTOR OF HEALTH

STATE OF HAWAII

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
P.0.BOX 3378
HONOLULU, HI 96801-3378

Areawide Environmental Hazard

Management Plan
for the

Waikoloa Maneuver Area
Island of Hawaii

Explosives Safety Guidance
to Help Protect You from Munitions

Prepared by the Hawaii Department of Health
Hazard Evaluation and Emergency Response Office
March 2019



Disclaimer

The Areawide Environmental Hazard Management Plan (AEHMP) is intended

for use as a guidance document. The guidance it contains cannot guarantee your
safety from hazards associated with unexploded military ordnance (UXO).
However, the information can help greatly to reduce the risk of injury should you
encounter an object you suspect of being UXO. The Hawaii Department of Health
(HDOH) has prepared this AEHMP to:

e Inform the public that unexploded military ordnance (UXO) are
present in the former Waikoloa Maneuver Area (WMA) on the Island
of Hawaii.

e Alert the public and property owners to hazards associated with UXO.

e Help identify UXO should you encounter suspicious objects.

e Recommend actions to take if suspected UXO are encountered.

e Recommend actions to take prior to starting construction work on
property where UXO may be present.

Under no circumstances should an untrained person
touch or disturb an object suspected of being UXO.

If you discover a possible UXO, it is very important that you
Immediately observe the “3Rs of Explosive Safety.”

» Recognize the potential danger.
> from the area.

> Report your findings to the police (911).

i



Observe the “3Rs” of
UXO Safety and Reporting:
Recognize... ...Report!

It important to react responsibly in the
presence of Unexploded Ordnance (UXO).

If you encounter an object you suspect may
be UXO:

o STOP! Do not move closer.
(Recognize the hazard)

0 DO NOT touch, move or disturb the UXO.
o Clearly mark the area around the UXO.

o0 Complete the ‘UXO Report Form’ in the
Appendix.

Back away at least 100 feet from the UXO
following the same path as your approach.

( )

Call 911 to report the location of the UXO and
forward the completed UXO Report Form to
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and the
Hawaii Department of Health, Hazard
Evaluation and Emergency Response Office
(HEER Office) at the addresses listed on the
form. (Repaort!)

il




Prologue

The Hawaii Department of Health (HDOH) prepared this guidance document to
reduce the risks associated with Unexploded Ordnance (UXO) and allow for safer

and more cost-effective development in the former Waikoloa Maneuver Area
(WMA).

The initial version of the guidance was presented at a November 30, 2016
conference entitled, "Solving the UXO Conundrum." The conference, held in
Waikoloa, was well attended by property owners, resort owners/managers,
munitions contractors, Federal, State and County officials, and the interested public.
The conference program featured senior government officials along with interactive
panels designed to answer questions and discuss issues.

The initial document was distributed for public comment from May 2016 through
February 2017. The document was then revised based on the comments received.

It is very important to keep in mind the guidance offered in this Areawide
Environmental Hazard Management Plan (AEHMP) is specifically designed to
reduce risks related to UXO in the WMA. The guidance does not address other
sources of contamination.

If historical property use indicates the possible presence of other hazardous
substances, pollutants, or contaminants regulated under the Hawaii
Environmental Response Law (HERL), or if other contaminants are discovered
during a UXO investigation or in the course of redeveloping a property, those
contaminants must be addressed separately as required by Hawaii Revised Statute
(HRS), Chapter 128D.

v



IMPORTANT NOTICE

HDOH recommends following the guidance presented in this
document for any development within the WMA, whether or
not the Department of Defense has completed its clearance

activities.

Interested parties should consider the guidance information in
this document when planning soil-disturbing activities within

the WMA. The

information presented is designed to provide a

fast and structured way to reduce risks of accidental injury

related to UXO.

All developments, whether conducted under this AEHMP or a
HDOH-approved SSEHMP, or not, will be at the landowner’s
own risk and HDOH will not be held liable for any damages or
injuries that may occur in the WMA.

Use of this AEHMP and/or an associated SSEHMP is
voluntary unless otherwise required under an agreement
between the landowner and HDOH.




Table of Contents

Areawide Environmental Hazard Management Plan
Waikoloa Maneuver Area
Island of Hawaii

Contents
DISCIAIMET «.ccceeiiniiiiiiiiiieniisiisinstesttssttssttssatssatsstessssstssstsssesssssssssssssssssssstssstssstssstssssssssssssssssessstessesssssssssssssssssssssns ii
PrOlOZUE o...cuveiennrininionsnrisserossnnissssissssnessssiossssssssssssssssssnsssssssossassssnssssssssssssssssassssnsssssssossassssssssssassssssssssassssasssssassssnsssssass iv
List of Acronyms testessastesestesenstesntesastesentesasteestesRsteeate Rt teeNtesRsteRsteseaseeRstes Rt eesRstesensessasterenseses viii
Executive Summary ceeeesastessatessatessastesstesaseesatessateeastessatessateeaate Rt teaste s Rt e steessRt e Rt eessatesaseesatessateessneesaseesstee ix
Section 1 INErodUCHION c.cueeieeeiiecieesenssiissiensecssecssecsseesacsssesssecssessssessessssesssesssesssasssasssasssassssees 1
Section 2 Summary of HDOH ACHIVILY ..ucicrreiessniscsencssancssanisssencssssesssessssassssssssssssssssssssssssssnsessssssssassssasss 2
Section 3 Background INfOrMAtioN .....c..cciveiciveicscaresssersssancssnsissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssnssssssssssassssnsssse 3
3.1 Site History and Location..........coueeneeseessecnsecssecssaccsaecsnes 3
3.2 Geology and Hydrology .......c.cceeeeeeeseessuecsaecsaecsaeessecsanees 3
3.3 Types of UXO and Their Hazards.......c.cccceeercnericscnricsccnnnces 4
3.4 Limitations of Technology........ccccceeverescarcscnercsersssaresnesee 5
3.5 History of Response Actions in the Waikoloa Maneuver Area.............. .6
Section 4 USACE Cleanup Priorities in the Waikoloa Maneuver Area ........cccocvericssssaricssssanscsssssssssssssssssssssssssons 7
4.1 Right of Entry Considerations........ccceeceessercssarcscssessrersssasssssascsens 7
Section S Present and Future Land Use in the Waikoloa Maneuver Area..........eeceeneecseccssecssecssessncssscssaccses 9
Section 6 Responsibilities of Government Agencies and Landowners 10
Section 7 General Use of AEHMP’s and SSEHMP’s by HDOH...........ccceiinerinmernseicssneinsnncssnesssnescssccsssencnsnes 11
Section 8 Use of AEHMP’s and SSEHMP’s in the Waikoloa Maneuver Area..........eececssecsenssencssscssncsnnns 13
8.1 Introduction.......cceceveeseesecsseesseecnecsnes 13
Section 8.2 Environmental Hazard EvValuation..........eeeoeeiineinnieiinseinsnnissnnnsencssnecssnencsssecssseesssessssessssseeses 14
Section 8.3 Required Action If You Encounter a MUNItiON ......cocveiescaressercssancsssescsssnessssrsssassssssssssassssssssssassses 15
Section 8.4 Requirements for Reporting UXO ......ccccicereiessercssnnissnncssanesssrsssassssssssssssessssssssasssssssssssssssassssssssses 15
Section 8.5 Pre-construction Planning and UXO Construction Support...........cceeeeeenee 15
Section 8.6 Using a Site-Specific Environmental Hazard Management Plan 17
Section 8.7 Qualifications for Conducting UX O ACtIVItIeS ...ccceerrercscaresserossarcsssnncssaressssisssassssssassssssssssssssassses 18
Section 8.8 Subsurface Munitions Clearance Depths ......c.cccoeceeevvercscnrinssercssnnensnicssancssnsrossssessnsisssssssasssssssoses 19
Section 8.9 Soil Management Plan ceeeesaseessatessatessastesatesssstessntessastesatessatesssrtessatesssatessstessasesssaneses 19
Section 9  SUMIMATY ...cueeriieiiiiiiiierinieeissticssiesssenesssnessstssssssesssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 21

vi



Tables:
Table 3-1 Types of Unexploded Ordnances Found

Forms:
Form 1 UXO Report Form
Form 2 Soil Management Plan Reporting Form

Figures:
Figure 1: Waikoloa Maneuver Area Location Map
Figure 2: Land Use in the Waikoloa Maneuver Area

Appendices:
Appendix A  Useful References
Appendix B Sample Outline of an Anomaly Avoidance Plan
Appendix C  History of Response Actions in the Waikoloa Maneuver Area
Appendix D Sample Right of Entry Letter and Agreement
Appendix E  Geology and Hydrology
Appendix F  Site-Specific Environmental Hazard Management Plan Guidance
Appendix G  Assessing Risks from Munitions

Appendix H Responsibilities for Federal, State, County Governments,
and Land Owners

Appendix I  Photos of UXO, Munitions Debris, and Warning Sign

AppendixJ  Tables from DDESB Technical Paper 18: Minimum Qualifications
for Personnel Conducting Activities Related to Munitions and
Explosives of Concerned

vil



AEHMP
CERCLA
DDESB
DoD

EHE
EHMP
EOD
FUDS
HDOH
HE
HEER Office
HERL
HRS

ICs

ROE
SSEHMP
USACE
UXO

List of Acronyms

Areawide Environmental Hazard Management Plan
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act
Department of Defense Explosives Safety Board

U.S. Department of Defense

Environmental Hazard Evaluation

Environmental Hazard Management Plan

Explosives Ordnance Disposal

Formerly Used Defense Site(s)

Hawaii Department of Health

High Explosive

Hazard Evaluation and Emergency Response Office
Hawaii Environmental Response Law

Hawaii Revised Statute(s)

Institutional Controls

Right of Entry

Site-Specific Environmental Hazard Management Plan
United States Army Corps of Engineers

Unexploded Ordnance

viii



Executive Summary

The United States Marines used the Waikoloa Maneuver Area (WMA) from 1943 to 1946 for
“live fire” training. Approximately 10% of the explosive ordnance failed to detonate, leaving a
potential explosive hazard across at least 120,000 acres of land.

Since 1946, the Department of Defense (DoD) conducted several investigations and cleanup
activities in various locations throughout the WMA. Today, the United States Army Corp of
Engineers (USACE) and the U.S. Army Garrison-Hawaii continue to investigate and remove
UXO from the WMA.

Completing this work in the entire WMA will cost approximately $720,000,000. With the
current annual budget of $10,000,000, the cleanup process will take decades to complete. The
USACE prioritizes its cleanup efforts based on areas that pose the greatest risk to local
communities and those sites with the highest potential to contain UXO.

In addition to these fiscal constraints, there are technological limitations in the detection and
removal of UXO. Even after a cleanup is completed, today’s investigation and cleanup process
cannot guarantee that UXO are no longer present. Consequently, despite the government’s best
efforts to remove all the UXO, a continuing level of ‘residual risk’ related to UXO will remain in
the WMA.

What’s more, due to population growth and the high demand for housing and vacation resorts,
significant development is expected in the WMA. Proposed development projects include:
additions to existing dwellings, development of vacant lots, new large-scale subdivisions,
retail/commercial facilities, and other tourism-related projects.

Recognizing the ‘residual risk’ posed by UXO, lenders may be reluctant to fund large and small
development projects within the WMA. The guidance offered in this Areawide Environmental
Hazard Management Plan (AEHMP) will help reduce the ‘residual risk’ of UXO by raising
awareness, educating the public, and explaining how best to go about developing land in the WMA.

X



Section 1 Introduction

The U.S. Navy and Marines used the original 91,000 acre Waikoloa Maneuver Area (WMA)
from 1943 to 1946 as a practice area for troop maneuvers and the live firing of artillery and other
weapons. The U.S. Department of Defense (DoD) later expanded the area to include over
123,000 acres (Figure 1). DoD’s efforts to define the full extent of the WMA continue.

Since an estimated 10% of the military munitions used during live-fire training may have failed to
detonate, potential hazards from unexploded ordnance (UXO) and other munitions remain in the
WMA. Several deaths and injuries caused by accidentally detonating UXO that have occurred in
the WMA over the years since World War II confirm that serious risks from UXO are present.

Since the WMA was closed in 1946, DoD has undertaken five cleanup activities and continues to
investigate and remove munitions to this day. It is very important to understand that despite
extensive efforts to detect and remove munitions, due to technological limitations it is still
possible that munitions have gone undetected. As such, ‘residual risk’ related to munitions
remains present in the WMA...even in areas previously cleared. ‘Residual risk’ refers to the
risk that unexploded munitions remain present even in previously-cleared areas due to
limitations of current detection technology and the challenging topography and geology of the
WMA.

The potential of encountering a munition increases significantly with the degree of development
and excavation occurring within the WMA. To protect workers and the public during
development activities, Section 8 of this AEHMP contains directions for using ‘UXO
Construction Support’ during ground disturbing activities and procedures for properly managing
soils.

Munitions are referred to by many names, including: UXO, duds, discarded military munitions,
munitions debris, shells, rounds, or munitions and explosives of concern. Additionally,
munitions may also be referred to by the type of weapons system in which they were used, such
as artillery, shells, mortars, grenades, rockets, or tank rounds. In this document, ‘UXO’ refers
to all types of munitions that may pose a risk to human health or the environment,
primarily because it is the term most familiar to the community.




Section 2 Summary of HDOH Activity

The Hawaii Department of Health (HDOH) has been involved in remediation activities at the
WMA since the mid-2000’s. The Department’s primary role in the WMA is to oversee work
performed by the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) and the U.S. Army Garrison
and ensure that the work complies with the Hawaii Environmental Response Law (HERL),
Chapter 128D, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS).

State law authorizes HDOH to respond whenever there is a release or a substantial threat of a
release of any hazardous substance, pollutant or contaminant that may present a substantial
danger to public health, welfare, or the environment. DoD provides funding to the HDOH
Hazard Evaluation and Emergency Response (HEER) Office to oversee DoD remediation
activities. The HEER Office also reviews DoD activities to make sure they comply with “all
applicable or relevant and appropriate requirements,” as required by State and Federal laws.

To assist in mitigating risks related to UXO, the HEER Office:

»  Works with DoD Munitions Site Response Program personnel to:
1.) Review and approve investigation planning documents, findings, and final reports;
2.) Participate in Restoration Advisory Board meetings;
3.) Assist with voluntary evacuations; and
4.) Offer general guidance and support to help protect human health and the
environment.

» Participates in USACE public awareness and educational outreach programs.

»  Prepares and updates this Areawide Environmental Hazard Management Plan (AEHMP) to
help property owners and contractors develop land within the WMA as safely as possible.

»  Provides guidance for preparing Site-Specific Environmental Hazard Management Plans
(SSEHMP) that developers of large-scale construction projects within the WMA must
submit to the HEER Office.



Section 3 Background Information

3.1 Site History and Location

In December 1943, the U.S. Navy acquired approximately 91,000 acres in Waikoloa. The land
was acquired through a licensing agreement with Richard Smart of Parker Ranch. At that time,
the area was known as Camp Tarawa and it is now referred to as the WMA. Additional acreage
was acquired between 1943 and 1945, and the WMA expanded to 123,000 acres. Portions were
used as an artillery firing range on which live ammunition and other explosives were employed.
The remaining area was devoted to troop maneuvers and the largest encampment on the Island of
Hawaii.

In September 1946, the original 91,000 acres were transferred back to Parker Ranch. Most of the
remaining acreage was transferred back at later dates. Some land remained in use until 1953.
Approximately 13,500 acres, in the northeastern region of the former WMA, was leased to the
U.S. Army through the 1990’s. This area was identified as the Pu’u Pa’a Local Training Area
until 1998. It is currently identified as the Pu’u Pa’a Munitions Response Area.

Since 1946, much of the land in the former WMA has been subdivided and redeveloped. After
World War II, the town of Waimea expanded greatly, and the Waikoloa Village community was
developed. Parker Ranch currently owns only a portion of the former ranchland. Numerous resorts
have been developed along the coastline in areas that were former artillery targets and maneuver
areas. While large portions of the former WMA remain agricultural or undeveloped, much of the
land has changed ownership. Numerous subdivisions have been developed and portions of the
properties have been subdivided for homestead lots.

Since 1945, at least three deaths, and several injuries, have been attributed to UXO from the
former WMA.. In 1945, a civilian highway worker was killed when a UXO exploded three miles
south of Waimea.

In 1954, two Parker Ranch workers installing a fence were killed, and three others were injured
when a mortar round exploded. This incident prompted additional cleanup efforts by DoD as
described in Section 3.4. In 1983, two Schofield Barracks soldiers were injured by UXO on
Parker Ranch land about four miles outside of Waimea.

The current boundaries of the WMA are shown in Figure 1. For the purposes of this AEHMP,
the WMA boundary includes the WMA Formerly Used Defense Site (FUDS) Munitions
Response Area managed by the USACE as well as the Pu’u Pa’a Munitions Response Area
managed by the U.S. Army Garrison — Hawaii.

3.2 Geology and Hydrology

The land surface in the WMA is sloping and generally varies from smooth to rocky. It is marked
by numerous cinder cones and cut by widely spaced erosion gullies. The WMA is surrounded by
three of the five volcanoes found on the Island of Hawaii. There are no permanent watercourses
in the WMA due to the low level of precipitation. Appendix E contains additional information
on the geology and hydrology of the WMA.



3.3 Types of UXO and Their Hazards

DoD estimates approximately 10 percent of all munitions fail to detonate, resulting in a
substantial number of unexploded ordnances. UXO are considered extremely dangerous
because they are most likely fully armed and ready to explode.

The explosive hazard associated with UXO and the sensitivity of their armed fuzing does not
decrease with time. As a result, even decades later, UXO still have the potential to detonate.
In fact, some types of explosives become more sensitive over time. Moving, disturbing, or
handling UXO may cause them to detonate. Depending on the type of ordnance, the
potential blast radius from an accidental explosion may reach 450 feet from the UXO.

The primary hazard from UXO in the WMA is the risk of injury, death, and/or property damage
caused by their accidental detonation. The hazard includes not only the initial blast and flying
shrapnel, but the shock wave associated with the detonation, which can cause damage to internal
organs, as well as building components. In general, UXO in the WMA are not considered
hazardous unless they are disturbed. Based on soil and groundwater investigations conducted by
USACE between 2009 and 2012, it does not appear that chemical constituents of UXO pose a
risk to human health or the environment in the WMA.

Many different types of UXO are still present in the WMA. These dangerous and potentially
“live” munitions fall into four broad categories: (a) large bombs, (b) artillery projectiles,

(c) rocket warheads, and (d) other munitions. The fourth category is quite large and varied. At
the time of impact, munitions may have broken into sections or partially detonated, leaving only
part of the explosive payload behind. These partially detonated munitions are referred to as
“UXO remnants.” It takes highly trained and experienced individuals to properly identify and
assess UXO. As such, every suspicious metal object encountered in the WMA should be treated
as if it is UXO.

DoD used all shapes, sizes, and types of munitions for weapons testing and troop training. The
appearance of these munitions may change dramatically due to impact, deterioration, rust, dirt,
mud, and vegetation.

In addition to intact munitions, munition components (e.g., fuzes and exposed explosives) may
continue to pose a hazard. Also, the presence of apparently harmless debris, such as metal
fragments, may indicate that UXO are present in the vicinity. Do not pick up or handle
munitions debris. Remember, only well-trained specialists can accurately identify UXO and
determine if they have the potential to detonate.

To protect yourself, please observe this most important safety guideline
related to UXO and munitions debris:

"If You Did Not Drop It...Do Not Pick It Up!"



The following table lists the munitions most likely to be encountered in the WMA. The list is
based on historical records, newspaper accounts, previous investigations and recovered UXO.
Appendix I contains photos of various munitions used at the WMA.

Table 3-1
Types of UXO Found at the Waikoloa Maneuver Area

2.36-inch rockets
50-caliber small arms
Rifle and hand grenades
MK II hand grenades
Practice land mines
Japanese hand grenades
60mm illumination rounds Japanese Mortars

37mm anti-tank cannon Japanese 25mm anti-aircraft/tank
4.2-inch mortar shell round

4.5-inch barrage rockets 47mm Japanese anti-tank
3.5-inch rockets projectile

2.75-inch rocket

155mm High Explosive (HE)
shells

105mm HE shells

81mm HE mortars

75mm HE shells

60mm HE shells

Note: Table 3-1 illustrates representative UXO located within the WMA.

3.4 Limitations of Technology

A variety of geophysical detection technologies (e.g., electromagnetic detectors or magnetometers)
are being used to investigate UXO at the WMA. The technologies fall into two general categories
referred to as analog and digital.

Analog equipment is generally smaller and more maneuverable, allowing the investigator to
probe areas where the terrain is too rugged to use larger and more delicate equipment. However,
analog equipment relies more heavily upon the technician’s ability to analyze data in real time.
When using analog equipment, it is also more difficult to create an accurate record that can be
analyzed later.

Digital equipment is generally larger and more delicate. It is able to create a digitized record
that can be analyzed later for anomalies. The digitized record also allows for better quality
control and documentation. Unfortunately, the use of digital equipment is extremely limited in
parts of the WMA due to the terrain and other logistical limitations. In some areas, the terrain is
so dangerous that it is unsafe to use any type of detection equipment. In these areas, UXO
investigations are limited to a visual assessment of the surface.

In addition to limits posed by the terrain, geology at the WMA affects the depths of detection for
all types of geophysical detection equipment. The high iron content in the soil (see Appendix E)
creates troubling background noise and false-positive signals. The depth of detection is the
depth at which a buried metal item can be detected by the electromagnetic sensors on the

5



equipment. The higher the background noise, the shallower the depth of detection. The depth of
detection also varies with the size and density of the object. In general, smaller UXO items, such
as grenades, can only be detected to depths of about 10 to12 inches, whereas larger 105 and 155
millimeter projectiles can be detected at depths up to 36 inches.

Technology available for detecting and removing munitions has improved significantly
over the years. Nonetheless, investigations for munitions remains a tedious, painstaking,
and costly process that will never be 100% effective. Also, because munitions may be
present for a variety of reasons (e.g. live-fire training, lost or discarded during training or
by veterans who incorrectly and dangerously kept munitions as souvenirs, or disposed of at
sea) munitions may be encountered almost anywhere. As a result, there is always a
‘residual risk’ of encountering UXO.

To minimize hazards associated with the residual risk, ‘UXO Construction Support’ should be
conducted during all development projects and other activities that involve excavation of soil
within the WMA. This is true even in areas that have been previously cleared by USACE.
Construction Support and proper soil management are described further in Section 8 of this
AEHMP.

3.5 History of Response Actions in the Waikoloa Maneuver Area

Training activities in most of the WMA ended in 1946. However, limited training activities
continued in the former Pu’u Pa’a Local Training Area through the 1990°s. This portion of the
WMA is currently referred to as the Pu’u Pa’a Munitions Response Area and its cleanup is being
managed separately by the U.S. Army Garrison - Hawaii. Cleanup in the rest of the WMA is
currently being managed by the USACE under the DoD Environmental Response Program.
Over the years since training activities ended, DoD has undertaken five separate cleanup
programs in the WMA. These programs are described further in Appendix C.

The USACE and U.S. Army Garrison-Hawaii are conducting the current cleanup program with
oversight from HDOH. All work is being done in accordance with the federal Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA). In total, the
current DoD cleanup program has investigated and removed munitions from approximately
29,000 acres of the WMA’s estimated 123,000 acres (approximately 25%).

To increase awareness of dangers associated with UXO and help the public recognize munitions,
USACE and HDOH conduct public outreach events and distribute useful information.



Section 4 USACE Cleanup Priorities in the Waikoloa Maneuver Area

Currently, USACE continues its work to find and remove UXO. USACE conduct its response
actions using a method based on the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation
and Liability Act (CERCLA) process which is overseen by HDOH. Congress allocates funds
annually for the cleanup of formerly used defense sites (FUDS) nationwide. Estimates to
complete work in the entire WMA are in the range of $720 million dollars. With an annual
budget in the range of $10 million dollars per year, this project is expected to be ongoing for
decades. Funding for the Pu’u Pa’a Munitions Response Site is separate from the FUDS
program and is managed by the U.S. Army Garrison — Hawaii.

Each year, USACE creates a priority list for UXO cleanup based on the degree of estimated risk.
Property owners can request that USACE adjust its priorities for a variety of reasons such as:
community needs and benefits, changes in land use, and funding constraints. Appendix G
contains more information about how USACE prioritizes its cleanup activities.

4.1 Right of Entry Considerations

The burden of cleaning up FUDS property rests with DoD. However, since DoD no longer owns
or controls these properties, USACE must first obtain a signed "Right of Entry (ROE)"
agreement from property owners before cleanup activities can begin. A sample ROE agreement
is included in Appendix D. The ROE agreement allows USACE and its contractors to access
and investigate the property.

Occasionally, a property owner is hesitant to sign an ROE based on one or more of the
conditions or requirements it contains that the property owner finds unacceptable. Examples of
troubling provisions include:
e UXO investigations and removal actions may require that work crews have full
access to the property and leave equipment onsite for up to 12 months, and possibly

longer in some cases.

¢ Cleanup work may require that property owners vacate the property for periods of
time with little advanced notification.

e The legalistic language in the ROE can be difficult to understand, disconcerting and
open to misinterpretation.

Questions landowners frequently asked about the ROE agreement include:
e Who is liable for damage to my property or home caused by USACE cleanup?
e Who is liable for damage to neighboring properties?

e What liability does a property owner have for USACE managed activities?



e How does the USACE handle discovery of cultural artifacts on the property? Will
this information be made public? Will the landowner be required to allow cultural
and environmental groups access under the ROE?

e If the property owner declines to sign an ROE, will the federal or state government
pursue legal actions against the property owner?

It is quite reasonable for a property owner to request clarification regarding any concerns the
property owner has prior to signing an ROE. Currently, the federal and state governments do not
initiate legal action against property owners who refuse to grant an ROE. However, if evacuation
of an adjacent property is required to safely remove UXO, the USACE may ask the adjacent
property owner to evacuate their property. This may occur even if the adjacent property owner
has not granted an ROE.

It is important that property owners know they may receive significant benefits by cooperating
with a UXO investigation. USACE does not charge the property owner to conduct the UXO
investigation or for the removal of suspected UXO and munitions debris from the property.
Without an ROE from the property owner, USACE is prohibited from entering the property to
perform this vital task which may significantly reduce the residual risk from UXO at the

property.

If a property owner does not grant an ROE when requested, USACE will designate the parcel as

an “Exception Area —No ROE.” In such a case, the property may be placed at the bottom of the
priority list for any future cleanup, or the site may be closed without any future investigation and
the parcel will remain an Exception Area in the final documentation.



Section 5 Present and Future LLand Use in the Waikoloa Maneuver Area

Present land use across the WMA is quite diverse and consists of residential, commercial,
industrial, institutional, resort, pastoral and agricultural areas. There are also significant areas,
such as the former lava flows, that are not currently in use. Figure 2 shows the general land use
in the WMA.

Property in Hawaii County is in high demand. Future land use will likely consist of expanding
residential and commercial activities. Further resort development may occur along the coastline
while residential and other forms of commercial expansion are expected in Waimea, Waikoloa
Village, and elsewhere.

Varying levels of ‘residual risk’ will remain on individual properties in the WMA, even after
DoD UXO removal activities are completed. As a result, lenders may be reluctant to fund
property loans and developments in the area and may seek reassurance that safety measures will
be in place during construction and use of the property. Following this AEHMP can
significantly reduce risks from UXO associated with construction activities, which may improve
financing options.



Section 6 Responsibilities of Government Agencies and Landowners

Everyone, including federal, state, and local governments, landowners and individuals, shares
responsibility for understanding and mitigating risks associate with UXO. This section describes
the general responsibilities of each group and how they interact with one another.

DoD: At the Federal level, DoD is responsible for investigating and removing UXO, as well as,
addressing related contaminants in the WMA.

Army Corps of Engineers: DoD has delegated USACE responsibility for addressing
UXO issues on Formerly Used Defensed (FUDS) in the WMA.

U.S. Army Garrison — Hawaii: Manages investigation and cleanup of the Pu’u Pa’a
Munitions Response Site. This work is separate from the work being done by USACE on
the FUDS portion of the WMA.

HDOH/HEER Office: In general, HDOH ensures that remediation of hazardous substances,
pollutants, or contaminants are done in accordance with the Hawaii Environmental Response
Law (HERL). The HEER Office also oversees DoD’s UXO remediation activities under a
Cooperative Agreement with DoD.

Counties and Municipalities: At the local level, counties and municipalities act as the “first
responders.” Once notified, police officials contact DoD Explosive Ordnance Disposal (EOD)
specialists and assure that the public keeps a safe distance.

WMA Property Owners: Landowners should inform all users of their property that UXO may
be present and clearly communicate the “3Rs” safety message to them. USACE has pamphlets
and signage available upon request. During any construction activities, property owners should
adhere to this AEHMP and any Site-Specific Environmental Hazard Management Plan
(SSEHMP) approved by HDOH. ‘UXO Construction Support’ should be provided, even on
properties previously cleared by the DoD.

Residents and Visitors: Individuals who encounter munitions should observe the following
“3Rs” of Explosive Safety:

1) RECOGNIZE a potential munition and be aware of its dangers;

2) and do not approach, touch, move or disturb the object. Carefully leave
the area along the same path they walked in on and warn others to do the same; and

3) REPORT the object by calling 911 and advising police of what you saw and where
you saw it.

In addition to calling 911, the individual who discovered the UXO and the first responder should
complete the UXO Report Form (see Form 1 in Appendix). Once completed, they should send
copies to both the HEER Office and USACE at the addresses are listed on the form.

See Appendix H for additional information on government agency and landowners’
responsibilities.

10



Section 7 General Use of AEHMP’s and SSEHMP’s by HDOH

HDOH has successfully used Areawide Environmental Hazard Management Plan’s (AEHMP) to
help ensure the safe development of properties located within larger areas known to be
contaminated by similar chemical contaminants.

An AEHMP describes known “contaminants of potential concern” in a particular area and provides
general guidance for safely handling and managing soil and groundwater for all properties within
the AEHMP boundary. The AEHMP is generally designed to be used for small-scale projects such
as utility excavations, landscaping, and minor renovation activities. HDOH typically prepares the
AEHMP which applies to multiple properties within a given area and usually provides only an
overview of the contaminants that may be present and general guidance for safely managing them.

Some properties within the AEHMP boundary may also have individual plans to manage specific
contaminants identified on those properties. These Site-Specific Environmental Hazard
Management Plans (SSEHMP’s) are generally prepared by an environmental consultant working
for the property owner. SSEHMP’s include specific details regarding known contaminant
concentrations and how they affect the site. SSEHMP’s must be reviewed and approved by HDOH.

While property owners may use an AEHMP for minor activities, HDOH may request that property
owners prepare an SSEHMP when considering major development projects within the AEHMP
boundary. For example, the AEHMP may be used for replacement of a broken sewer line, but an
SSEHMP will likely be required if the owner is planning to construct a new shopping center.

Typically, an AEHMP or SSEHMP contains the following:

1) A Health and Safety Plan;

2) An Environmental Hazard Evaluation (EHE);

3) Precautionary measures to be followed during construction;

4) Soil management plan; and

5) Post-construction institutional controls (ICs); post-construction ICs are included when
residual contamination is left on the property.

Institutional Controls may include:

1) Restrictions on certain activities at a site (e.g., “no digging”);
2) Safety and training requirements for site users; and
3) Engineering controls to reduce exposure (e.g., soil caps, fencing, or signage).

If residual contamination is managed onsite, there will also be institutional controls that must be
followed: 1) in the event that additional contamination is discovered, or 2) when further subsurface
excavations are to occur at the site. At the end of a construction activity, it is often appropriate to
update the SSEHMP and the AEHMP. All updates and revisions must be reviewed and approved
by HDOH.

An important benefit of the AEHMP is that its component parts can be used for other development

activities within the AEHMP area boundary. In this way, the AEHMP may save the time and
expense of preparing separate documents (Health and Safety Plan, EHE, etc.). If an SSEHMP is

11



required for a project, then components of the AEHMP may often be inserted into the SSEHMP
with little modification. Details on when an SSEHMP is required are found in Appendix F.

12



Section 8§ Use of AEHMP’s and SSEHMP’s in the Waikoloa Maneuver Area

8.1 Introduction

The HEER Office has developed this AEHMP to enhance public safety by:

1) Alerting the public to the presence and risks related to UXO in the WMA;
2) Suggesting measures to reduce the risks should you encounter a potential UXO; and
3) Providing safety guidelines for developing land in the WMA.

More specifically, this AEHMP:

e Provides useful information about the WMA (Sections 3 and 5; Appendix E)

¢ Discusses the nature and potential hazards associated with munitions
(Section 3 and Appendix G)

e Provides information about current cleanup activities and regulatory oversight
(Sections 2, 4, and 6; Appendices C, G, and H)

o Identifies safety measures people should take if they encounter potential UXO
(Section 6 and Section 8)

e Discusses the process used to mitigate risks associated with munitions that may be
present (Section 8)

e Identifies precautions parties should take when planning construction work in the
WMA (Section 8 and Appendix F)

HDOH recommends following the guidance presented in this document for any development
within the WMA, regardless of whether DoD has completed its clearance activities. The safety
information presented is designed to reduce the risk of injury should you encounter a potential
UXO. Use of this AEHMP and/or an associated SSEHMP is voluntary unless otherwise
required under an agreement between the landowner and HDOH.

In the WMA, the common contaminant across the area is UXO, with varying degrees of risk at
different sites. The degree of risk depends on the types and quantities of munitions originally used
and the level of cleanup activity conducted to date. Even in areas that have been completely
cleared by the DoD, some ‘residual risk’ remains due to the technological limitations discussed in
Section 4. Based on this information, the AEHMP approach described in Section 7 can easily be
applied to the entire WMA, regardless of the extent of cleanup activities that have occurred in any
specific area.

The basic assumption underlying the Environmental Hazard Evaluation discussed below is that all
property within the WMA presents a potential UXO hazard. To mitigate this potential hazard, the
landowner must communicate the possibility that UXO is present to all users of the land. It is
particularly important to alert workers who may disturb or remove soil from the property (e.g.,
construction workers, landscapers, etc.). HDOH suggests landowners use this document to help
them communicate the risks associated with UXO.

13



In addition, the subsections below describe:

1) Recommended actions to take if UXO is encountered;

2) Proper use of UXO Construction Support and soil management procedures to reduce risk
associated with UXO when developing the property; and

3) The need to prepare an SSEHMP for large-scale development projects.

Section 8.2 Environmental Hazard Evaluation

A critical component of an Environmental Hazard Management Plan (AEHMP or SSEHMP) is
an Environmental Hazard Evaluation (EHE), which describes the specific environmental hazards
the plan is designed to address.

USACE has found that no specific chemical contaminants were used in the WMA. This was the
conclusion of a 2004 Phase III Engineering Evaluation/Cost Analysis Report. In addition,
between 2009 and 2012, USACE conducted multi-increment soil and groundwater sampling. No
contaminants of concern were found that exceeded HDOH Tier 1 Environmental Action Levels
(see Appendix C). USACE presented the sampling results to HDOH in 2013, which included
chemical residues associated standard munition constituents, such as metals and explosives.
Based on these investigations, this EHE also assumes that contamination from chemical warfare
materials is not present in the WMA.

The primary risk associated with UXO in the WMA appears to be the potential injury, death, or
property damage from accidental explosion. It is very difficult to assess the likelihood an
individual will encounter a munition that may explode. It is likewise very difficult, if not
impossible, for a regulatory agency to establish an objective standard by which to judge the
acceptable risk of such a catastrophic, life-threatening event occurring. Furthermore, no matter
what level of cleanup DoD or others perform, some ‘residual risk’ related to UXO will always
remain.

Importantly, it is commonly accepted that UXO present in the WMA are not likely to
explode if left undisturbed. HDOH believes only mishandling UXO or disturbing the ground
pose an explosive hazard. While munitions debris does not generally pose a risk, explosive
residues may be present. Such residues could ignite and cause a burn or similar injury. Munitions
debris may also indicate a greater likelihood that UXO are present in the area.

UXO hazards increase significantly during subsurface construction activities such as installing
footings, driveways, roads, fence posts, street lighting, and swimming pools. Handling
excavated soil containing undetected UXO may also present a hazard. Soil containing UXO that
is moved, can pose a risk to offsite receptors, as well.

In general, larger items of UXO present a hazard over a greater distance than smaller items. A
155 millimeter shell, for example, poses a hazard at a greater distance than a hand grenade. Of
course, the risk of serious injury or death for a person in direct contact with either item of UXO
is likely the same. Unlike chemical contamination that may cause illness or death after years of
exposure, explosive hazards such as UXO can seriously injure or kill in an instant.

14



In those areas where DoD has completed its investigation and clearance, the risks associated with
UXO will have undoubtedly been reduced significantly. Nonetheless, regardless of DoD’s best
efforts to detect and remove UXO, some level of ‘residual risk’ will always remain.

Section 8.3 Required Action If You Encounter a Munition

In the event a landowner, munitions contractor, construction contractor, or any other on-site
visitor encounters a munition, they should immediately call the Waimea Police Department by
dialing 911. Do not approach or attempt to pick up the item. Remember to always observe the
“3Rs” of Explosive Safety. The “3Rs” stand for:

Recognize... ...Report. Anyone who suspects they have encountered a UXO must:
e RECOGNIZE the munition and understand the potential dangers.
. and do not approach, touch, move or disturb the item. Leave the area

along the same path and warn others to do likewise.
o REPORT by calling 911 and advise the police of what you saw and where.

Remember, only trained personnel can accurately assess the dangers posed by suspected
UXO. Under no circumstances should you approach, move, disturb or handle a suspected
munition or munitions debris. Once you contact the police, they will contact the military
authorities to request DoD support.

Section 8.4 Requirements for Reporting UXO

If a munition is discovered during site investigation, ground disturbing or intrusive activities or
at any other time, in addition to calling Waimea Police Department, the UXO Report Form
(Form 1 in the Appendix) should be completed and mailed within seven (7) days to the:

State Agency Federal Agency
Hawaii Department of Health U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Hazard Evaluation and Emergency Pacific Division, Honolulu District
Response Office Building 230
2385 Waimano Home Road #100 Fort Shafter, Hawai'i 96858-5440
Pearl City, Hawaii 96782

Section 8.5 Pre-construction Planning and UXO Construction Support

HDOH strongly recommends using ‘UXO Construction Support’ for all actions taken within the
WMA that involve ground disturbing or intrusive activities. These activities include, but are not
limited to: landscaping, renovation activities, new construction, installing fence posts, grubbing
and grading, etc.

‘UXO Construction Support’ is an industry term that describes procedures for site screening and
steps to avoid suspicious objects referred to as ‘anomalies.” The support is conducted in
consultation with a qualified munitions contractor. The use of UXO Construction Support is
especially important on properties that have not yet been ‘cleared’ by the DoD. However, due to

15



the ‘residual risk’ of UXO, HDOH recommends UXO Construction Support for all ground
disturbing activities.

HDOH recommends that the guidance in this AEHMP be followed during all construction
activities in the WMA.

Following these guidelines for all ground disturbing activities will decrease the risk to workers,
property users, and neighbors of an accidental UXO explosion. The process includes the following:

a) Notify all workers that UXO may be present and that UXO are dangerous.
b) Inform HDOH if you are planning a large-scale construction project.

c¢) HDOH may require that you prepare and submit a Site-Specific Environmental
Hazard Management Plan (SSEHMP) for approval prior to beginning any
excavation or soil boring activities (see Appendix F and Section 8.6 below).

d) Hire a qualified UXO Contractor to prepare an ‘Anomaly Avoidance Plan’ and
conduct UXO Construction Support during all soil disturbing activities.

e) Communicate the Anomaly Avoidance Plan and the Site Health and Safety Plan
to all site workers.

f) Both large and small scale developments should follow the Soil Management Plan
guidelines described in Section 8.9 below to prevent the spread of potentially
UXO-contaminated soil to other areas.

g) Follow the “3Rs” of explosive safety and complete the attached UXO Report
Form (Form 1) if UXO are encountered.

h) Complete the attached Soil Management Plan Reporting Form (Form 2 in the
Appendix) for all excavated soil. This form should be maintained by the property
owner, except when requested by HDOH.

1) Notify HDOH prior to, and at the completion of, any ground disturbing activities.

There are two methods currently used for detecting munitions: 1) a visual surface survey and 2)
geophysical detection equipment to detect buried munitions. Both surveys should be performed
by a UXO Contractor that has been certified by the Department of Defense Explosives Safety
Board (DDESB) to perform such work (Appendix J).

The DDESB-certified UXO Contractor should also prepare an Anomaly Avoidance Plan. The
Plan should be used to convey the potential UXO hazard to site workers as part of their general
Health and Safety Training and during on-site tailgate safety meetings. Appendix B contains a
sample outline for a typical Anomaly Avoidance Plan.

The property owner should provide the UXO Contractor with construction plans that clearly
indicate areas where soil may be disturbed and the depths of all excavations (e.g. locations of

16



structure footings, driveways, swimming pools, subdivisions, utility corridors, grading and
grubbing plans, laydown areas for construction equipment, etc.). For smaller projects, such as
landscaping and fence-post installation, the property owner may just show the areas to the UXO
Contractor and/or clearly mark the areas to be disturbed. The UXO Contractor must then screen
all the surface areas where soil will be disturbed both visually and with a magnetometer.

The UXO Contractor should be on-site during all excavation activities. Where soil excavation or
grading will penetrate greater than 12 inches below the ground surface, the soil should be
removed in 12-inch layers and the UXO Contractor should perform additional scans after each
layer. This process also applies when boring holes for posts or wells, and when collecting soil
samples. The UXO Contractor should re-scan with a magnetometer at every 12 inches of depth
until desired depth or bedrock is reached. If the excavation does not reach bedrock, the UXO
Contractor should perform a final scan at the completion of the excavation to ensure that a
clearance has been achieved to 12 inches below the final excavation. All soil excavated from the
site should be managed in accordance with the Soil Management Plan described in Section 8.9.

If an anomaly is detected, the UXO Contractor should mark the location and instruct the property
owner and workers not to dig in that location. The property owner and construction contractor(s)
should perform construction activities only in areas that have been cleared by the UXO Contractor.
This may require revisions to the construction plans.

If the construction plans cannot be altered to avoid the anomaly and the UXO Contractor
determines the anomaly may be a UXO, the property owner or the contractor should call 911 to
report the suspected UXO and complete the UXO Report Form (Form 1) in the Appendix. The
DoD Explosives Ordnance Disposal (EOD) specialists who respond to the report will assess and
dispose of the anomaly. Under no circumstances, should the privately hired UXO Contractor
attempt to remove or otherwise dispose of any UXO.

Section 8.6 Using a Site-Specific Environmental Hazard Management Plan

When planning a large-scale development in the WMA, HDOH requests that property owners
submit a Site-Specific Environmental Hazard Management Plan (SSEHMP) for prior approval.
Examples of small- and large-scale development projects are described below. If you are unsure
whether your project warrants an SSEHMP, please call the HDOH HEER Office at 808-586-4249
for clarification.

Small-Scale Projects

Small-scale developments are defined as single lot construction projects that include: building a
single-family home or garage, home renovation, installing a swimming pool, animal shelter,
driveway, fence post, mailboxes, lamp posts and minor alterations to structures that requires
subsurface excavations.

Since lots may range up to 100 acres or more, for developments with footprints larger than 3,000
square feet, please contact the HDOH/HEER Office to determine if an SSEHMP is needed.
HDOH may ask to review the construction plans to decide whether following the AEHMP alone
is acceptable, or whether the landowner needs to submit an SSEHMP.

17



Large-Scale Projects

Large-scale projects are defined as subdivisions, schools, and shopping centers, etc., that may
include roadways, utility corridors and major modifications to complex existing structures. All
large-scale construction projects in the WMA should follow an SSEHMP reviewed and approved
by the HDOH.

The SSEHMP provides considerably more detailed site-specific guidance than the AEHMP.
Maps included in the SSEHMP provide more detail regarding the planned construction,
including features such as roads, subsurface utilities, location of structures, depths of excavations
and grading activities. The SSEHMP also includes a detailed soil management plan.

The SSEHMP should include the intended location of all subsurface construction activities.
Typical projects might include: installing building footers with a two-foot deep excavation;
installing subsurface utility lines, grading large areas for parking; and excavating 10-feet to
construct a swimming pool. It should also locate storage ‘lay-down’ areas for vehicles, heavy
equipment, and materials to be used during construction. The SSEHMP should direct the UXO
Contractor to conduct UXO Construction Support and anomaly screening in all these areas.

Appendix F contains additional information on the preparation and use of an SSEHMP.

Section 8.7 Qualifications for Conducting UXO Activities

It is very important that landowners avoid disturbing munitions. Detecting and disposing of
munitions requires special training. As a precaution, landowners should hire a UXO contractor
to provide UXO Construction Support and prepare an Anomaly Avoidance Plan. The UXO
contractor should be certified by the Department of Defense Explosives Safety Board (DDESB).
Appendix J includes Tables from DDESB Technical Paper 18, which describe the minimum
qualifications for a UXO Contractor. The complete paper (TP-18) may also be found at:

https://www.denix.osd.mil/ddes/ddes-technical-papers/

CAUTION

Disposing of UXO requires expertise beyond that needed to detect
anomalies. A privately hired UXO Contractor should NEVER
attempt to dispose of UXO.

If a potential UXO is identified, contact 911 immediately. The
local police department will arrange for a DoD Explosives
Ordnance Disposal Specialist to help.

18



Section 8.8 Subsurface Munitions Clearance Depths

The construction plan should provide for detecting munitions at least 12 inches deeper than the
planned depth of excavation, or to bedrock. Although UXO in the WMA do not typically
penetrate soil deeper than three feet, investigators have found larger shells as deep as five feet.

In general, UXO have been encountered below three feet only in areas where the soil has been
otherwise disturbed (e.g., fissures in the soil or landslide areas, etc.). Except for swimming pools
and utility poles, subsurface activities in the WMA, are not expected to disturb soil below four
feet.

Section 8.9 Soil Management Plan

A critical part of this AEHMP and an SSEHMP is the Soil Management Plan which details how
soil is excavated, reused, or disposed of during construction activities. Excavated soil may
contain UXO that were not detected during the surface and subsurface surveys. Therefore, each
truckload of soil taken off site should be screened again by geophysical detection equipment
and/or soil sieving with a 2-inch mesh sieve. If possible, to avoid unintentionally transporting
UXO off-site, it is better to reuse all excavated soil on-site for landscaping purposes.

If soil removed from the site is contaminated with UXO, the landowner may be in violation
of the Hawaii Solid Waste Pollution Law (HRS 342 H).

At a minimum, the Soil Management Plan should contain the following requirements:

a) Excavate soil slowly by removing layers of 12 inches or less at a time (referred to as “lifts™).
Similarly, soil boring cores should be removed every 12 inches to allow for screening by the
UXO Contractor. This includes geotechnical borings used to assess soil conditions.

b) Use geophysical detection equipment to scan before each 12-inch lift or soil core that is
removed. After the final lift or core is removed, scan at least 12 inches below the final
depth of the excavation or to bedrock, whichever occurs first.

¢) Stockpile and reuse excavated soil on-site to avoid transporting soil to another location that
might contain UXO.

d) When moving soil off-site, re-screen each truckload using geophysical detection equipment
or a 2-inch soil sieve to ensure UXO are not transported off-site. This secondary survey of
the soil stockpile should also be done in 12-inch lifts prior to loading for transport and
disposal.

e) If possible, soil removed from the site should only be used for landfill cover. Permission
from the landfill operator is required prior to removing the soil for off-site disposal.

f) Ifthe soil is to be placed other than in a landfill, the off-site disposal location should be
recorded on the attached Soil Management Plan Reporting Form (Form 2 in the
Appendix) and the landowner should request approval from the HDOH.

g) Whenever possible, soil re-used on-site should be placed under foundations or roadways, or
in other areas that minimize exposure.

19



h) The Soil Management Plan Reporting Form (Form 2 in the Appendix), should be

completed by the landowner or construction contractor and maintained by the landowner.
The forms should be made available to HDOH upon request. If soil is transported to an
off-site location other than a landfill, copies should be sent to USACE and HDOH at the
addresses listed on the form.

If UXO are encountered during soil excavation, follow the instructions in Section 8.3 and

8.4, and complete the UXO Reporting Form (Form 1 in the Appendix). The form should
be completed by a UXO Contractor.

20



Section 9 Summary

1. ‘Residual risk’ from UXO is present throughout the WMA, even in areas that have been
previously cleared by DoD.

2. Risk of death or injury from accidental explosion is the only hazard associated with UXO at
the WMA. Chemical constituents from UXO have not been found to exceed acceptable
regulatory levels. In addition, there is no documentation indicating that chemical warfare
munitions were used in the WMA.

3. This AEHMP provides guidelines to owners and users of properties in the WMA to reduce
the risk of exposure to UXO hazards. If you see a suspect UXO, follow the “3Rs of
Explosives Safety” (Recognize, , and Report!) and call 911 immediately to report the
location.

4. For all ground-disturbing activities in the WMA, landowners should use UXO Construction
Support. The support should be provided only by a UXO Contractor that has been certified
by the Department of Defense Explosives Safety Board (DDESB).

5. This AEHMP does not address sources of chemical contaminants other than UXO that may
be found in the WMA. If a chemical release is detected or suspected, the property owner
should contact the HEER Office to report it in compliance with the Hawaii Environmental
Response Law (HERL) (HRS, Chapter 128D).

6. Use of this AEHMP and/or an associated SSEHMP is voluntary unless otherwise required under
an agreement between the landowner and HDOH.

7. Following this AEHMP can provide a fast and economical way to minimize risks associated
with UXO when developing both small- and large-scale projects in the WMA.

21



APPENDIX



Form 1:
UXO Report Form

Please complete this form and submit copies to the following:

HEER Office USACE, Pacific Division, Honolulu District
2385 Waimano Home Road #100 Building 230
Pearl City, HI 96782 Fort Shafter, HI 96858-5440
ATTN: SDAR - DSMOA ATTN: FUDS - Waikoloa Maneuver Area

Initial / Final Report (circle one)

1. Report Prepared By:

Name: Date:

Email Address: Phone Number:

2. Location of Suspected Item:

Address/ GPS:

City: State: Zip
Code:

Nearest Road/ Cross Street:

Additional Comments:

3. Specific Information: Do Not Approach, Move, or Disturb Item.

View item from a safe distance

Date of Discovery: Approx. Time of Discovery:

Keeping your distance describe the item: (size, shape, color, markings):

FORM 1-1




Form 1: UXO Report Form (page 2)

Description of Surrounding Area (circle only one):

Located on the Surface of the Soil / Partially Buried / Subsurface /
In the Water / Located in another Piece of Equipment

If other, please
specify:

Additional Comments:

4. Immediate Munitions Response Action Taken:

Evacuation of the Area: Yes/ No

Marked Item Location: Yes/ No

Photographed Item: (attached) Yes / No

GPS Location of Item (provided): Yes / No

Notified Waimea Police Department: Yes/ No

Reported Suspect Item to:

Entity Responding:

Time and Date of Response:

Additional Information:

FORM 1-2




Form 1: UXO Report Form (page 3)

5. Regulatory Notification:

Date: Time:

Name: Agency:

Phone Purpose / Comments:

Number:

Date: Time:

Name Agency:

Phone Number: Purpose /
Comments:

Additional Information:

FORM 1-3




Form 2:
Soil Management Plan Reporting Form

To be Completed by Property Owner or Construction Contractor

When performing Subsurface Excavations in the WMA

Please complete this form and submit copies to the following:

HEER Office USACE, Pacific Division, Honolulu District
2385 Waimano Home Road #100 Building 230
Pearl City, HI 96782 Fort Shafter, HI 96858-5440
ATTN: SDAR - DSMOA ATTN: FUDS - Waikoloa Maneuver Area

Owners Name:

Name Munitions Contractor Contractors:

Telephone #:

Name of Building Contractor if Other Than Self

Telephone #
Comments
Telephone #
Signature:
Number and Depth of Each Excavation:
Total Volume of Soil Excavated:
Use of Soil:
Circle One Reused on Site Offsite/Landfill cover Other Explain
Number of UXO Located:
Number of Munitions Debris Located
If Exported Offsite, Means of Screening:
Circle One: Geophysical Detection Equipment Sieving

FORM 2-1




Form 2: Soil Management Plan Reporting Form (page 2)

Implement this Plan by:

1. Making sure on-site workers are aware of the AEHMP and the potential hazards of
subsurface excavation on the property associated with UXO.

2. Making sure a copy of the completed plan is present at the construction site.

3. Accessing additional guidance for completing this form in Section 8 of the AEHMP
for the WMA.

4. Keeping a copy for your records and send a copy to the HEER Office and the
USACE at the addresses listed above.

5. Attach a sketch of the location and depth of excavation.

FORM 2-2




Figure 1:
Waikoloa Maneuver Area Location Map
(including WMA Formerly Used Defense Site and Pu’u Pa’a Munitions Response Area)

Hawaii County, Hawaii

MAPS -1



Figure 2:

Land Use in the Waikoloa Maneuver Area

Source: South Kohala Community Development Plan. FINAL. November 2008
http://www.hcrc.info/community-planning/community-development-plans/

MAPS -2



10.

Appendix A

Useful References

. Department of the Army Pamphlet 385-64, “Ammunition and Explosive Safety Standards.”

Department of Defense Directive 6055.9, “DoD Explosives Safety Board (DDESB) and DoD
Component Explosives Safety Responsibilities.”

. Department of Defense Explosives Safety Board, Technical Paper 18, “Minimum Qualifications

for Personnel Conducting Munitions and Explosives of Concerned-Related Activities,”
September 1, 2015. http://64.78.11.86/uxofiles/enclosures/DDESB TP 18 July2015.pdf

State of Hawaii Department of Health (HDOH), “Guidance for Soil Stockpile Characterization
and Evaluation of Imported and Exported Fill Material,” October 2017.
http://www.hawaiidoh.org/references/HDOH%202017d.pdf

HDOH, “Technical Guidance Manual” published by the HDOH Hazard Evaluation and
Emergency Response (HEER) Office.

South Kohala Community Development Plan. FINAL. November, 2008
http://www.hcrc.info/community-planning/community-development-plans, Adopted: November
20, 2008. Prepared For: The County of Hawai’i, Prepared By: The South Kohala Community with
the Assistance of: The County of Hawaii Planning Department and Townscape, Inc.

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), Engineering Manual 385-1-97, Explosives Health and
Safety Manual

. USACE, “UXO Safety Former Waikoloa Maneuver Area” pamphlet,

https://www.poh.usace.army.mil/Portals/10/docs/fuds/WMA %20UX0%?20Safety4.pdf

USACE “April 2013 Fact Sheet, Formerly Used Defense Site (FUDS), Waikoloa Maneuver Area,
South Kohala, Hawaii,”
https://www.poh.usace.army.mil/Portals/10/docs/factsheets/Fact%20Sheet%20-
Waikoloa%20April%202013.pdf

U.S. Army, “FY2016, Pohakuloa Training Area, Army Defense Environmental Restoration
Installation Action Plan,” December 2016,
https://www.aec.army.mil/application/files/8715/0007/9015/HI-PTA.pdf

APPENDICES - 1



Appendix B

Sample Outline of an Anomaly Avoidance Plan

UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE AVOIDANCE PLAN

1.0 CHAPTER 1 - INTRODUCTION

1.1 Project Authorization

1.2 Purpose and Scope

1.3 Site Description and History
Figure 1-1 Site Location Map

2.0 CHAPTER 2 - TECHNICAL MANAGEMENT PLAN

2.1 General Procedures
Personnel
Areas to Be Inspected
Inspection Procedures
Procedures to be used in the event UXO is located
2.2 Project Execution
2.2.1 Phase I — Mobilization
2.2.2 Phase II - UXO Avoidance for Construction Support
2.2.3 Demobilization
2.2.4 OE Personnel and Qualifications
2.3 Public Affairs

3.0 CHAPTER 3 - EXPLOSIVES MANAGEMENT PLAN
4.0 CHAPTER 4 - EXPLOSIVES SITING PLAN
5.0 CHAPTER 5 - GEOPHYSICAL PROVE-OUT PLAN AND REPORT
6.0 CHAPTER 6 - GEOPHYSICAL INVESTIGATION PLAN
7.0 CHAPTER 7 - LOCATION SURVEYS AND MAPPING PLAN
8.0 CHAPTER 8 - WORK, DATA, AND COST MANAGEMENT PLAN
9.0 CHAPTER 9 - PROPERTY MANAGEMENT PLAN
10.0 CHAPTER 10 - QUALITY CONTROL PLAN
11.0 CHAPTER 11 - ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION PLAN
12.0 CHAPTER 12 - INVESTIGATION-DERIVED WASTE PLAN

13.0 CHAPTER 13 - GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) PLAN

14.0 CHAPTER 14 - REFERENCES

APPENDICES -2



Appendix C

History of Response Actions in the Waikoloa Maneuver Area

Training activities in the Waikoloa Maneuver Area (WMA) ended in 1946. The Navy acquired the
Waikoloa Maneuver Area (WMA) in 1943 through a licensing agreement to use as a military training
camp and artillery range. The area served 50,000 troops from 1943 to 1945. However, limited
training activities continued in the former Pu’u Pa’a Local Training Area portion of the WMA
through the 1990s).

Two surface clean-up activities were conducted in 1946 and 1954. The 1946 clean-up was done after
the departure of the military. The 1954 clean-up followed an accidental detonation of a dud fuse or
shell killing two civilians and seriously injuring three others. Munitions and explosives continue to
be discovered at the Former Waikoloa Maneuver Area. Investigation and clearance continue in areas
planned for development and where risk assessments rate the areas as moderate to high.

To date over 100 different types of munitions have been found at the Former Waikoloa Maneuver
Area to include mortars, projectiles, hand grenades, rockets, land mines and Japanese ordnances.
Since activities at the WMA ended, DoD has undertaken five separate cleanup activities in the WMA.
In total, to date, DoD has investigated and removed munitions from approximately 25% (29,000
acres) of the WMA’s, currently estimated, 123,000-plus acres.

The current estimated cost to complete investigation, clean-up and long-term monitoring is $723
million. In accordance with the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act (CERCLA), Remedial Investigation/ Feasibility Studies have started that will
characterize and assess the nature and extent of the contamination at the WMA.

DoD conducted the first visual surface clearance prior to the Sth Marine Division’s departure in 1946.
The second surface clearance effort occurred in 1954 after an accidental UXO detonation killed two
civilians and injured three others. The extent of these two clearance efforts is unclear, although
records imply they covered approximately 91,000 acres. During these two clearances, technicians
discovered numerous live munitions.

Following the two investigations in 1946 and 1954, and the establishment of the DoD’s Defense
Environmental Restoration Program in the 1980s, the WMA (except for the Pu’u Pa’a Local Training
Area portion) was designated as a Formerly Used Defense Site (FUDS) to be managed by USACE.
In the 1990s and early 2000s, the USACE performed several preliminary Engineering
Evaluation/Cost Analysis site investigations, followed by a series of Time-Critical and Non-Time-
Critical Removal Actions across the FUDS portion of the former WMA.

In 1997 and 2001 the third and fourth clearance for munitions was conducted in the WMA which
included a Phase I and Phase II Evaluation/Cost Analysis. The clearance conducted resulting in the
removal of numerous munitions and other non-hazardous debris. In 2004, a fifth clearance was
conducted and a Phase III Evaluation/Cost Analysis on the outskirts of the WMA. The investigation
discovered and removed several UXO and a variety of other debris.

Beginning in 2012, this evolved into the current cleanup activities. In 2012, the USACE changed the
removal process to a process like that used to address hazardous substance releases under CERCLA,
also known as the ‘Superfund.’

APPENDICES -3



This process, overseen by the HDOH, involves conducting an initial Remedial Investigation/
Feasibility Study on areas identified as potentially contaminated in the preliminary assessment.
Alternatives are then presented to the various stakeholders (e.g., property owners, HDOH, and the
public) and a Decision Document is prepared that may include additional Removal or Remedial
Action.

Investigations in 2009 and 2012 included collecting soil and groundwater samples in representative
areas of the WMA. Samples were analyzed for munitions constituents including metals and
explosives and compared to HDOH Tier 1 Environmental Action Levels. No contaminants of
potential concern were detected at concentrations exceeding the Environmental Action Levels. Based
on these studies, USACE concluded that munitions constituents are not a concern at the WMA.

Because the cleanup process is expected to continue well into the future, USACE currently devotes a
significant amount of time into conducting a community awareness outreach program. They visit
elementary schools and community events across Hawaii county, particularly around Waikoloa and
Waimea, to share the “3Rs of Explosives Safety” message. HDOH works together with USACE at
these events because we recognize the importance of spreading this message out to the community in
order to reduce the risk of exposure to UXO in the WMA.

The Pu’u Pa’a Munitions Response Area is managed separately by the U.S. Army Garrison — Hawaii.
This is because the Pu’u Pa’a Local Training Area continued to be used by the Army and the Army
National Guard through the 1990s before the property was returned to private ownership, which made
the property ineligible for the FUDS program (FUDS properties must have been returned before
October 1987). The U.S. Army Garrison — Hawaii also follows a CERCLA-like process at the Pu’u
Pa’a Munitions Response Area portion of the former WMA and is currently preparing its Final
Remedial Investigation/ Feasibility Study document for that site.

APPENDICES -4



Appendix D

Sample Right of Entry Letter and Agreement

Dear Landowner:

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps), under the Defense Environmental Restoration
Program (DERP), has been assigned responsibility by the Department of Defense (DoD) to
identify, investigate, and respond to environmental hazards that are a direct result of DoD
activities at former military properties. Established by Congress in the mid-1980s, the Formerly
Used Defense Sites (FUDS) Program cleans up properties formerly owned, leased, possessed, or
used by the military services (Army, Navy, Air Force, or other Defense agencies). The Army is
the DoD Executive Agent for FUDS and the Corps is responsible for carrying out the program.

The former Waikoloa Maneuver Area, South Kohala, Island of Hawaii, Hawaii, has been
determined to be an eligible DERP FUDS site. We are required to inform you that your property
may potentially have munitions and explosives of concerns and munitions debris that may be a
hazard to the landowner, the public, and the environment. For your information, enclosed is a
pamphlet on Questions and Answers on Property Surveys for Munitions and Explosives of
Concern.

Also, enclosed are three Rights-of-Entry (ROE) which will allow the Corps and its
contractor onto your property to perform surveys, demolish and/or remove identified MEC
(Munitions and Explosives of Concern) items, and perform any other such work which may be
necessary to safely get rid of said MEC. We are asking for a 12-month ROE. Our contractors
are scheduled to in your area within the next couple of months to do the actual work. We
apologize for the short suspense, but we are requesting your cooperation in signing two copies of
the attached ROE and returning them to us in the enclosed self-addressed stamped envelope by
Once we receive your signed ROE, we will sign it and return to you a
fully executed copy. Approximately 7-14 days prior to the actual work, our contractor will
contact you by phone, email and/or letter explaining that they will be entering your property on
a specific day(s) and provide you a window of time. Hand-held metal detectors will be used to
sweep your property to locate surface and subsurface metallic objects. Each object discovered
will be thoroughly inspected to determine what it is and if special handling is required. Road
closures and traffic diversions may also be required depending upon the exact location and what
types of MEC items are found on your property.

APPENDICES - 5



If you choose not to participate in this project and deny access, please notify us in writing. If
access is denied, our regulations require us to indefinitely suspend our actions with your property. In
addition, we are required to notify appropriate authorities such as the Environmental Protection
Agency and State Environmental Regulatory Agency. This is a serious matter as there may be risks
associated with the use of this property. Thus, we urge you to sign the ROE to allow us to conduct
our work.

If you have any questions on the ROE document, please contact Ms. Zandra Smith at (808)835-
4053 or by email at zandra.a.smith@usace.army.mil. If you have any questions on this Waikoloa
project, please contact Mr. Loren Zulick, Project Manager, at (808)835-4005 or by email at
Loren.A.Zulick@usace.army.mil.

Should you find any suspected MEC item, notify local law enforcement officials immediately.
Please remember the 3Rs of Unexploded Ordnance Safety: Recognize that any suspicious objects
found in the area should not be touched under any circumstances; Retreat, or carefully leave the area

and; Report immediately what is found and its approximate location to the police, call 911.

Thank you in advance for your cooperation and support.

Sincerely,

US Army Corps Chief
Chief, Real Estate Branch

Enclosures

APPENDICES - 6



DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
RIGHT-OF-ENTRY FOR
MUNITIONS AND EXPLOSIVES OF CONCERN (MEC) REMOVAL

Formerly Used Defense Site (FUDS) Waikoloa Maneuver Area; TMK Number(s):

The undersigned, hereinafter called the “Owner”, in consideration for the mutual benefit of the work
described below, hereby grants the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, hereinafter called the
“Government”, a right-of-entry upon the following terms and conditions.

1. The Owner hereby grants to the Government an irrevocable and assignable right to enter in,
on, over, and across the land as depicted in Exhibit A, for a period not to exceed twelve (12) months,
beginning with the date of the signing of this instrument, and terminating with the earlier of the
expiration of the right-of-entry or the completion of the remediation by the representative of the
United States in charge of the FUDS Waikoloa Maneuver Area Project, for use by the United States,
its representatives, agents, and contractors, and assigns, as a work area for environmental
investigation and removal; including the right to store, move, and remove equipment and supplies;
erect and remove temporary structures on the land; investigate and collect samples; excavate and
remove MEC, pollutants, hazardous substances, contaminated soils, containerized waste, and replace
with uncontaminated soil; dispose of MEC (ordnance and explosives) by detonation; and perform any
other such work which may be necessary and incident to the Government’s use for the investigation
and removal of MEC, pollutants, hazardous substances, contaminated soils, and containerized waste
on said lands, subject to existing easements for public roads and highways, public utilities, railroads
and pipelines; reserving, however, to the landowner(s), their heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns, all such right, title, interest, and privilege as may be used and enjoyed without
interfering with or abridging the rights and right-of-entry hereby acquired.

2. The Owner also grants the right to enter and exit over and across any other lands of the
Owner as necessary to use the described lands for the purpose listed above.

3. All tools, equipment, and other property taken upon or placed upon the land by the
Government will remain the property of the Government and shall be removed by the Government at
any time within a reasonable period after the expiration of this right-of-entry.

4. Upon expiration or termination of this right-of-entry, the Government will ensure
restoration of the ground contour, replace any pavement or other cover which was removed or
damaged for this work, establish a groundcover of grass on areas not otherwise covered, and
reconnect any operating utility lines that were required to be disconnected or otherwise disrupted.

APPENDICES -7



DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
RIGHT-OF-ENTRY FOR
MUNITIONS AND EXPLOSIVES OF CONCERN (MEC) REMOVAL

Formerly Used Defense Site (FUDS) Waikoloa Maneuver Area;: TMK Nos:

5. The land affected by this right-of-entry is located in the County of Hawaii, State of Hawaii
and as depicted in Exhibit A.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL this of ,2012.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

By

Real Estate Contracting Officer
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers,
Honolulu District

Owner’s Signature

Owner name (print)

Mailing Address

City, State, Zip Code

Phone number / Cell phone number

Email address

APPENDICES - 8



Appendix E

Geology and Hydrology

The current boundaries of the Waikoloa Maneuver Area (WMA) start in the south and extend from
Anachoomalu Bay along the Pacific shoreline to Kawaihai in the west and upland to the upper
reaches of Waimea in the north. The northern boundary extends eastward to Waikii in the east, then
back through the Waikoloa Village area to Anachoomalu Bay.

The former maneuver area is characterized by a generally smooth to rocky, sloping land surface of
consistent grade, marked by numerous cinder cones along the volcanic rift zones that are now
covered with grassland vegetation and cut by widely spaced erosional gullies. The WMA is
surrounded by three of the five volcanoes that comprise the Island of Hawaii. On the north are the
Kohala Mountains, the oldest volcanic feature on the island; on the east is Mauna Kea; and on the
southwest are the Hualalai Cone and Crater. Coastal land bounds the former maneuver area from the
south onto the west.

Most of the former maneuver area lies within the Waimea Plains. The plains were formed by Mauna
Kea lava flows that ponded against the older Kohala Mountains and are now covered with volcanic
ash-type soils. The interior plains at Pohakuloa are covered with more recent lava flows from Mauna
Loa that banked against Mauna Kea. The lava is predominantly basalt flows and scoria of the
Hamakua Volcanics, a sequence of basaltic lavas, erupted between about 65,000 and 200,000 years
ago, which was then followed by an eruption of Laupahoehoe Volcanics (which were cooler and had
thicker flows) between 4,500 and 65,000 years ago. These lavas are intermingled with glacial
deposits from the Pleistocene age (Macdonald, Abbott, and Peterson,1983).

These rocks, like all Hawaiian basalts, are extremely iron rich (Wolfe and Morris, 1996). The
composition of some basalt rocks exceeds 40 percent iron minerals. This high iron content can cause
geophysical "false alarms" in the detection of subsurface ordnance. Not only will the geophysical
equipment detect ferrous ordnance, it will also detect iron rich basalt cobbles, sub-crops, or changes
in the iron composition from one lava flow to the next, depending on its iron content. Basalt, because
of its iron rich composition, will oxidize and weather like that of oxidized ordnance. Consequently,
there can be difficulty in visually discriminating ordnance from oxidized basalt lava flows.

Soil types within the project area are largely shallow, dry, and/or stony, and are subject to acolian
(wind-blown) conditions leaving a thin veneer of silt loam as a top soil. These soil conditions, along
with the semiarid climate, lend itself to large expanses of grassland along with sparse stands of
vegetation, including cactus and eucalyptus trees. According to the Natural Resources Conservation
Service, the soils within the former maneuver area can be classified into one of three soil
associations: the Kawaihae Association, the Puu Pa-Pakini-Waiaha Association, and the Waimea-
Kikoni-Naalehu Association.

The Kawaihae Association consists of moderately deep, gently sloping to moderately steep,
somewhat excessively drained soils that have medium textured subsoil that form in volcanic ash.
These soils are found in the west one-third of the former maneuver area (the coastal plains) and
extend inland from near sea level to approximately 1,500 feet above mean sea level. Kawaihae soils
have a surface layer of dark reddish-brown and dusky-red silt loam. Bedrock is at a depth of
approximately 10 to 40 inches below ground surface (U.S. Department of Agriculture, 1973).

APPENDICES -9



Puu Pa-Pakini-Waiaha Association soils make up the central one-third of the former maneuver area
and consist of shallow to deep, nearly level to steep, well drained to somewhat excessively drained
soils that have a medium-textured subsoil or underlying material. These upland soils occur at
elevations up to 4,000 feet above mean sea level and have a concentration of calcium carbonate that
occurs as a soil layer or as coatings on rock fragments. Also formed of volcanic ash, these soils have
a very dark brown, extremely stony, very fine sandy loam surface layer. Their subsoil is dark brown
and dark yellowish-brown, very stony, very fine sandy loam, and can range from 20 to 55 inches
below ground surface (U.S. Department of Agriculture, 1973).

The easternmost one-third of the former maneuver area is characterized by Waimea-Kikoni-Naalehu
Association soils. These volcanic ash soils are very deep, nearly level to steep, well drained, and have
a medium-textured to moderately fine-textured subsoil. The soils have a dark surface layer that is
high in content of organic matter; they occur at elevations ranging from 750 feet to 6,000 feet above
mean sea level (U.S. Department of Agriculture, 1973). Depending upon the location and amount of
rainfall, the soil types within the former maneuver area are able to support pastureland and farming of
various crops. The remaining areas support habitat for wildlife.

The WMA is in the West Mauna Kea Aquifer sector which includes the Waimea Aquifer system and
the Northwest Mauna Loa Aquifer sector which includes the Anachoomalu Aquifer System.
Groundwater occurs as a freshwater lens, floating on denser saltwater within permeable lava flows
near the coast. The fresh groundwater flows from the inland area west to the Pacific Ocean. Because
the volcanic rocks are highly permeable, freshwater can readily discharge to the ocean and therefore
groundwater levels are relatively low (less than 10 feet above sea level).

The WMA extends inland from near sea level to approximately 6,000 feet above mean sea level.
Bedrock is at a depth approximately 10 to 40 inches below ground in most locations but deeper in the
upper reaches of the maneuver area. The annual rainfall ranges from 20 to 50 inches, with most of
the rainfall occurring October through April. In areas where volcanic flows have not recently
occurred, the terrain is eroded by seasonal rivers and streams. In other areas, the terrain is undissected
and quite barren, revealing a large area of exposed lava (U.S. Department of Agriculture, 1973).

There are no permanent watercourses in the WMA due to the low level of annual precipitation.
Waikoloa Stream and other minor watercourses are seasonal, flowing only during the rainy season
and subject to occasional flash floods. When flooding does occur, it may have the energy to move
soil and rock, potentially exposing UXO that lie close to the surface. In the WMA, fresh groundwater
tends to move from the mountainous areas of the island toward the coast. Given the presence of “cap
rock” and the substantial depth to groundwater, a release of munitions constituents (e.g. explosive fill
material) from munitions do not threaten to contaminate groundwater in the WMA..

APPENDICES - 10



Appendix F

Site-Specific Environmental Hazard Management Plan Guidance

Introduction

The use of Environmental Hazard Management Plans (EHMPs) has grown significantly in recent years
due primarily to the increased complexity and the enormous costs associated with removing all
contamination. At times, it is simply not feasible to remove all risk at a site with a feasible approach or
realistic cost.

Risk assessment and risk management are the two key elements used to deal with the presence of
munitions and help ensure safety. In the Waikoloa Maneuver Area (WMA), the common contaminant
across the area is Unexploded Ordnance (UXO), with varying degrees of risk at different sites
dependent on the types and quantity of munitions originally used at a site, and the level of cleanup
activity conducted to date. Even in areas that have been completely cleared by the DoD, there is some
‘residual risk’ due to technological limitations.

The Areawide Environmental Hazard Management Plan (AEHMP) for the WMA was developed to
educate the public about the ‘residual risk’ related to UXO within the WMA and to help minimize the
risk when developing properties. The degree of guidance needed to address the ‘residual risk’ will
depend upon the nature and size of the planned development project. The AEHMP guidance
includes:

1) Educating workers about the ‘residual risk’ from UXO;
2) Using UXO Construction Support; and
3) Properly managing soil when conducting ‘small-scale’ development projects.

For small-scale projects, the AEHMP guidance alone may be sufficient. However, for ‘large-scale’
development projects, the Hawaii Department of Health (HDOH) recommends preparing an
additional Site-Specific Environmental Hazard Management Plan (SSEHMP), which should be
reviewed and approved by HDOH prior to initiating any ground disturbing activities. Small-scale
developments are generally defined as single lot construction projects with footprints less than 3,000
square feet.

Large-scale developments include, but are not limited to:

1) Residential subdivisions:

2) Residential apartment buildings;

3) Schools;

4) Shopping centers;

5) New roads;

6) Alternative energy projects such as solar and wind farms;
7) Utilities corridors and roadways;

8) Commercial structures; and

9) Major modifications to complex existing structures.

If you are not sure whether your planned development is a large- or small-scale project, please
contact the HEER Office, Site Discovery, Assessment, and Remediation Section at 808-586-4249.

APPENDICES - 11



Please Note the Following Regarding Site-Specific Contaminants:

The AEHMP prepared by the HDOH only addresses ‘residual risk’ associated with UXO at
the Waikoloa Maneuver Area (WMA). Individual properties within the WMA may also
contain other hazardous substances, pollutants or contaminants regulated by the State of
Hawaii Environmental Response Law (HERL; Hawaii Revised Statues [HRS] 128D).

If contaminants regulated under HERL are identified, their presence should be reported to
HDOH Hazard Evaluation and Emergency Response (HEER) Office. In addition, an
assessment should be made to determine whether remediation is required prior to
development. If HDOH determines that the contaminants may be managed in place, the
SSEHMP should address both the UXO ‘residual risk’ and any risks associated with the other
contaminants.

Preparing Your Site-Specific Environmental Hazard Management Plan (SSEHMP)

The purpose of an SSEHMP is to further reduce risks large-scale development projects. HDOH
accomplishes this by first requiring that risks be removed to the extent practicable through various
remediation strategies. An SSEHMP specifies additional actions that parties must take under various
circumstances to properly protect the public, the landowner, construction workers, and the
environment from the ‘residual risks.” The SSEHMP helps to further reduce risk by employing
various ‘control measures’ designed to address the specific type of ‘residual risks’ present.
Collectively, these additional control measures are referred to as 'engineering controls (ECs)' and
‘institutional controls (ICs).’

Use of this AEHMP and/or an associated SSEHMP is voluntary unless otherwise required under an
agreement between the landowner and HDOH. Typically, HDOH approval of an SSEHMP is required
prior to approval of large-scale development projects. While HDOH approval may not be required in
some cases, preparation of an SSEHMP may still be advisable. Please contact the HEER Office to
clarify the requirements.

A key component of the AEHMP and any SSEHMP to address ‘residual risk’ from UXO is utilizing
UXO Construction Support. This requires the landowner to contract a Department of Defense
Explosives Safety Board (DDESB) certified UXO Contractor to conduct the following activities:

e Prepare an Anomaly Avoidance Plan.

e Provide on-site training to workers prior to excavation activities.

e Screen all areas where soil disturbing activities will take place to 12-inches beyond the
depth of excavation, or to bedrock.

e Be on-site during excavation activities to monitor for UXO hazards.
e Screen soil prior to off-site disposal in accordance with the Soil Management Plan.

The SSEHMP provides guidelines for worker safety and proper soil management like those presented
in the AEHMP. The SSEHMP also includes more site-specific information such as:

e A description of the development and potential users of the site.
APPENDICES - 12




e A conceptual site model that conveys the ‘residual risk’ of UXO to all receptors (e.g.,
workers, visitors, residents, etc.) during the development.

e Detailed plans for mitigating ‘residual risk’ before and after construction. This could
include: Health and Safety Plan, Anomaly Avoidance Plan, UXO Construction Support,
hazard communication plan for site workers, and warning signage, etc.

e A detailed Soil Management Plan, including: guidelines for the stockpiling of soil on site,
screening requirements for soil that will be taken off-site, and detailed instructions for the
final disposition of excavated soil.

e If other chemicals of potential concern regulated by the HERL have been identified at the
site, they should be addressed in the SSEHMP.
e Detailed maps of various features of the construction, including:
- Location of roads, subsurface utilities, structures, etc.
- Depths and locations of planned excavations
- Depths and locations of planned soil borings
- Locations of planned grading and grubbing activities
- Locations of planned laydown areas
- Location of soil stockpiles
Section 18.5.16 of the HDOH Technical Guidance Manual (TGM) provides a suggested format
for the SSEHMP. The Technical Guidance Manual is available on-line at:

http://www.hawaiidoh.org. As described in Section 19.6 of the TGM, the SSEHMP, at a
minimum, should include the following:

e A summary of the site background and history of contaminant releases. This should
include a description of the ‘residual risk’ associated with UXO hazards, the UXO
clearance previously conducted at the site, and other Chemicals of Potential Concern
that have been identified at the site.

e Maps that clearly indicate the extent and magnitude of contamination remaining in
soil, groundwater and/or soil gas.

o Identification and discussion of all potential environmental hazards.

e Requirements for long-term monitoring of contaminants in soil, groundwater, and/or
soil gas.

o Discussion of engineering and/or institutional controls needed to eliminate exposure
pathways for identified environmental hazards.

e Guidance on proper handling, reuse and disposal of contaminated soil and
groundwater that is encountered during future site activities.

e Description of notifications to help protect construction workers.

o Use restrictions to protect occupants, residents, guests, and others.
APPENDICES - 13



e Measures for repair or replacement of engineering controls disturbed or breached
during future site activities.

e Additional information required to adequately mitigate and manage remaining
environmental concerns at the site.

Outline for a Site-Specific Environmental Hazard Management Plan

1.0 Introduction and Purpose

2.0 Background
2.1 Summary of Site Background and History of Contaminant Releases
2.2 Chemicals of Potential Concern
2.3  Conceptual Site Model

3.0 Clear Map Descriptions of Extent and Magnitude of Remaining Contamination
(to scale, with north arrow, and including footprints of any on-site buildings
nearby contaminated areas)

4.0 Summary of Potential Environmental Hazards

5.0 Long-Term Monitoring Requirements
6.0 Engineering Controls Requirements
7.0 Institutional Controls Requirements

8.0 Implementation
9.0 Soil and Groundwater Management for Future Site Activities Affecting On-Site
Contamination
9.1 Consultation with HEER Office
9.2  Pre-Excavation Evaluation of Soils and Groundwater
9.3 Soil Excavation and Handling
9.4  Soil Stockpiling/Storage
9.5 Soil Disposal
9.6 Groundwater Handling
9.7 Groundwater Disposal

10.0 Exposure Management

10.1 Awareness/Training for Contamination Managed On-Site
10.2 Construction Worker Notifications and Protections
10.3 Use Restrictions to Protect Site Workers, Guests
10.4 Emergency Response for Chemical Exposure
10.4.1 Eye and Skin Exposure to Chemicals
10.4.2 Internal Exposure to Chemicals
10.4.3 Inhalation Exposure to Chemicals

11.0 References

Along with the SSEHMP, where significant public review is anticipated, a brief Fact Sheet should be
prepared that summarizes the SSEHMP in simple, non-technical terms.

Additional guidance may be found in the HDOH publication A Landowner’s Guide to Environmental
Hazard Management Plans (EHMP) available at:

http://eha-web.doh.hawaii.gov/eha-cma/Leaders/HEER /technical-guidance-and-fact-sheets

APPENDICES - 14



At the completion of the development project, documentation should be submitted to HDOH showing
that the AEHMP and/or SSEHMP requirements have been followed. Following the completion of
the development, the landowner should continue to do the following:

1) Continue to comply with guidance in the AEHMP and SSEHMP;

2) Follow the AEHMP and HDOH-approved SSEHMP for any future development; and

3) Approve future DoD requests for a Right of Entry (ROE) to complete their investigation of
the parcel.

APPENDICES - 15



Appendix G

Assessing Risks from Munitions

Risk assessment and risk management are the two key elements used to help minimize the risk related
to UXO. Risk assessment refers to a process of identifying and evaluating the risks posed by the
presence of munitions. It requires a thorough characterization and understanding of the risk factors at
the site. Risk management, on the other hand, involves developing alternative actions to remove or
reduce the identified risks. To do so, requires a careful evaluation of the alternative(s), a process to
select the most appropriate alternative(s), and plan to successfully implementing the actions selected.

Below is a description of the general approach used by the Department of Defense (DoD) to "assess"
the risks associated with munitions. Section 8 of the Waikoloa Maneuver Area Areawide
Environmental Hazard Management Plan (AEHMP) presents the measures proposed by the State of
Hawaii Department of Health to "manage" and mitigate those risks. The U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers (USACE) conducts additional risk management activities, including educational outreach
and Remedial Actions that are described in Appendix C of the AEHMP.

There are numerous risks associated with munitions. Assessing these risks involves a complex
process. In 2001, the DoD established the Military Munitions Response Program (MMRP) to address
sites known to, or suspected of, containing unexploded ordnance, discarded military munitions, or
munitions constituents. When implementing the MMRP, DoD complies with federal and state
environmental cleanup laws, such as the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation,
and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA; aka Superfund), and State "applicable or relevant and
appropriate requirements" including those contained in the Hawaii Environmental Response Law
(Chapter 128D, Hawaii Revised Standards).

To prioritize funding and cleanup of “Munitions Response Sites” DoD developed the Munitions
Response Site Prioritization Protocol. This protocol consists of three separate modules that specify
the process for evaluating the potential risks associated with: explosives; chemical warfare material;
and other environmental contaminants. Applying the Munitions Response Site Prioritization Protocol
helps DoD establish the “relative priority’ for each Munitions Response Site. DoD uses the relative
priority to help sequence its response actions. In addition to assessing the technical risk factors, DoD
also evaluates other criteria such as economic impact, local redevelopment plans, and stakeholder
concerns.

At the WMA, the 123,000-acre Formerly Used Defense Site (FUDS) portion has been divided in 23
separate Munitions Response Sites areas by USACE. These sites have been designated as “Area A”
through “Area T” and “Sectors 15, 16, and 17”. In addition to these 23 Munitions Response “Areas”
and “Sectors,” there are a few subdivisions that have been created, including “BOQJ-Cleared” and
“BOQJ-Remnants” around Waimea town, and “Sector 17-A,B,C,E,F” and “Sector 17-D” along the
coast between Kawaihae Harbor and Waikoloa Beach Resort. These Munitions Response Sites have
been individually prioritized by USACE based on the factors below.

The Pu’u Pa’a Munitions Response Site portion of the WMA is currently being assessed by the U.S.
Army Garrison — Hawaii who has the responsibility of managing this area. A draft Remedial
Investigation /Feasibility Study for the entire 13,500-acre site is currently under review. The U.S.
Army Garrison — Hawaii has not yet subdivided the Pu’u Pa’a Munitions Response Site.

APPENDICES - 16



USACE and U.S. Army Garrison — Hawaii assess potential risks posed at Munitions Response Sites
by completing the following three hazard evaluation modules:

1.

Explosive Hazard Evaluation (EHE) Module:

Evaluates the relative risk and priority of sites where hazards from munitions

and explosives of concern (MEC) are known or suspected to be present. A sample of
the Explosive Hazard Evaluation Module from the Pu’u Pa’a munitions response site
appears at the end of this appendix.

Chemical Warfare Material Hazard Evaluation (CHE) Module:
Evaluates the relative risk and priority of sites where chemical warfare
materiel (CWM) hazards are known or suspected to be present.

(Note: there is no documented use of CWM in the State of Hawaii).

Health Hazard Evaluation (HHE) Module:

Evaluates the relative risk to human health and the environment where Munitions
Constituents and other contaminants are known or suspected to be present.

(Note: this module assesses health hazards associated with munitions constituents, which,
as discussed in Appendix C of the AEHMP, have not been identified in the WMA at
concentrations above regulatory levels).

DoD determines the relative priority of a munitions response site using the results of these three
hazard evaluation modules. As a matter of DoD policy, munitions response sites with higher relative
risks are addressed before those with lower relative risks. However, DoD may also consider factors
such as: environmental justice, economic development, and stakeholder concerns.

DoD believes strongly that involving stakeholders early and often promotes better understanding of
the assessment and cleanup process. Receiving feedback directly from stakeholders is an effective
way to identify and address their concerns about environmental and safety issues. Involving
stakeholders raises awareness of the dangers and educates them as to how they can best protect
themselves and the environment.

In 2008 the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency developed a tool to help site managers and
regulators evaluate explosive safety hazards at munitions response sites. This “Munitions of
Explosive Concern Hazard Assessment Methodology” is generally incorporated into the Remedial
Investigation/Feasibility Study and used by the DoD.

To learn more about the Munitions Response Site Prioritization Protocol and the Munitions of
Explosive Concern Hazard Assessment Methodology, please visit the following websites:

1) http://www.denix.osd.mil/mmrp/mrspp/home/

2) https://www.epa.gov/fedfac/munitions-and-explosives-concern-hazard-assessment-mec-ha-

methodology-technical-work-group

APPENDICES - 17



Example

Munitions Response Site Prioritization Protocol
for the Pu’u Pa’a Munitions Response Site

MUNITIONS RESPONSE SITE PRIORITIZATION PROTOCOL

Installation Name: Pohakuloa Training Area EHE Score: A

No Known or Suspected

. . ’ ’ - -R- H
Site Name: Pu’u Pa’a MRS (PTA-003-R-01) CHE Score: CWM Hazard

No Known or Suspected

Completed By: Contractor HHE Evaluation: MC Hazard
Date Completed: October 14, 2013 Overall Priority: 2
Background

The Munitions Response Site Prioritization Protocol reflects the statement in 10 U.S.C. § 2710(b)(2) that the priority
assigned should be based on the overall conditions at each location, taking into consideration various factors relating to
safety and environmental hazard potential. As required under 10 U.S.C. § 2710(b)(1), the priority assigned to each
munitions response site will be included with the inventory information made publicly available. The requirement for an
inventory of munitions response sites known or suspected of containing unexploded ordnance (UXO), discarded military
munitions (DMM), or munitions constituents (MC) is found at 10 U.S.C. § 2710(a). The assigned priority will be updated
annually to reflect new information that becomes available.

Description
The Munitions Response Site Prioritization Protocol evaluates the following potential explosive safety and environmental
hazards:

o Explosive hazards posed by unexploded ordnance (UXO) and discarded military munitions (DMM)

O Hazards associated with the effects of chemical warfare materiel (CWM)

O The chronic health and environmental hazards posed by munitions constituents (MC) or other chemical constituents.

DoD recognizes the different hazards inherent to each class of materials. To address these differences, the Protocol has
three hazard evaluation modules, each of which is specific to one type of hazard, specifically:

o Explosive hazards are evaluated using the Explosives Hazard Evaluation (EHE) module

o0 CWM-related hazards are evaluated using the Chemical Warfare Materiel Hazard Evaluation (CHE) module

O Health and environmental hazards posed by MC are evaluated using the Health Hazard Evaluation module.

DoD recognized that sufficient data to apply all three of the hazard evaluation modules may not be immediately available
for some munitions response sites. In such cases where data are available for only one or two of the modules, the priority
will be assigned based on the modules for which sufficient data are available. This initial priority may change when
additional data are collected and all three modules are evaluated. Modules for which there are insufficient data will be
assigned a status of “evaluation pending”.

Upon completion of all necessary munitions responses at a munitions response site, the status “prioritization no longer
required” will be assigned. The sequencing of munitions response sites for environmental restoration activities will be
based primarily on the priority assigned using this Protocol, but may also reflect other relevant information, such as
stakeholder concerns, economic issues, and program management considerations.

APPENDICES - 18



Appendix H

Responsibilities for Federal, State,
County Governments, and LLand Owners

All levels of government share the responsibility of alerting the
public to the dangers of UXO and the importance of observing
the “3Rs.”

In turn, the public must do its part by not approaching,
disturbing, moving or handling a suspected munition and
calling 911.

Observing the “3Rs” is the single most important thing people
can do to protect themselves from the potential explosive
hazards associated with UXO.

The federal government through the Department of Defense (DoD) has the lead role to investigate,
remove and dispose of unexploded ordnance (UXO) in the Waikoloa Maneuver Area (WMA). The
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers manages the Formerly Used Defense Site portion of the WMA for
DoD. The U.S. Army Garrison — Hawaii manages work within the Pu’u Pa’a Munitions Response
Area portion of the WMA. The State of Hawaii through the Hawaii Department of Health Hazard
Evaluation and Emergency Response Office ensures that DoD actions are consistent with the Hawaii
Environmental Response Law (HERL), Hawaii Revised Statues (HRS) 128D.

Everyone, including federal, state, and local governments, landowners and individual, shares
responsibility for understanding and taking actions to mitigate risks associated with munitions. This
section describes the general responsibilities of each group and how they interact with one another.

Federal

First, at the Federal level, DoD is responsible for carrying out the Defense Environmental Restoration
Program which promotes environmental restoration at facilities under the jurisdiction of DoD. The
Army is the lead agent charged with meeting applicable environmental restoration requirements at
Formerly Used Defense Sites (FUDS), regardless of which DoD component had jurisdiction of the
property. More specifically, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) is responsible for FUDS
and for coordinating with State government, local agencies and the public. USACE follows a detailed
methodology based on the process described in the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA). All areas of the WMA, except for the Pu’u
Pa’a Munitions Response Area, are designated as FUDS. The U.S. Army Garrison — Hawaii is
responsible for managing the Pu’u Pa’a Munitions Response Area portion of the WMA directly. The
U.S. Army Garrison — Hawaii also uses a CERCLA-like process.

In addition to site cleanup activities, USACE is engaged in public education and outreach activities in
the WMA. Since the cleanup process will likely require ongoing public awareness education,
USACE initiated the “3Rs of UXO Safety” message: Recognize, Retreat, Report. For the past
several years, USACE has been sharing this safety message at elementary and middle schools,
community events, and public meetings throughout the WMA and other parts of Hawaii county.

APPENDICES - 19



State

Since the Hawaii Environmental Response Law (HERL), Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), Chapter
128D) authorizes the Hawaii Department of Health (HDOH) to respond whenever there is a release or
a substantial threat of a release of any hazardous substance, pollutant or contaminant that may present
a substantial danger to public health, welfare, or the environment. However, the HERL does not
explicitly address the explosive hazard associated with UXO and the State has not developed an
independent process for UXO investigations or removal activities. Therefore, HDOH defers to DoD
as the lead agency responsible for UXO remediation.

However, HDOH maintains regulatory authority over DoD clean-up activities in the state through a
DoD-State Memorandum of Agreement (DSMOA). DoD provides funds for this regulatory oversight
through a cooperative agreement with the Hazard Evaluation and Emergency Response (HEER)
Office. The HEER Office ensures that all work performed by DoD complies with the HERL and the
Remedial Action Objectives defined in their work plan documents.

Under DSMOA, DoD uses a CERCLA-like process to conduct munitions response actions which
requires DoD to meet each of Hawaii's "applicable or relevant and appropriate requirements." To do
this, DoD submits its investigative reports, recommendations and decision documents to the Site
Discovery, Assessment, and Remediation Section of the HEER Office for its comments and/or

concurrence.

In addition, the HEER Office supports USACE in its outreach efforts at public schools and community
events throughout the WMA and Hawaii county. The HEER Office also works with other
stakeholders, such as the Department of Hawaiian Homelands, the Hawaii Public Housing Authority,
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, and private landowners to address their
concerns about the impact of UXO on development in the WMA. The HEER Office developed this
AEHMP as part of its work with various stakeholders.

Local

At the local level, counties and municipalities share responsibility primarily as “first responders.” Police
and fire officials are responsible for managing the local situation. Once notified, the police officials
contact DoD Explosive Ordnance Disposal (EOD) specialists who are trained to assess potential dangers
and dispose of munitions reported by the public. In the meantime, first responders assure the public
keeps a safe distance and does not disturb munitions.

Landowners

At the landowner level, any construction activities in the WMA should adhere to this Areawide
Environmental Hazard Management Plan (AEHMP) and, if recommended by HDOH, should also adhere
to an HDOH-approve Site-Specific EHMP (SSEHMP). However, use of this AEHMP and/or an
associated SSEHMP is voluntary unless otherwise required under an agreement between the landowner
and HDOH.

At a minimum, landowners should provide ‘UXO Construction Support’ during any activities that
involve disturbing or excavating soil. Construction Support and soil management guidelines are
described in Section 8 of the AEHMP. Even properties that have been previously cleared by USACE
should be screened. Also, potentially contaminated soil should be screened before being moved from
the site or to another area of the property. Construction Support should include preparation of an
Anomaly Avoidance Plan and communication of the plan to all site workers.

APPENDICES - 20



Additionally, landowners should inform all users of their property, including guests, property
managers, employees, and contractors, of the potential UXO hazard at the property. The landowner
should clearly communicate the “3Rs” safety message to all users. The USACE has pamphlets and
signage available to all property owners within the WMA upon request.

Individual

At the personal level, individuals who encounter munitions are strongly encouraged to observe the
“3Rs” of Explosive Safety. The “3Rs” stand for: Recognize...Retreat... REPORT.

Anyone who suspects they have encountered a UXO must:

e First RECOGNIZE when they may have encountered a munition and that munitions
are dangerous.

e They must next ; do not approach, touch, move or disturb it, but carefully
leave the area along the same path they walked in on, warning others to do the same.

¢ Finally, they must REPORT; call 911 and advise the police of what you saw and
where you saw it.

Additionally, the UXO Report Form (see Form 1 in the Appendix) should be filled out by both the

individual who discovered the UXO and the first responder, with copies sent to both the HEER Office
and the USACE (addresses listed on form).

APPENDICES - 21



Appendix I

Photos of UXO, Munitions Debris, and Warning Signs

UXO Warning Sign at Hapuna Beach

4.5” Barrage Rocket

APPENDICES - 22



4.5-inch Barrage Rocket

60mm Mortars and Mortar Fuze

APPENDICES - 23



155mm Projectile

2.36” Rocket

APPENDICES - 24



Fuze from a 7Smm Projectile

MK II Hand Grenade Fragmentation

APPENDICES - 25



Five-inch naval projectile being prepared for demolition

Small arms ammunition (bullet casings)

APPENDICES - 26



Munitions Debris

APPENDICES - 27



Appendix J

DDESB Technical Paper 18: Minimum Qualifications for Personnel
Conducting Activities Related to Munitions and Explosives of Concern
Tables

The following tables (4.1 to 4.3) describe the minimum qualifiactions for Unexploded Ordnance
(UXO) Conractors to perform work in accordance with this Areawide Environmental Hazard
Management Plan (AEHMP) for the former Waikoloa Maneuver Area (WMA), as described in the
Department of Defense Explosive Safety board (DDESB) Technical Paper 18 (TP-18). The complete
most recent version of DDESB TP-18 may also be downloaded at:

https://www.denix.osd.mil/ddes/ddes-technical-papers/

Technical Paper 18 1 September 2016

DDESB

Minimum Qualifications for Personnel Conducting
Munitions and Explosives of Concern-Related
Activities

Department of Defense Explosives Safety Board
Alexandria, Virginia

Table 4.1. Minimum Qualifications for UXOQPI’ 2,3,4
APPENDICES - 28



Positi Traini Minimum Minimum MEC- Minimum Total
ostion raming MEC-related Supervisory EOD/MEC
Description Required . . .
Experience Experience Experience
Notes 5, 7, 8,9, 10, and 11 2 years 1 year 10 years
SUXOS
Notes 6, 7, 8,9, 10, and 11 10 years 5 years 13 years
Notes 5, 7, 8, and 9 1 year 0.5 year 8 years
UXO0OSO
Notes 6, 7, 8, and 9 8 years 2 years 10 years
UX0QCS Notes 5, 7, 8, 10, and 11 1 year 0.5 year 8 years
Notes 6, 7, 8, 10, and 11 8 years 2 years 10 years
Dive Qualified Note 12 As indicated above for the position description.
Notes:

1.
2.

3.

10.

11.

12

By definition, UXO-TII and UXO-TIII are UXOQP (minimum qualifications for UXO-T are provided on Table 4.2.
Graduate of an Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA)-compliant (29 CFR 1910.120)40-hour
HAZWOPER course.
Limited to performance of MEC-related activities as a UXOT or UXOQP or similar civilian government service (e.g.,
Ordnance and Explosives Safety Specialist (OESS)). Conduct of activities performed as an SP or SW are not considered
MEC-related experience and are not counted toward the experiential requirements for UXOQP.
Limited to experience in UXO supervisory positions (i.e., UXO-TIII, UXOQCS, UXOSO, OESS).
Graduate of a military EOD School of the United States, Canada, Great Britain, Germany, or Australia. (See Paragraph
4.8) for EOD personnel who were terminated for gross negligence in the performance of assigned duties, a flagrant
violation of EOD safety procedure or regulation or who are not discharged under honorable conditions will notbe
considered EOD qualified and will not be considered a military EOD School graduate. To obtain employment, such
personnel must complete the training required for a UXO-TI.
Graduate of a UXO-TI Course (see Chapter 3), the EOD assistant’s course or pass a comprehensive assessment.
Graduate of an OSHA-compliant (29 CFR 1910.120(¢e)(4)) 8-hour Management and Supervisor Training course,
if supervising other personnel.
Possesses an understanding of applicable explosives safety criteria and experience in the various phases of amunitions
response to MEC or the conduct of range clearance activities, as appropriate for the operations to be performed.
Must have completed a 10-hour OSHA Construction Safety and Health Training and earned a Department of Labor
Construction Safety Course Completion Card.
UXOQCS must have either:
a. Successfully completed training as a quality professional (i.e., International Standards Organization
9001 internal auditor, American Society of Quality Certified quality auditor);
b. Possess a quality-professional certification by a recognized organization (e.g., U.S. Army the Corps of Engineers and
Naval Facility Engineering Command Training Course Construction Quality Management for Contractors; or
c. Receive company- and project-specific QC training and work under the supervision ofa
certified quality professional.
UXOQCS must demonstrate an understanding of QC and QA practices associated with MEC-related activities and
managing and processing MPPEH, including documentation of its explosives safety status.
Divers who are independently performing the duties of a UXOT or UXOQP must:
a. Meet this TP’s criteria for the duties performed and the requirements of 29 CFR 1910, Subpart T.
b. Possess the dive-related certifications required for the tasks they are to perform or supervise. (Note: Certifications

(dive or training) must be from an accredited school and meet the requirements contained in ANSI/ACDE Standard-01;be
documented as valid by an ADC Commercial Diver Certification Card for the appropriate training level; and/or have
documentation of successful completion of an appropriate level of training from an ACDE accredited school or have
completed the underwater portion of NAVSCOLEOD (or foreign equivalent) training.)

APPENDICES - 29




Table 4.2. Minimum Qualifications for vxorl 23

Position Trainine Required Minimum MEC-related Minimum Total
Description £ 14 Experience EOD/MEC Experience
Notes 4, 6, and 7 1 years 8 years
UXO-TIII
Notes 5, 6, and 7 8 years 8 years
Notes 4 and 7 0 years 1.5years
UXO-TII
Notes 5 and 7 3 years 3 years
UXO-TI Notes 4 and 7 0 years 0 years
Notes 5 and 7 0 years 0 years
Dive Qualified Note 8 As indicated above for the position description.
Notes:

1.
2.
3.

By definition, UXO-TII and UXO-TIII are also UXOQP.

Graduate of an OSHA-compliant (29 CFR 1910.120) 40-hour HAZWOPER course.

Limited to performance of MEC-related activities as a UXOT or UXOQP or similar civilian

government service (e.g., OESS). Conduct of activities performed as an SP or SW are not

considered MEC-related experience and are not counted toward the experiential requirements for

UXOQP.

Graduate of a military EOD School of the United States, Canada, Great Britain, Germany, or

Australia. (See Paragraph 4.8. for EOD personnel who were terminated for gross negligence inthe

performance of assigned duties, a flagrant violation of EOD safety procedure or regulation or who

are not discharged under honorable conditions will not be considered EOD qualified and will not be

considered a military EOD School graduate. To obtain employment, such personnel must complete

the training required for a UXO-TI.

Graduate of a UXO-TI Course (see Chapter 3), the EOD assistant’s course or pass acomprehensive

assessment.

Graduate of an OSHA-compliant (29 CFR 1910.120(e)(4)) 8-hour Management and Supervisor

Training course.

On-the-job training including, but not limited to familiarity with the process, procedures, and

equipment (e.g., geophysical) used for conducting MEC-related activities.

Divers who are independently performing the duties of a UXOT or UXOQP must:

a. Meet this TP’s criteria for the duties performed and the requirements of 29 CFR 1910, SubpartT.

b. Possess the dive-related certifications required for the tasks they are to perform orsupervise.
(Note: Certifications (dive or training) must be from an accredited school and meet the
requirements contained in ANSI/ACDE-01; be documented as valid by an ADC Commercial
Diver Certification Card for the appropriate training level; and/or have documentation of
successful completion of an appropriate level of training from an ACDE accredited school, or
have completed the underwater portion of NAVSCOLEOD (or foreign equivalent) training.)

APPENDICES - 30




Table 4.3. Minimum Qualifications for SP and swl

Position Training Minimum
Description Required MEC-related Experience®*
SP Note 2 0 years
SwW Note 2 0 years

Notes:

1. Job- and site-specific training including, but not limited to, general and site specific safety (e.g.,
proper use of equipment and PPE, physical, biological, and chemical hazards); explosives safety
training (e.g., recognition of military munitions, 3Rs

2. Personnel who are working at a hazardous waste site require successful completion of an OSHA-
compliant (29 CFR 1910.120) HAZWOPER course.

3. Experience as an SP or SW is not required for UXO-TI certification.

4. Activities performed as an SP or SW are not counted toward the experiential requirements fora

UXOT or UXOQP.

APPENDICES - 31




STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

May 20-~21, 2019

TO: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission
FROM: Hokulei Lindsey, Administrative Rules Officer th%
Office of the Chairman

SUBJECT: For Information Only - Report of Chapter 91, Hawailil
Revised Statutes, Public Hearings for Administrative
Rules Related to Planned Communities, Multi-Family
Housing, and Rentals

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

None. For information only.

DISCUSSION:

Following the approval of the Hawaiian Homes Commission at
its October 2018 regular meeting, and approval of the Governor,
the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands held public hearings
pursuant to chapter 91, Hawaii Revised Statues, regarding
proposed administrative rules related to planned communities,
multi-family housing, and rental housing. Public notice was
published statewide pursuant to section 91-3, HRS, on January
27, 2019 (Exhibit A) and, pursuant to section 10-5-22, HAR,
copies were sent to the homestead associations with addresses on
file (Exhibit B). Four public hearings were held as scheduled,
each with an informational briefing immediately preceding the
hearing. Locations for the hearings were chosen based upon the
existence and prevalence of Hawaiian Home Lands planned
communities in the area.

TESTIMONY
DATE LOCATION | SIGN-IN oral Written
February 27, Kapolei _
2019 DHHIL Hale Ponoi 5 1 1
Kona
West Hawaii Civic
March 6, 2019 Center 1 0 0

. ITEM NO. C-2




TESTIMONY
DATE LOCATION SIGN-IN Oral Written
Maui
March 11, Paukukalo Community
2019 Center 16 4 0
March 13, Kauai
2019 King Kaumualii Elem. | 3 0 0
OTHER TESTIMONY RECEIVED Email Mail
2 1

Informational Briefings and Hearings

Each session was conducted in the same manner. Before each
hearing an informational briefing was held during which staff
used a powerpoint presentation to discuss the rulemaking
process, the purpose of the proposal, and to highlight certain
sections of the proposal, which staff believe to be of
particular significance (Exhibit C). Binders containing the
complete record and evolution of the current proposal was made
available for review and reference. Time was allotted for
guestions. At each meeting, attendees arrived for the briefing
and stayed thru the formal hearing. Once the briefing ended, the
formal hearing was opened by the presiding officer (Exhibit D)
and testimony, if any, was received.

Testimony

Multiple methods to submit written testimony were offered.
Written options provide opportunity to testify for those unable
to attend the hearing, those in attendance but unwilling to
testify orally, or those who would prefer to submit in writing.
The DHHL’s post office box address was provided in the public
notice to receive written testimony; a phone number and email
address were alsoc listed as available for additional
information. At the informational briefing, three options were
offered: the post office box address, an email address, and
“green sheets” were provided for submitting written testimony at
the hearing. In Kapolei and Kauai, several attendees indicated
they would submit written testimony after the hearing. Hawving
not received testimony from those individuals, staff sent an
email to ensure nothing was missed. Of the five individuals
contacted, one emailed testimony and another emailed to say that
they decided not to testify; no other responses were received.
In addition, the time period to submit written testimony was
reopened because staff was informed the email address provided
at the informational briefing did not work; notice of the

ITEM NO. C-2




reopening was posted on the website (Exhibit E). No additional
testimony was received.

Exhibit F is the testimony received and the staff responses
to matters directly related to the proposal. During the
hearings, staff took notes of orgl testimony, which is reflected
in Exhibit F, email or written testimony is reproduced verbatim.

RECOMMENDATION:

None. For information only.

ITEM NO. C-2




STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED AMENDMENTS
TO TITLE 10, HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES

The Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (DHHL) will hold a public hearing on Oahu, Maui,
Hawaii Island, and Kauai for Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) amendments. The proposed
amendments to Title 10, HAR, DHHL, would adopt administrative rules related to the method of
disposition, as well as the terms, conditions, covenants, and restrictions as to the use and
occupancy of single family and multi-family units including rentals in a new HAR chapter 10-7
entitled, planned communities, multi-family complexes, and rental housing. The proposed rules
create processes through which the Hawaiian Homes Commission and DHHL can develop, manage,
and enforce provisions for planned communities, multi-family complexes, and rental housing
developed on Hawaiian Home Lands. An informational briefing will be held immediately before the
public hearing.

Date: Wednesday, February 27, 2019
Location: DHHL Main Office (Hale Ponoi), 91-5420 Kapolei Pkwy, Kapolei, Hl 96707
Time: Informational briefing: 6:00 p.m. — 6:30 p.m.

Public hearing: 6:30 p.m.-7:30 p.m.

Date: Wednesday, March 6, 2019
Location: West Hawaii Civic Center, 74-5044 Ane Keohokalole Hwy, Kailua-Kona, HI 96740
Time: Informational briefing: 6:00 p.m. — 6:30 p.m.

Public hearing: 6:30 p.m. - 7:30 p.m.

Date: ’ Monday, March 11, 2019
Location: Paukukalo Community Center, 655 Kaumualii St, Wailuku, HI 96793
Time: Informational briefing: 6:00 p.m. - 6:30 p.m.

Public hearing: 6:30 p.m.-7:30 p.m.

Date: Wednesday, March 13, 2019
Location: King Kaumualii Elementary School Cafeteria, 4380 Hanamaulu Rd, Lihue, Hl 96766
Time: Informational briefing: 6:00 p.m. - 6:30 p.m.

Public hearing: 6:30 p.m. - 7:30 p.m.

All interested persons are urged to attend the public hearing to present relevant
information and individual opinion for the DHHL to consider. Any person may file written
comments or recommendations in support of or in opbosition to the proposed rulemaking in -
person at the public hearing or by mail postmarked by March 20, 2019. Written testimony should
be mailed to: ATTN: Administrative Rules, Department of Hawaiian Home Lands, P.O. Box 1879,
Honolulu, HI 96805.

The Hawaiian Homes Commission shall take final action on this rulemaking at a future
regularly scheduled commission meeting.

exnlT At



The proposed rule amendments are currently available for review through March 20, 2019
between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday at the DHHL Main Office in
Kapolei, Oahu (address listed above) and at any DHHL District Office: East Hawaii: 160 Baker Ave.,

- Hilo, HI 96720; West Hawaii: 64-756 Mamalahoa Hwy, Kamuela, HI 96743; Maui: 655 Kaumualii St.,
Wailuku, HI 96793; Molokai: 600 Mauna Loa Hwy, Kaunakakai, HI 96748; Kauai: 3060 Eiwa St, Rm
203, Lihue, HI 96766. A copy of the proposed rule amendments will be mailed to any person who
requests a copy in writing. The request must state the requestor’s name and mailing address, and
be delivered to the DHHL Main Office, P.O. Box 1879, Honolulu, HI 96805. For more information,
email dhhl.rules@hawaiianhomelands.org or call (808) 620-9280. A copy of the proposed rule
amendments is also available online: http://dhhl.hawaii.gov/hhc/hawaii-administrative-rules/.

To request a sign language interpreter or disabled parking at the public hearing, please
contact the DHHL Information and Community Relations Office on Oahu at 808-620-9590 at least
seven days in advance of the public hearing.

Jobie M. K. Masagatani, Chairman
Hawaiian Homes Commission
January 27, 2019

ExHIBIT X



DAVID Y. IGE
GOVERNOR
STATE OF HAWAIl

JOSH GREEN
LT. GOVERNOR
STATE OF HAWAII

JOBIE M. K. MASAGATANI
CHAIRMAN
HAWATIAN HOMES COMMISSION

WILLIAM J. AILA, JR.
DEPUTY TO THE CHAIRMAN

STATE OF HAWAIIL
X DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

P. 0. BOX 1879
HONOLULU, HAWAII 96805

January 24, 2019

Aloha Homestead Association Leaders,

The Department of Hawaiian Home Lands will be conducting public hearings for
proposed amendments to its Administrative Rules regarding DCCRs, multi-family housing,
rentals and kupuna housing. The public hearing process is required by state law. The notice
for the hearing will be published in newspapers statewide and a copy is enclosed for your
association. Also enclosed are two copies of the proposed rule amendments. Copies of the
proposal are also available for reading at all Department offices and on DHHL’s webS|te
Hearings will be held according to the following schedule:

Date:
Location:
Time:

Date:
Location:
Time:
Date:

Location:
Time:

Date:
Location:

Time:

Wednesday, February 27, 2019

DHHL Main Office (Hale Ponoi), 91-5420 Kapolei Pkwy, Kapolei, HI 96707
Informational briefing: 6:00 p.m. — 6:30 p.m.

Public hearing: 6:30 p.m. — 7:30 p.m.

Wednesday, March 6, 2019

West Hawaii Civic Center, 74-5044 Ane Keohokalole Hwy, Kailua-Kona, HI
96740

Informational briefing: 6:00 p.m. - 6:30 p.m.

Public hearing: 6:30 p.m. — 7:30 p.m.

Monday, March 11, 2019

Paukukalo Community Center, 655 Kaumualii St, Wailuku, H1 96793
Informational briefing: 6:00 p.m. — 6:30 p.m.

Public hearing: 6:30 p.m. -~ 7:30 p.m.

Wednesday, March 13, 2019

King Kaumualii Elementary School Cafeteria, 4380 Hanamaulu Rd, Lihue, HI
96766

Informational briefing: 6:00 p.m. — 6:30 p.m.

Public hearing: 6:30 p.m. - 7:30 p.m.

If you cannot attend the hearing but you want to comment on the proposal, the
Department is accepting written comments. Please be sure to submit (or postmark) your written
comments to the Department no later than March 20, 2019.

EXHIBIT &



Homestead Associations
January 24, 2019
Page 2

You may remember beneficiary consultation meetings last summer (May thru August
2018) about proposed rule amendments, which included DCCRs, multi-family, rentals, and
kupuna housing. The upcoming public hearings are the next step for those proposed rules.
The proposed rules create processes through which the Hawaiian Homes Commission and
DHHL can develop, manage, and enforce provisions for planned communities (DCCRs), multi-
family complexes, and rental housing developed on Hawaiian Home Lands. An informational
briefing will be held immediately before the public hearing. The beneficiary consultation report
for this proposal is also on the website. Your mana‘o and participation is much appreciated.

If you have any questions, please contact Hokulei Lindsey at (808) 620-9280 or
Hokulei.Lindsey @hawaii.gov.

Aloha,

Jobie M. K. Masagatani, Chairman
Hawaiian Homes Commission

Enc.

EXHIBIT B



5/14/2019

Ed

HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

[RIRIRVEAEN Por FLAWSTAN ol TanDs

Informational Meeting

Proposed Rules for
Planned Communities, Multi-Family
Complexes, and Rental Housing

* Opening
* Presentation
— Administrative Rules and Timeframes
— Planned Communities
— Multi-Family Complexes
— Rental Housing

* Questions

ltem C-2; Exhibit C ' 1



5/14/2019

before the public hearing. -

* Provide information and answer questions about the
proposed rules for Planned Communities, Multi-Family
Complexes, and Rental Housing on Hawaiian Home Lands so
there may be better understanding about the proposal

We Are Here

Iltem C-2; Exhibit C



5/14/2019

April —July 2018

* Statewide
beneficiary
consultation

September 2018

* HHC acceptance
of beneficiary
consultation
report

|| October 2018
2| » HHC acceptance

of recommended
changes

November 201

Governor’s
approval for
public hearing

January 27, 2019

¢ Statewide
public notice

* “The department is authorized to develop and construct
single-family and multi-family units for housing native
Hawaiians. The method of disposition, including rentals, as
well as the terms, conditions, covenants, and restrictions as to
the use and occupancy of such single-family and multi-family
units shall be prescribed by [administrative] rules.”

Item C-2; Exhibit C



5/14/2019

Planned
ommunities

Community Lessees on Lot Lots (Projected)
*Development on going

ltem C-2; Exhibit C 4



5/14/2019

Address the gaps left by the Kalawahine lawsuit.

Consistency of interaction between DHHL and DCCR
homesteads.

Clear roles.
Improve the DHHL-DCCR model.

¢ Meet requirements of HHCA 207.5.
— §10-7-2 Method of disposition
— Subchapter 2; The Declaration

— Subchapter 3; The Association
— Subchapter 4; Obligations of the Lessee
® Pre-existing DCCR associations must vote to “opt-in” to the
administrative rules.
— §10-7-2 Applicability of chapter

Iltem C-2; Exhibit C 5



5/14/2019

* Account for assessments from vacant lots.
— §10-7-20 Vacant lots
* Account for assessments from unoccupied units.
— §10-7-21 Unoccupied units
* Associations provide an annual budget to the department for
record-keeping purposes.
— §10-7-22 Budget

e Subchapter 4; Obligations of the Lessee

—Understand planned community living
—Pay assessments
— Comply with member obligations
e Subchapter 5; Enforcement of Governing Documents

Iltem C-2; Exhibit C 6



5/14/2019

¢ Subchapter 3; The Association
— Meetings and communication

— Annual compliance

e Subchapter 5; Enforcement of Governing Documents
— Enforce the CC&Rs

* Training and communication
— §10-7-22 Budget
— §10-7-26 Planned community education
® Fill units
— §10-7-21 Unoccupied units
e Subchapter 5; Enforcement of Governing Documents
— Contested case hearings

Item C-2; Exhibit C , 7



5/14/2019

AHAN FHOostes Costarssg

IVWPARTAYENT O AN o

H /\W/?\il IAN HOME LANDS

Multi-Family
Complexes

15

Item C-2; Exhibit C 8



5/14/2019

§10-7-1 Definitions
— “Multi-family complex”

Subchapter 3; The Association

Subchapter 4; Obligations of the Lessee

Subchapter 5; Enforcement of Governing Documents

17

E!

HAWALI AN HOML LANDS

H\0 f
DI PARTMEN zl )\H\ 1x1

Rental Housing

18

Item C-2; Exhibit C 9



e §10-7-1 Definitions
— “Property management company”

— “Rental agreement”
— “Rental housing development”
— “Renter”

* Subchapter 6; Rental Housing

Give testimony at a public hearing.

Green sheets.

Email: dhhl.rules@hawaiianhomelands.org

Mail postmarked by Wednesday, March 20, 2019:

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands
DHHL Administrative Rules

P.O. Box 1879

Honolulu, HI 96805

Iltem C-2; Exhibit C

5/14/2019

10



5/14/2019

EI

HAWAI I/\N HOM[ L/\N BN

O1rA EI‘}i 1 H %\u!:

Mahalo

21

Iltem C-2; Exhibit C

11



DAVID Y. IGE
GOVERNOR
STATE OF HAWAI

JOBIE M. K. MASAGATANI
CHAIRMAN
HAWANAN HOMES COMMISSION

WILLIAM J. AILA, JR.
DEPUTY TO THE CHAIRMAN

JOSH GREEN
LT. GOVERNOR
STATE OF HAWAII

STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAITAN HOME LANDS

P. 0. BOX 1879
HONOLULU, HAWAII 96805

February 19, 2019

. Pursuant to section 10-5-23, Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR), | designate
Hokulei Lindsey as the presiding officer in my absence over the public hearings for
proposed amendments to Title 10, HAR, related to planned communities, multi-family
complexes, and rental housing, held pursuant to Chapter 91, Hawaii Revised Statutes -
from 6:30 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. or adjournment, whichever is Iater on the foIIowmg dates
and locations:

e February 27, 2019
Hale Ponoi, 91-5420 Kapolel Parkway, Kapolel Hawaii 96707

e March 6, 2019
West Hawaii Civic Center, 74-5044 Ane Keohokalole Hwy, Kailua-Kona,

HI 96740

" e March 11, 2019
Paukukalo Community Center, 655 Kaumualii St, Wailuku, HI 96793

e March 13, 2019

King Kaumualii Elementary School Cafeteria, 4380 Hanmaulu Rd, Lihue,
HI 96766 '

O el

Jobie W, K. Masagataﬂl )
Chairman, Hawaiian es Commission

EXHIBIT D _



e brniny Onelavy s 7Ot 2018 Hens € g Aputive s WO 0N Hem G2 Acepl N7 O 2018 Mo C0 Dbt £ Department of Howanan Hbr: X

[63 ( Not secur

D Aps @ Sgnintoyourneco.. G Gt started with yo.. Hawali State Legisle.. @ HIECA AN Free Tull- Text Ol JH5BA 4 Indgenouslowlou. R Cultural Suraval » I Other ook marks

‘:'3 Illﬂi’(lil‘.g()l' 3 + Smualler | Reset | Larger @ Stay Connected

;Search
Established by Prince Kihid & the U.S. Congress
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (w]n] fh

Home Divisions v Legislation v Procurement Employment Commercialleases Awards Fact Sheets

Applications & Wait List

HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

IO AT ISR L RGN« CTESADA ST 8 ENAE N e A

Information for Lessees

Department of Hawalian Home Lands Proposed Rule Changes

You- TR R (IR O Brrefriaar, Dlors rien e gt My y0as COommturty e G uss Vo Tam s SHn 16
DHMMUE gyrimiciGtn ndes

Hawaiian Homes
T wcharchion of Comdibors, © MullLiamily, Meniai, ond Kporo ©  uppiemanicl Dweling Unls | Commission

PUBLIC COMMENT ~ PLANNED COMMUNITY, MULTI-FAMILY COMPLEXES, AND RENTAL

HOUSING Beneficiary
Read More #) ® 29060 Consultations

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands and Hawaii

" - " ABOUT US

Community College dedicate their 52nd Model Home :

Posted on May 10, 2015 * HHC - Hawaiian Homes Commission |
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIAN HOME LANDS AND HAWAI COMMUNITY COLLEGE * z““L 'LDe:a“me"t of Hawaiian

DEDICATE THEIR S2ND MODEL HOME HILO, HAWAP - On Thursday May th, ome Lands |

e Lands and Hawaii Community College held a : :
s ; 2:33 PM
-l O Type here ta search s M € 9 Mo« e Wl " @ £~ og 5/13/2019

EXHIBIT_E_



Tectmeny - OneDoy . 3 Apuoy T TR ept WO A018 Her dubit A Depurtment of Howaian HBni X -+

(_.

T Appe Ha 3 ‘ @ HHCA AN Toee Full-Text Onls 1 HSBA 48 Indgenous Law Jou . R Cullural Surviy » BB Other toot marks

'z‘.' Il(]ll’(lii.g()l' A Textsiwe:  Smaller | Reset | Larger @ Stay Connected

Home Divisions ¥ Legislation ¥ Procurement Employment CommercialLeases Awards Fact Sheets

é Search

Established by Prince Kihid & the U.5. Congress

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands wla] £

Home » Department of Hawaitan Hone Lands, Public Information, Public Notice, Slider » PLIBLIC COMMENT
- Mannat Community, kuiti-Famity Complexes, andd Rental Housing

PAGES
PUBLIC COMMENT ~ PLANNED COMMUNITY, MULTI-FAMILY » 2019 Hawaiian Homes

COMPLEXES, AND RENTAL HOUSING Commission and Community
Posted on May 8, 2019 in Department of Hawallan Home Lands. Publ ig. Bublic, Meeting Schedule
Notice, Sider Agricuiture Homesteads

Departmevnl of Hawalian Home

PUBLIC COMMENT - Planned Community, Multi-Family Compiexes, and Rental Housing
Lands Administrative Rules

DHHL is accepting comments regarding proposed administrative rules for Planned ] Department of Hawaiian Home
Commuanitics, Muiti- Family Compleses, and Rental Housing until Monday, May 13, 2019, Lands Oahu and Kaua'i offices

Email: dhlibadpingules@howailpoy closed August 23 & 24, 2018

For more informastion CLIGK UERE DHHL Administrative Rules

DHHL Leadership Conference
2016 - Resources

DHHL's Fight for Funding

* DISPOSITION OF HAWAIJAN HOME
LANDS BY GENERAL LEASES FOR !
RENEWABLE ENERGY PROJECTS i

ON OAHU AND MAUI

Fact Sheets

-l O Type here to search g

EXHIBIT L



5/13/2019 Department of Hawaiian Home Lands | DHHL Administrative Rules — DCCR’s, Multi-Family, Rentals, Kupuna Housing and Supplemental...

(http://dhhl.hawaii.gov)
Established by Prince Ki3hid & the U8, Congress

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (http://dhhl.hawaii.gov)

!

Home (http://dhhl.hawaii.gov/} » PO - Planning Office (http://dhhi.hawaii.gov/po/} » Beneficiary Consultations
{(http:/ldhhi.hawaii.govipo/beneficiary-consultation/} » DHHL Administrative Rules — DCCR's, Multi-Family, Rentals,
Kupuna Housing and Supplemental Dwelling Units

DHHL ADMINISTRATIVE RULES - DCCR’S, MULTI-FAMILY,
RENTALS, KUPUNA HOUSING AND SUPPLEMENTAL DWELLING
UNITS

The Department of Hawaiian Home Lands is proposing to add Administrative Rules for

+ Declaration of Conditions, Covenants, and Restrictions Communities (DCCRY);
» Multi-family, Rentals, and Kupuna Housing; and

» Supplemental Dwelling Units.

The proposals are intended to increase the housing options available to beneficiaries of the
Hawaiian Homes Commission Act and to improve certainty in Department processes. This is the
third round of rule changes proposed by this administration. Rulemaking could take up to two
years to complete.

EXHIBIT E

dhhl.hawni.aov: po/beneficiary-consultation/dhhl-administrativc iuies-deers-muiti-family-rentals-kupuna-housing-2nd-= nptemental-dwelling-units/

1/6



5/13/2019

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands | DHHL Administrative Rules — DCCR'’s, Multi-Family, Rentals, Kupuna Housing and Supplemental. ..

HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

HAWATIAN HOMES COMMISSION ~ DEPARTMENT OF HAWATIAN HOME LANDS

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands Proposed Rule Changes

You're invited to attend a Beneficiary Consuttation meeting in'your community to discuss important proposed changes to

DHHL's administrative rules:

Declaration of Conditions,
Covenants, and Resiriclions
Communilies (DCCR)

Multi-family, Rentals, and Kupuna
Housing

Supplemental Dweliing Units

Proposes ways for the Department
to enforce CCRs in existing DCCR
communifies and to standardize
the relationship between the
Department and DCCRs.

Proposes to.expand residential
lease offefings to include multi-
family housing. Also proposes
rentdl, rent with optionto
purchase, and kupuna housing
programs.

Proposes a pilot program on Oahu
and Hawdii for residential lessees
on:qudlifying lots to bulld a
supplemental dwelling unit.

Please visit (tip://c
(808) 620-9280. All meehngs are subjecf to chcnge

for the latest information or call DHHL Administrative Rules ait

Please click here for a downloadable (PDF) version of the flyer posted above.

BENEFICIARY CONSULTATIONS

Proposed Action or
Issue for Discussion

Update the current set of Hawaii Administrative Rules governing the
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands.

2 Notification

Meeting Agenda:

« Meeting agenda {PDF version)

dhhl.hawaii.gov/po/beneficiary-consultaticn

3 | Meeting Schedule .

Molokai — Monday, April 30, 2018
DHHL Molokai Office — Kulana ‘Oiwi Halau

600 Maunaloa Highway

Kalamaula, Hawaii 96748

6 p.m —9pm.

Kauai — Monday, May 7, 2018
King Kaumualii Elementary School Cafeteria

4380 Hanamaulu Road
Lihue, Hawau 96766 .
6p.m.—9 p m.

EXHIBIT £

/dhhl-adminislralive-rules-deers-multi-family-rente!s-icicuna - ucing-and-supplemental-dwelling-units/




5/13/2019

» Paukukalo, Maui — Monday, May 21, 2018
Paukukalo Community Center
655 Kaumualii Street
Wailuku, Maui 96793
6 p.m.—9p.m.

« Lahaina, Maui -Tuesday, June 5, 2018
Lahaina Civic Center
1840 Honoapiilani Highway
Lahaina, Hawaii 96761
6 p.m—9pm.

+ Keaukaha, Hawai’i- Monday, June 25, 2018
Keaukaha Elementary School Cafeteria
240 Desha Avenue’
Hilo, Hawaii 96720
6 p.m. —9p.m.

« West Hawaii, Kailua, Kona —~ Monday, July 9, 2018
West Hawaii Civic Center
74-5044 Ane Keohokalole Highway
Kailua-Kona, Hawaii 96740
6 p.m.—9p.m,

s Honolulu, O’ahu - Monday, July 23, 2018
Robert Louis Stevenson Middie School
1202 Prospect Street
Honolulu, Hawaii 96822
6 p.m.—9 p.m.

+ Kapolei, O’ahu — Monday, July 30, 2018
DHHL Hale Pono'i
91-5420 Kapolei Parkway,
Kapolei, Hawaii 96707
6p.m —9pm

Presentation Materiais

Beneficiary Consultation Meetings:

+ Presentation DCCR.SDU v1 for posting

A

Vi

Background Information

hawan.gov/po/beneficiary-consultation/dhhl-admin:iral; s~ -ruies-dcers-multi-family-rentals-kupuna-housing -+:..u-supplemental-dwelling-units/

DCCR Rules:

» FAQ’s DCCR Rules

» Proposed Rules DCCRs, Muiti Family, Rental, Kupuna
Housing

Multi Family, Rentals, Kupuna Housing Rules:

o FAGQ’s Multi Family, Rental, Kupuna Housing Rules

« Proposed Rules DCCRs, Mu! Family, Kental, Kupuna EXHlBlT E

Housing

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands | DHHL Administrative Rules — DCCR'’s, Multi-Family, Rentals, Kupuna Housing and Supplemental...

3/6



5/13/2019 Department of Hawaiian Home Lands | DHHL Administrative Rules — DCCR's, Multi-Family, Rentals, Kupuna Housing and Supplemental...

Supplemental Dwelling Units:

« FAQ’s Supplemental Dwelling Units Rules

Beneficiary Consultation :
6 | Report: Meetings and Oct 2018 Beneficiary Consuiiation Report
Transcribed Notes

7 : Review Period Notice of Pubtic Hearing for DCCR Multi Rentals

STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAHNAN HOME LANDS
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED AMENDMENTS
TO TITLE 10, HAWAIl ADMINISTRATIVE RULES
The Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (DHHL) will hold a public
hearing on Oahu, Maui,
Hawaii Island, and Kauai for Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR)
amendments. The proposed
amendments to Title 10, HAR, DHHL, would adopt administrative rules
related to the method of disposition, as well as the terms, conditions,
covenants, and restrictions as to the use and
occupancy of single family and multi-family units including rentals in a new
HAR chapter 10-7
entitled, planned communities, muiti-family complexes, and rental
housing. The proposed rules
create processes through which the Hawaiian Homes Commission and
DHHL can develop, manage,
and enforce provisions for planned communities, multi-family complexes,
and rental housing
developed on Hawaiian Home Lands. An informational briefing will be
held immediately before the
public hearing.

Date: Wednesday, February 27, 2019

Location: DHHL Main Office (Hale Ponoi), 91-5420 Kapolei Pkwy, Kapolei,
Hi 96707

Time: Informational briefing: 6:00 p.m. — 6:30 p.m.

Public hearing: 6:30 p.m. —7:30 p.m.

Date: Wednesday, March 6, 2019

Location: West Hawaii Civic Center, 74-5044 Ane Keohokalole Hwy,
Kailua-Kona, HI 96740 :

Time: Informational briefing: 6:00 p.m. - 6:30 p.m.

Public hearing: 6:30 p.m. — 7:30 p.m.

. Date: Monday, March 11, 2019
Location: Paukukalo Community Center, 655 Kaumualii St, Wailuku, HI
96793
Time: Informational briefing: 6:00 p.m. —6:30 p.m.
Public hearing: 6:30 p.m. —7:30 p.m.

EXHIBIT €

e ——

dhhl.hawaii.gov/poit: o ficiary-consultation/dhhi-administrative-rules-dccrs-muiti-family-rentals-kupuna-housing-and-supplerieniai-dwiing-units/ 4/6



+ 5/13/2019

Date: Wednesday, March 13, 2019

Location: King Kaumualii Elementary School Cafeteria, 4380 Hanamaulu
Rd, Lihue, HI 96766

Time: Informational briefing: 6:00 p.m. — 6:30 p.m.

Public hearing: 6:30 p.m. - 7:30 p.m.

All interested persons are urged to attend the public hearing to present
relevant

information and individua! opinion for the DHHL to consider. Any person
may file written

comments or recommendations in support of or in opposition to the
proposed rulemaking in

person at the public hearing or by mail postmarked by March 20, 2019.
Written testimony should

be mailed to: ATTN: Administrative Rules, Department of Hawaiian Home
Lands, P.O. Box 1879,

Honolulu, HI 96805.

The Hawaiian Homes Commission shall take final action on this
rulemaking at a future
regularly scheduled commission meeting.

The proposed rule amendments are currently available for review through
March 20, 2019 '

between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday at
the DHHL Main Office in

Kapolei, Oahu (address listed above) and at any DHHL District Office:
East Hawaii: 160 Baker Ave.,

Hilo, HI 96720; West Hawaii: 64-756 Mamalahoa Hwy, Kamuela, HI
96743; Maui: 655 Kaumualii St.,

Wailuku, Hi 96793; Molokai: 600 Mauna Loa Hwy, Kaunakakai, Hi 96748;
Kauai: 3060 Eiwa St, Rm

203, Lihue, H1 96766. A copy of the proposed rule amendments wilt be
mailed to any person who

requests a copy in writing. The request must state the requestor’s name
and mailing address, and

be delivered to the DHHL Main Office, P.O. Box 1879, Honolulu, Hi
96805. For more information,

email dhhl.rules@hawaiianhomelands.org or call (808) 620-9280. A copy
of the proposed rule

amendments is also available online: http://dhhl.hawaii.gov/hhc/hawaii-
administrative-rules/. )

To request a sign language interpreter or disabled parking at the public
hearing, piease

contact the DHHL Information and Community Relations Office on Oahu
at 808-620-9590 at least ’

seven days in advance of the public hearing.

Jobie M. K. Masagatani, Chairman
Hawaiian Homes Commission
January 27, 2019

EXHIBIT £

[+2]

dhhl.hawaii.gov/»~/L . .ciiciary-consultation/dhhl-administrative-rules-dcers-multi-family-rentais-kupuna-housing-and-supplemental-dwelling-units/

Hawaiian Homes

et

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands | DHHL Administrative Rules — DCCR's, Multi-Family, Rentals, Kupuna Housing and Supplemental...

5/6



5/13/2019 Department of Hawaiian Home Lands | DHHL Administrative Rules — DCCR's, Multi-Family, Rentals, Kupuna Housing and Supplemental...

Commission
Vote/Governor Approval

Final Version of Hawaii
9 | Administrative Rules
Amendments 2017

TBD

CONTACT INFORMATION:

For more information, please contact:

. Hokulei Lindsey, DHHL Administrative Rules Officer, 808-620-9280
hokulei.lindsey@hawaii.gov

COMMENT ON ADMINISTRATIVE RULES:

Comment on Proposed New Administrative Rules

Name

Applicant or Lessee?

E-mail *

Comment or Message *

Submit

EXHIBIT_C

dhhl.hawaii.gov/po/beneficiary censuitai.i/dhhi-administrative-rules-dccrs-multi-fami -+ . ia.s-wpunia-nousing-and-supplemental-dwe!ling-u.its/
¥

6/6



Planned Communities, Multi-Family Complexes, and Rental Housing
Public Testimony 2019

TESTIFIER COMMENT MEETING RESPONSE
Nalani I live on Nanakuli Hawaiian Homestead. I'm Kapolei The proposed rules do not address loan, grant, or
Aipoalani- | representing myself and my entire family. subsidy sources or opportunities. Those matters
Tuaoi- Getting land to them, taking care of our are addressed in other subchapters of the rules as
To'oto'o Kupunas. With, that being said, the monies well as the Hawaiian Home Commission Act.
(Oral) generated from commercial properties

should be used on them to pay for our

Kupunas to be housed under the DHHL

Properties that you folks have.
Kailani What newspaper was this published in [to Paukukalo | Public notice was made statewide, published in
Ross advertise the public hearing]? the major newspapers, in accordance with 91-3,
(Oral) On June 30, 1921, Prince Kuhio had an Hawaii Revised Statutes, and Hawaii

opportunity to testify in front of US Congress
in support of the HHCA, he states "mister
chairman helping the Hawaiian people who
are dying out to get back to our land to
rehabilitate themselves the Hawaiian people
for the last 100 years have been dying off
rapidly. This decline has been recognized by
all — Kamahemeha I, 11, 111, IV, V have all
recognized something be done. Not many
lands left, the Hawaiians were formally
farmers under new conditions they were
driven out from their lands and came to the
cities. They were poor and lived in
tenements.” (67 session congressional
record). The Act was passed by Congress of
US, on July 9 1921, signed into law by
President Warren Harding. Mission states
"Title 1A Purpose section 101 this section
states the policy to enable native Hawaiians
to return to their lands to support seif
determination in the administration of the
Act ... To establish a permanent land base
for the benefit of native Hawaiians placing
native Hawaiians on the lands. Purpose is to
rehabilitate as farmers. Confining native
Hawaiians into condos is not in the spirit of
the Prince Kuhio nor back to Kamehameha .
He also provided the mahele which is not a
contract with the konohikis and still stands
today. Land not to be sold in perpetuity.
Kanaka maoli to protect the kamaainas. We
have the apology bill Public Law 150
apologizes for taking away the land states
that US committed an act of war against her
[Queen Liliuokalani] people. DHHL employees
you are putting them in condos, tenements,
Spirit of the law says return to Land. |

Administrative Rules Title 10.

The Hawaiian Homes Commission Act section
207.5 gives explicit authority to the department to
develop multi-family housing and rentals. The
proposed rules provide the framework to
implement section 207.5, HHCA.

Item C-2; Exhibit F




Planned Communities, Multi-Family Complexes, and Rental Housing
Public Testimony 2019

oppose, strongly oppose, the proposition
here today. This is a crime on top of a crime
on top of a crime. This apology bill states
[read from Apology Bill]. Those who work for
Hawaiian Homes, there are lands for kanaka
maoli, but they don’t want to hear it. State of
Hawaii vs Midkiff created a law that eminent
domain — taking private lands for public
purpose — Queen Liliuokalani and Lunalilo
Trust — showed it can be done. Alexander &
Baldwin said they owned the land. After
overthrow of Liliuokalani they changed their
lease to "own"

Hinano
Kaleleiki
(Oral)

The land you stole, the land US stole. |
worked for over 20 years, my job, these lands
are the rights to the konohiki, right to the
land and the water, this is not a privilege. We
are outlaws. They have no permission, no
right. The water, ocean is your right. If you
listen to these guys you'll stay on the ground.
I've been in the toughest parts of this world.
The US government knows who owns the
lands. 245 of us, only 2 of us left. The mahele
was an inventory of the king’s assets, by
ledger, to his konohikis. Then he turned over
his personal lands. First Supreme Court
magistrate. Foreign invasion political unrest.
It’s privatized since then. Don’t know where
they got the permission from. | told you guys
to cease and desist, almost 5 years. I’'m there
to go to court. The world is looking at you
guys. You guys gonna eat it. Hawaiian homes
you have nothing to say, you're thieves. This
you guys final warning. It didn’t say blood
quantum. If a slave can come to these shores
has the right, says nothing about blood
quantum. We don’t need another
government. We didn’t ask for it.

Paukukalo

None.

Germaine
Balino
(Oral)

Individual and lessee. Neither for nor against.
What strikes me by fellow beneficiaries, and
prior to others what was passed in history.
My understanding is proposed rules have
been part of Beneficiary Consultation, that
Beneficiary Consultations have expressed the
need for these proposed amendments. My
concerns echo fellow beneficiaries here:
make sure there is mandatory rules when
DCCRs are created so lessees know, that
there is a process/mechanism put in place

Paukukalo

Staff believes provisions are in place that would
address concerns about lessee understanding of
living in a development governed by covenants,
conditions, and restrictions; as well as concerns
that the covenants make sense for Hawaiian Home
Lands and are not simply “boilerplate”.

Proposed section 10-7-4 Native Hawaiian Cultural
Values requires that the governing documents
take into account Hawaiian cultural values that are
appropriate for the location, development, and
the original lessees who would live in those

Item C-2; Exhibit F




Planned Communities, Multi-Family Complexes, and Rental Housing
Public Testimony 2019

1

should any rules get passed, also a process in
place that goes back to the beneficiaries
(recourse). DCCR communities get caught in a
catch 22, can't amend the DCCRs, they are
stuck with DCCRs that were given to them
without any beneficiary input.

homes. It also requires that the guidelines for the
culturally appropriate provisions be developed by
the department through beneficiary consultation.
Those guidelines are to be included in the
declaration. Staff believes this will help ease some
of the cultural disconnect that some current DCCR
lessees describe with the covenants and
restrictions in their communities.

The purpose of proposed section 10-7-26 Planned
Community Education is to facilitate informed
decision-making by homestead applicants. It
creates a process with a mandatory orientation to
explain the obligations of living in a planned
community before award letters are mailed.
Before leases are signed, the future lessees are
required to attend a planned community
education training that is tailored specifically to
the development and its association rules. In
addition, an orientation for lessees who receive
the lease through transfer or succession is also _
required, ensuring that lessees who move into the
community after the original award are informed
xabout the CCRs.

Interms of the issues that are related to the

Kekoa I am here as chairman of the board Paupena | Paukukalo
Enomoto Corp. but am speaking for myself. Planned current proposal, staff believes sections 10-7-4
(Oral) communities inherently are not culturally and 10-7-26, previously discussed, address issues
appropriate, at least not on Maui. As proof, on a cultural level as well as providing information
Waiehu Kou do not report nor pay and training to lessees about the rights,
assessments. Leialii cannot get a 40% responsibilities, and functioning of communities
quorum. Which brings us to the section, governed by CCRs.
which Hokulei referenced. Self determination
pre-supposed. But how are home lands Promulgated in 2018, the department now has
planned and developed? Neither was there Planning System administrative rules, which
beneficiary input when lands are being ensure beneficiary consultation for the
considered to be used as Planned, Multi and development of Island Plans, Area Plans, Regional
rentals. Plans, and Special Area Plans.
Kailani I'm a lessee at Leialii, homestead in Lahaina, | Paukukalo | With regard to the issues within the scope of the
Ross residential. State for the record. | am proposal, staff believes cultural and informational
(Oral; opposed to DCCRs for Hawaiian Home issues will be addressed through sections 10-7-4
additional | lessees. DHHL should take care of common and 10-7-26. These two elements were not part of
time) areas and those kinds of things. Associations previous planned community developments.

tend to pit lessee against lessee cause DHHL
is using the association as an enforcer. The
Kalawahine lawsuit boiled down to "lessee
did not have the opportunity to craft the
DCCR for which they ‘re subjected to". Now
DHHL is trying to do DCCRs in rules so they

The holding in the Kalawahine case was that the
department needs administrative rules to enforce
DCCR documents under section 207.5 of the
HHCA. As it relates to planned communities, the
proposal is intended to address the gaps left by

Item C-2; Exhibit F

3




Planned Communities, Multi-Family Complexes, and Rental Housing

Public Testimony 2019

can get associations to enforce them so I'm
against this. I'm asking DHHL to do the
maintenance and set the lessees free. | have
a letter to read part of, from the UN Office of
the High Commissioner on Indigenous Rights.
He introduces himself and says based on
understand of A/69/284 to UN General
Assembly, | recommend people of Hawaii be
provided access to UN procedures and
mechanisms in order to exercise their rights
protected under international human rights
law. Adjudication of land transactions of the
Hawaiian islands likely international law, not
the US. The State of Hawaii courts should not
lend themselves to flagrant violations . . . And
ends with, therefore State of Hawaii should
not collude in wrongful taking of land,
bearing in mind the right of property art. 17
universal declaration (adopted by leadership
of Eleanor Roosevelt)The HHCA says that
Hawaiians should be sovereign. DCCRs isn't
self-determination; it doesn't meet the spirit
of the act.In HHCA, Hawaiians should be self-
determining, | believe DHHL wants to make
these DCCRs so Hawaiians have self-
determination. This is not self-determination.

the Kalawahine holding, thus enabling the
department to assist homestead planned
community associations.

Sharlette | Would like to see an educational component | Kapolei When the department offered kupuna housing in
Poe for kupuna rentals re: kupuna that may have Waimanalo, general information was provided
(Written; | an existing lease and are considering occupancy, waitlist status, lessee status, and
green transferring, surrendering, or selling their income eligibility, the specific house rules were
sheet) lease to become a (renter) tenant in any of also provided. The proposed rules themselves
the kupuna housing projects and the full provide more process-related information than
impact. was available at the time of the Waimanalo
--now have monthly rent (may not have had project. At this time, staff believes the type of
before) information suggested and, in particular, the
--Association fees, rules, assessments impact of moving into kupuna housing as a rental
--Spouse eligibility for successorship if can be better provided going forward because of
qualifying tenant passes first **Can this proposal.
provisions be considered for "remainder for
life"? The HHCA does not contemplate successorship
For next time rules are made: cannot get structured as a life estate.
back on waitlist; former lessee.
Kanani Aloha, Multi-family housing and rental projects are
Higbee My name is Kanani Higbee. | live in Lahaina, authorized by the HHCA. These types of products
(Email) Maui. | am an applicant for Hawaiian Homes. expand the mix of housing options as well as

My mother-Delta Lapota, Sister- Pua Olena
Moli Lapota, and brother- Kainalu Higbee are
on the list too. My grandpa, Ernest Enoka
Pakaki died on the list without getting a

increase the range of affordability the department
may offer to beneficiaries on the waitlist. While
some beneficiaries want a single family house,

‘| others want the ease, convenience, and/or

ltem C-2; Exhibit F




Planned Communities, Multi-Family Complexes, and Rental Housing
Public Testimony 2019

home. affordability of a multi-family unit; this was

I am emailing in regards to the proposal expressed by beneficiaries during the Beneficiary
about adding lists to the Hawaiian Homes to Consultation process conducted from April thru
get applicants into rental, rent to own, and July 2017. The department should to be able to
condos- multi family structures. | do not provide housing options to beneficiaries of
support this proposal. { would not be happy different income levels as well as different

with Hawaiian Home funding going to this. | lifestyle/housing priorities.

feel it is a misuse of funds. | am offended that

DHHL would even consider this. For me, it’s a The proposal does not speak to any specific
slap in the face. My mother has been on the development. The proposal provides process to
list since 1987. My brother, sister, and | have implement sgction 207.5, HHCA.

been on the list since 2006. Our children are
about grown. There is no reason why we
shouldn’t be living on Hawaiian home land.
And this proposal is junk.

| was told Lahaina Leiali’'i would be built soon.
The 2nd phase. The water has gotten
approved which was the biggest hurdie. And
it's fast tracked to be built. | don’t like this
idea of adding rentals, rent to own. | would
like to have a residential lot and/ or
agriculture lot. | don’t think it's wise to add
more lists when people have been waiting a
long time for a residential and agriculture
already.

Furthermore, | feel that DHHL was sneaky. |
heard of this proposal and meeting in the
newspaper only 1 day before the meeting
was to take place! | didn’t get notice by mail.
Had | known with enough time, | would have
not scheduled anything. But | had plans. To
take a credit class to prepare for my
Hawaiian home. Luckily my coworker was
able to attend the meeting. She said only a
few people made it! | feel this is what DHHL
wanted. For us to not show up so they could
pull a fast one on us.

Basically, | feel that rentals and rent to own
and condos is not the way to go. Instead,
how about offering actual credit classes. I've
been asking for a credit class to get my
finances in order and work on a down
payment. But DHHL didn’t offer one for Maui.
So | had to get a class through Queen
Liliuokalani Trust instead. | feel that it is wise
to take credit classes to prepare to get a
home loan. And DHHL should offer credit
classes to applicants well in advance of them
getting a home. Supposedly, DHHL offers

Iltem C-2; Exhibit F 5




Planned Communities, Multi-Family Complexes, and Rental Housing

Public Testimony 2019

credit classes, but when | ask to take them,
there are excuses DHHL comes up with like
only Oahu has credit classes or we don’t have
any at this time.

Please don’t let this proposal pass. | know it
will make it harder for me and my family to
get our residential lot. We have been waiting
and feel that we are so close and now DHHL
wants to pull this. We are not interested in
rent to own. We just want to get a regular
home loan. Actually if DHHL truly wants to
help Hawaiians, they can help by offering low
interest loan programs. But if not, | know
how to improve my credit so | will qualify for
a lower interest rate.

Thank you for taking the time to read this.
I’'m really hoping you don’t add the rentals,
rent to own, and multi family structures to
DHHL.

With Aloha,
Kanani Higbee
Kanani Aloha, The Department established a new email,
Higbee My name is Kanani Higbee. | am an applicant dhhl.adminrules@hawaii.gov and reopened the
(Emait) for Hawaiian Homes. The green paper that comment period. Staff reached out to those who
was given to people at the meeting at attended the hearings and expressed an interest in
Paukukalo last week for us to provide submitting testimony but from whom none was
testimony had the wrong email on it!!! The received.
email said
dhhl.rules@hawaiianhomelands.org. Staff responded to this email notifying the sender
This is such a huge error. Basically, people are that their testimony was received and of the new
having a hard time giving testimony to what address and additional comment period.
they want in regards to the rent, rent own,
condo, etc.
Please if you could notify everyone somehow
or extend the date to give testimony.
Thank you,
Kanani Higbee
M., See attached letter dated March 20, 2019. 10-7-1 Definitions. Staff believes the proposed
Kapuniai definition of “Homestead” is too broad for the
(Mail) purpose of the proposed chapter. However, the

comment does highlight an assumption that
should be clarified. The proposal has been
presented to beneficiaries and the public in the
context of residential development because that is
the intent of the proposed chapter. Staff believes
the proposal should clearly reflect this intent and
recommends “homestead” be replaced with
“residential” or “applicant on a waitlist” as
appropriate.

item C-2; Exhibit F




Planned Communities, Multi-Family Complexes, and Rental Housing

Public Testimony 2019

10-7-11 Supplemental provisions of the
declaration. This allows the declarant to adopt
supplemental provisions to the declaration. By
definition, supplement enhances or completes
what is already there. As such, supplemental
provisions would be those that add clarity or
certainty as opposed to something new or
different. Staff believes the proposed process is
not warranted and may cause unnecessary delay.

10-7-18 Membership. Staff believes the proposed
added language is not necessary when 10-7-17
and 10-7-18 are read together.

10-7-19 Voting. The declaration is the
foundational document for a planned community,
like the Constitution. It would be created and
recorded by the declarant, most likely the
department or project developer, before there is
an association or lessees. The voting structure of
Class A and Class B is how the declarant maintains
a certain amount of control as the project is
finished and/or units are filled. Once that process
closes or time allotted sunsets, the declarant’s
controlling Class B membership either terminates,
leaving full control of the association with lessees,
or it converts to Class A membership with voting
power equal to each lessee/member. This
provision maintains standard certainty for the
developer.

10-7-26 Planned community education. This
section provides only a general outline of what will
happen in the awards process when a
development is structured as a planned
community. It does not detail the awards process
and procedure. It requires information about
planned communities be provided at the earliest
possible time. It also requires an education
training specific to the development before leases
are signed. Staff believes, based on feedback
during beneficiary consultation, that the provision
as drafted is a significant improvement to past
practice and is appropriate for administrative
rules. Once a community is established, the
department does not control amendments made
to the declaration, nor does it control the by-laws
or house rules. The association has full control

Item C-2; Exhibit F




Planned Communities, Multi-Family Complexes, and Rental Housing
Public Testimony 2019

over those documents and the functioning of the
association. As such, the association is the proper
party to conduct orientation to transferees and
successors. The section requires greater
information from the department to the
association on matters of transferees and
successors.

10-7-41 Rental housing offers. The process
outlined in the proposal is based upon similar prior
experience. The process, as outlined, provides as
the first touch a simple inquiry that contains no
commitment or risk, just a narrowing of the
possible applicant pool—are you interested in
renting in “fill in the blank location.” Once
interested applicants are identified, specifics are
provided. This process is logical, start general then
work to greater specificity.

10-7-42 Kupuna housing. “Immediately” is used to
convey urgency and ensure use of the rental unit
as well as progress towards transfer or surrender
of a lease in a timely manner.

10-7-43 Rental agreement controlling. Staff
recommends no change to the proposed language
because the rental agreement would be governed
primarily by the landlord-tenant code and would
be an agreement between the renter and
management company.

Regarding notice of the public hearings, notice was
given as required by the Hawaii Revised Statutes.
Beneficiaries are mailed directly about Beneficiary
Consultation meetings because it is a process by
the department for beneficiaries in particular. The
public hearing process is a public process under
the Hawaii Revised Statutes. The department
provides equal notice to the public, including
beneficiaries.

Chloe
Urabe
(Email)

Aloha mai, Kapolei
| support the proposed administrative rules
for planned communities, multi-family
complexes, and rental housing. The
proposed rules will create more housing
options for the beneficiaries and will
hopefully place more applicants on the
waiting list in homes. The rules proposed are
a good foundation for DHHL to work off of

Item C-2; Exhibit F




Planned Communities, Multi-Family Complexes, and Rental Housing
Public Testimony 2019

and will allow DHHL to meet their duties to
the beneficiaries under the Act.

Thank you for allowing me to comment.
Me ka ha‘aha‘a,

Chloe Urabe

ftem C-2; Exhibit F




| LD DR 20/
- - Ree o <7 Y mb“&
Ummm“ IN\&N\\ w.. _.onmzo:l‘\s\m@.VuSu\ﬂ ._.oumn _\wﬁmvmmﬁk N;\_\Q s

COMMENT SHEET

PUBLIC HEARING FOR PROPOSED ADMINISTRATIVE RULE AMENDMENTS =

NAME: S Jailete Pre

COMMENTS: /zé\E SFC.JT g Bolucatroval
pund ?I. % g a-
. §¢ §§u Joraoh |
o s Yoy et T pebeet il w0, 5

EXHIBIT _{"_



EXHIBIT F



March 20, 2019

M Kapuniai

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands
DHHL Administrative Rules

P. 0. Box 1879

Honolulu, HI 96805

RE: Comments to CORRECT proposed Admin Rules, Chapter 10-7, following Public
Hearings for which NOTICE WAS NOT PROVIDED TO LESSEES AND APPLICANTS

10-7-1 Definitions.
Include a definition for “homestead” which is mentioned several times, but no
definition for these rules: ‘
“Homestead” includes beneficiary leases on residential, farm, or
pastoral projects”. '

10-7-11 Supplemental provisions of the declaration.

The declarant is authorized . . .chapter; provided that any of the supplemental
provision to be adopted shall 1) first be presented to association members
through consultation process, 2) shall be approved by the Department and

the Hawaiian Homes Commission, and 3) shall not conflict with.... .title.

10-7-18 Membership.
(2) Class B membership shall terminate (and may convert to a class A
membership) per 10-7-17 (c). '

10-7-19 Voting. ' ‘
Class A membership (and class B membership) shall have voting powers as
~ set by the association’s By-laws (by the declarant in the declaration, provided
...or unit than class A membership).
Class A membership shall have one vote. Class B membership (that held
by the declarant) shall have no voting power.

Members of the Association will have to formalize the Membership and Voting
~ Powers in their By-laws. The declarant shall not be a member nor have any voting
power. The declarant facilitates for DHHL - that’s all.

| EXHIBIT__E_



10-7-26 Planned commumty education.

¥ ,?;_ .

REWRITE IT !!! UTILIZING MY COMMENTS FORWARDED OC'&OBE“R 14, 2019
1 HAVE INCLUDED IT WITH THIS LETTER FOR YOUR REFERENCE.

(a) and (b) Review the process and present it clearly, leaving no room for

question.
(c) Itshould be up to the Association whether they should be responsible

for DCCR orientation, before a lease document is executed.

My opinion is still as T have suggested October 14*"; the prospective
lessee, transfereeé, or successor lessee shall first be thoroughly
oriented by DHHL before lease documents are executed.

10-7-41 Rental housing offers.
REWRITE IT!!! UTILIZING THE COMMENTS [ MADE OCTOBER 147TH,

(@ 1).(2),.03)4®

A. DHHL SHALL INCLUDE THE “RENTAL PROGRAM PARAMETERS” WITH
~ THEIR LETTER OF NCOTIFICATION INVITING PARTICIPATION IN THE
RENTAL PROGRAM, AT THE DESIGNATED SITE.

B. DHHL SHALL HAVE CERTIFIED THE INVITEE’'S APPLICATION STATUS
PRIOR TO SENDING THE LETTER OF INVITATION TO PARTICIPATE IN
THE PROGRAM, NOT AFTER HAVING GONE THROUGH THE PROCESS
JUST TO FIND OUT THAT THE PERSON DOES NOT QUALIFY.

EXCUSE ME! HOW UNACCOUNTABLE IS THAT??????2?? ON DHHL PART??7?
DELETE 10-7-41 (b) DHHL SHALL PROVIDE “RENTAL PROBGRAM
PARAMETERS WITH NOTICE OF INVITATION TO PARTICIPATE".
“EARTH CALLING DHHL PAID EMPOYEES TO DO THE JOB CORRECTLY!”

This reqﬁest is not foreign - it is plain courtesy! -
GET WITH IT OR RESIGN!!!

EXHIBIT ¥



[ P - S DO o

HHC Regular Meéting - October 15, 16, 2018

Kanani Kapuniai GEEVTN " Sun, Oct 14, 2018 at 7:29 PM
To: "Masagatani, Jobie K" <Jobie.K.Masagatani@hawaii.gov>, "Aila Jr, William J" <wiliiam.j.ailajr@hawaii.gov>, "Lindsey,
Hokulei" <hokulei.lindsey@hawaii.gov>, Kaleo Manuel <Kaleo.L.Manuel@hawaii.gov>, makaliu@aol.com, "Nanakuli B,
Mike Kahikina" <mkahikina@gmail.com>, Waliace Ishibashi <Stonebridge@hawaii.rr.com>, Randy Awo
<Randyawo@gmail.com>, Wren Wescoatt <wren.wescoatt@gmail.com>

C-4 Approval of Recommendations for Department of Hawaii Home Lands Proposed
Amendments to Title 10, Hawaii AdministrationRules for DCCRs; Multi-Family,
Rentals, and Kupuna Housing;

and to Proceed with Rulemaking under Hawaii Revrsed Statutes Chapter 91

| RECOMMEND DEFERRAL - THESE RULES ARE NOT READY FOR APPROVAL NOR FOR FURTHER
RULEMAKING PROCESS' .

10-7-1 Definitions
M~ “Declaration” does not create a Hawaiian Home Lands Community.
" is an instrument which governs REVIEW AND CORRECT

10-7-10 Establishment of the declaration.

2 There is reference to 10-7-5 (b) - does not exist ) ‘ C
REVIEW AND CORRECT con#ecrer!

10-7-26 Planned Community Edfication o

(a) To facilitate informed decision- -making ---. ..

Staff revisit-and state the process reflectmg the foIIowmg steps

- Department mvnte/notlfy e appllcants (new applicants fo new pro'ect/
prospectlve new lessee to exist !ng pro;ect/ transferees/successors) to review and
participate in new offering - »
Department enclose a set of. DCCR%‘
Department develop and conduct Mandatory Planned Communlty Orientation
Department Conduct Lot Selection
Department facrlltate ‘execution of lease and Acceptance of DCCRs

Up to thls point, the relationship is, DHHL and the protectlve lessee or
succes‘sor lessee. . :

5
The' assoclatlon s responsrbmty is to its members - the Assocratlon could then
) conduct penodlc revrew of the rules etc. NOT BEFORE’

REVISE THE WHOLE SECTION"’ _
10-7-41 Rental housing offers

Staff interpretation of my recommended change is incorrect. The submission
. was very clear. - ‘

. The: purpose is to honor and solidify DHHL‘s relationship with the apphcant first; N
has nothlng to do with the’ applrcantlrenter relationship. : _ i

The Department SHALL lnclude the Renta! Program Parameters up front, at EXHIBIT ?

§-



10-7-42 Kupuna housing.

Do something better than insisting that the Kupuna move m
“IMMEDIATELY” Wl e

10-7-43 Rental agreement controlling.

The department shall review the property management company’s final rental
agreement draft and shall present it to the Hawauan Homes Commission for
approval. -

Please revisit the notification for “Public Hearing”. Notice is mailed to all lessees
and applicants to participate in Consultation Proceedings. Why not for this
important step in the process to amend or adopt new HA Rules?

Advertising in a newspaper or on the website is unacceptable - Lessees and
Applicants are to be individually contacted, at least by mail.

I, for one, will not die on the website, waiting to see if something appears which [
should be responding to. Itis the department’s responsibility to directly contact us.
Depending on, or rationalizing on, or deferring to, what the HRS states does not
take precedence to contacting us, individually, for any business that the department
and HHC conducts on our behalf. ‘

Before the final draft is prepared, I need to discuss justification for not
implementing my suggestions.

EXHIBIT L



10-7-42

10-7-43

the beginning of the process. This is common sense. The interested
applicant will have tools for consideration, further questions, and finally
commitment.

NO ONE SHOULD HAVE TO DECIDE ON PARTICIPATING IN A PROGRAM
"HOPING" THAT SOMEDAY, AS SOON AS DHHL DEEMS PRACTICABLE!

WELL, EXCUSE ME!!II! REVISE!l!!

Kupuna housing

I am disappointed that you did not amend this section with my suggestion -
move in by six months as opposed to "immediately”.

How impractical is that - can anyone of you just move in fo someplace
"immediately”. REVISE!!!

Rental agreement controlling

The Department shall review the property management company'’s final rental
agreement and SHALL SUBMIT A RECOMMENDATION FOR APPROVAL TO

'THE HHC. REVISE!!!

®

I thank you all, in advance for your undivided, and concerted effort in reviewing these statements and
direction to staff to further review and propose better and accountable revisions to the proposed
. Administrative Rules. ' :

La Maika'i M Kanani Kapuniai 936-0157

ExHIBIT X



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

Adoption of Chapter 10-7
Hawaii Administrative Rules

SUMMARY

Chapter 10~7, Hawaii Administrative Rules,
entitled “Planned Communities, Multi-Family Complexes,
and Rental Housing”, 1is adopted.



HAWAIT ADMINISTRATIVE RULES

TITLE 10

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

CHAPTER 10-7

PLANNED COMMUNITIES, MULTI-FAMILY COMPLEXES, AND

Subchapter 1

§10-7-1
§10-7-2
§10-7-3
§10-7-4
§10-7-5

§§10-7-6 to 10-7-9

Subchapter 2

§10-7-10
§10-7-11

§§10-7-12 to 10-7-15

Subchapter 3

§10-7-16
§10-7-17
§10-7-18
§10-7-19
§10-7-20
§10-7-21
§10-7-22

RENTAL HOUSING

General Provisions

Definitions

Applicability of chapter
Method of disposition

Native Hawaiian cultural values
Interpretation

(Reserved)

The Declaration

Establishment of the declaration
Supplemental provisions of the declaration
(Reserved)

The Association

Establishment of the association
Period of declarant control
Membership

Voting

Vacant lots

Unoccupied units

Budget



§10-7-1

§§10-7-23 to 10-7-25 (Reserved)
Subchapter 4 Obligations of the Lessee

§10-7-26 Planned community education
§10-7-27 Association membership

§10-7-28 Payment of assessments

§10-7-29 Alteration of the unit prohibited
§§10-7-30 to 10-7-34 (Reserved)

Subchapter 5 Enforcement of Governing Documents

§10-7-35 Compliance required
§10-7-36 Enforcement

§10-7-37 Civil action

§§10-7-38 to 10-7-40 (Reserved)

Subchapter 6 Rental Housing

§10-7-41 Rental housing offers
§10-7-42 Kupuna housing

§10-7-43 Rental agreement controlling
§10-7-44 Successorship

§10-7-45 Vacant units

§10-7-46 Conversion to lessee

SUBCHAPTER 1

GENERAL PROVISIONS

§10-7-1 Definitions. As used in this chapter
and any kanawai or governing documents unless
otherwise required by the context:

“Assessments” means funds collected by an
association from association members to operate and
manage the association, maintain property within the
planned community or multi-family complex for the
common use or benefit of association members, or
provide services to association members.



§10-7-1

“Association” means a nonprofit, incorporated, or
unincorporated organization made up of all of the
lessees within a Hawaiian home lands planned community
or multi-family complex existing pursuant to covenants
running with the land. In certain circumstances, the
department may be part of the association.

“Board of directors” or “board” means the
governing board or other body, regardless of name,
designated in the governing documents to act on behalf
of the association.

“Declarant” means the department or any person or
entity to which the department has assigned any or all
of the rights and obligations of the declarant set
forth in the governing documents.

“Declaration” means any recorded instrument,
however denominated, that creates a Hawaiian home
lands planned community or multi-family complex,
including any amendments to the instrument.

“Developer” means a person or entity who is
contracted by the department to undertake development
of a planned community or multi-family complex for, or
in partnership with, the department.

“Governing documents” means the articles of
incorporation or other document creating the
association, the bylaws of the association, the
declaration or similar organizational documents and
any exhibits thereto, any rules related to use of
common areas, architectural control, maintenance of
units, restrictions on the use of units, or payment of
money as regular assessment or otherwise in connection
with the provisions, maintenance, or services for the
benefit of some or all of the units, the owners, or
occupants of the units or common areas, as well as any
amendments made to the foregoing documents.

“Lot” means any plot of land designated as a lot
upon any recorded subdivision map of the development
property and upon which a dwelling unit could be or
has been constructed in accordance with all relevant
Hawaii law. Lot shall not include the common areas.

“Member” means the lessee of a lot under a
homestead lease from the department, or anyone
included in the definition of a member under the



§10-7-1

governing documents.

“Multi-family complex” means a homestead or mixed
use development on Hawaiian home lands that is subject
to chapter 514A and 514B, HRS, as applicable, insofar
as it does not conflict with this title and the act.

“Planned community” means a homestead or mixed
use development on Hawaiian home lands that is subject
to chapter 421J, HRS, insofar as it does not conflict
with this title and the act.

“Property management company” means a person or
entity that is contracted by the department or the
developer to enter in to rental agreements with
renters and undertake daily operations and management
of a Hawaiian home lands rental housing development.

“Record” or “recorded” means to record in the
bureau of conveyances in accordance with chapter 502,
HRS, or to register in the land court in accordance
with chapter 501, HRS, as appropriate.

“Rental agreement” means all written agreements,
between a renter and the property management company
or department, or both, which establish or modify the
terms, conditions, rules, regulations, or any other
provisions concerning the use and occupancy of a
dwelling unit and premises, and may include an option
to purchase.

“Rental housing development” means a Hawaiian
home lands housing development, which may be comprised
of single family lots or multi-family housing complex,
or both, for which rental agreements govern the terms
and conditions of use and occupancy of the units. A
rental housing development shall be managed by a
property management company.

“Renter” means a native Hawaiian who occupies a
dwelling unit for dwelling purposes under a rental
agreement as part of a Hawailian home lands rental
housing development.

“Unit” or “dwelling unit” means any portion of
property, as improved, intended for use and occupancy
as a residence within a planned community or multi-
family complex. [Eff and comp ]

(Auth: HHC Act §222) (Imp: HHC Act §207.5)



§10-7-5

§10-7-2 Applicability of chapter. (a) This
chapter shall apply to all planned community
developments on Hawaiian home lands consisting of
single-family lots or a multifamily complex, or both
for which the declaration is recorded after the
effective date of this chapter.

(b) This chapter may apply to an association for
which the declaration was recorded before the
effective date of this chapter if adopted by a
majority vote of the association. [Eff and
comp 1 (Auth: HHC Act §222) (Imp:
HHC Act §207.5)

§10-7-3 Method of disposition. (a) The
department may award homestead leases under the
authority of this chapter.

(b) Any combination, or all of the department,
the developer, and the property management company may
enter into contracts of sale or rental agreements with
native Hawaiians as verified by the department. [Eff
and comp 1 (Auth: HHC Act §222) (Imp:
HHC Act §207.5)

§10-7-4 Native Hawaiian cultural wvalues. (a)
The governing documents shall take in to account and
embody native Hawaiian cultural values as appropriate
for the location, development, and lessees.

(b) General parameters and guidelines shall be
developed by the department through beneficiary
consultation. The finalized document shall be
approved by the commission and included in the
declaration. [Eff and comp ] (Auth:
HHC Act §222) (Imp: HHC Act §207.5)

§10-7-5 Interpretation This chapter and any



§10-7-10

governing documents subject hereto shall be
implemented and interpreted within the spirit of the
act, including to promote native Hawaiian values and
sense of place in the best interest of the lessees,
renters, and residents living in planned communities,
multi-family complexes, or rental housing developments
on Hawaiian home lands. [Eff and

comp ] (Auth: HHC Act §222) (Imp:

HHC Act §207.5)

§§10-7-7 to 10-7-9 (Reserved)

SUBCHAPTER 2

THE DECLARATION

§10-7-10 Establishment of the declaration. (a)
The declarant shall cause the declaration to be
drafted according to the following:

(1) The declaration shall be in conformity with
all relevant Hawaii law; and
(2) The declaration shall include the document

developed under subsection 10-7-4(b) and
accordingly take in to account and embody
native Hawaiian cultural values as
appropriate for the location and
development.

(b) Upon approval of the declaration by the
commission, the declarant shall record the
declaration. The declaration shall be recorded prior
to the execution of any lease or sales contract.

(¢) The declaration shall inhere in the land and
shall bind subseguent lessees. [Eff and
comp 1 (Auth: HHC Act §222) (Imp:
HHC Act §207.5)



§10-7-17

§10-7-11 Supplemental provisions of the
declaration. The declarant is authorized to adopt
supplemental provisions in accordance with this
chapter to implement and carry out the purposes of
this chapter; provided that any of the supplemental
provisions adopted shall not conflict with the act and
this title. [Eff and comp 1 (Auth:
HHC Act §222) (Imp: HHC Act §207.5)

§§10-7-13 to 10-7-15 (Reserved)

SUBCHAPTER 3

THE ASSOCIATION

§10-7-16 Establishment of the association. The
declarant shall establish the association not later
than the date upon which the first unit in the planned
community or a multi-family complex is ready for

occupancy. [Eff and comp ] (Auth: HHC
Act §222) (Imp: HHC Act §207.5)
§10-7-17 Period of declarant control. (a) As

appropriate for the development and when provided in
the declaration, the declarant may maintain a class B
membership in the association for a fixed period while
units are being awarded and first occupied. This
period shall be known as the period of declarant
control and shall terminate not later than the time at
which all units or lots have been transferred to
lessees.

(b) During the period of declarant control, the
declarant may appoint and remove the members of the



§10-7-20

board.

(c) Not later than four months before the
termination of any period of declarant control, the
members shall elect a board of directors as provided
in the governing documents. The declarant and the
department shall coordinate with the newly member-
elected board to transition from declarant control in
a transparent manner that ensures the member-elected
board is equipped and prepared to govern the
association. [Eff and comp ] (Auth:
HHC Act §222) (Imp: HHC Act §207.5)

§10-7-18 Membership. The association may be
made up of lessees and the declarant, and divided in
to two membership classes.

(1) Lessees shall maintain a class A
membership.
(2) The declarant may maintain a class B

membership for a fixed period. Class B
membership shall terminate and may convert
to a class A membership not later than the
time at which the period of declarant
control terminates. [Eff and

comp 1 (Auth: HHC Act §222)
(Imp: HHC Act §207.5)

§10-7-19 Voting. Class A membership and class B
membership shall have voting powers as set by the
declarant in the declaration, provided each class A
member shall have one vote and, during the period of
declarant control, class B membership shall have a
greater number of votes per lot or unit than class A

membership. [Eff and comp ] (Auth:
HHC Act §222) (Imp: HHC Act §207.5)
§10-7-20 Vacant lots. (a) Assessments rates



§10-7-22

shall be set after the lots have been designed and
plotted, number of lots in the development are
finalized, and preliminary budget determined. Lots
intended to be vacant due to engineering constraints
or health and safety concerns shall not be included in
calculating the pro-rata assessment amounts. If a lot
becomes unsuitable for a residence, assessments shall
be recalculated to exclude the unsuitable lot.

_{b) Assessments due on vacant lots that are
awarded as owner-builder or self-help are the
responsibility of the lessee upon the signing of the
lease. [Eff and comp ] (Auth: HHC Act
§222) (Imp: HHC Act §207.5)

§10-7-21 TUnoccupied units. (a) The department
shall use all due diligence to fill developed units
that become unoccupied. The department shall not be
responsible for assessments due on those units unless
the assessments lost due to the number of empty units
threatens the viability of the association.

(b) An association with unoccupied units shall
report annually to the department regarding income and
projected economic viability. If economic viability
is threatened, the association may request payment of
future assessments from the department until the empty
units are filled. Such request is subject to approval
by the commission. If approved, amounts due shall
accrue from the date of receipt by the department, as
indicated on the date and time stamp, of the request
from the association. [Eff and comp ]
(Auth: HHC Act §222) (Imp: HHC Act §207.5)

§10-7-22 Budget. Each association shall adopt a
budget and rate schedule, according to the governing
documents, and submit the budget and rate schedule to
the department between June 1 and June 30 of each
yvear. [Eff and comp ] (Auth: HHC Act
§222) (Imp: HHC Act §207.5)



§10-7-27

§§10-7-23 to 10-7-25 (Reserved)

SUBCHAPTER 4

OBLIGATIONS OF THE LESSEE

§10-7-26 Planned community education. (a) To
facilitate informed decision-making by homestead
applicants, before award letters are mailed, the
department shall notify the appropriate applicant
field of a mandatory planned community orientation.
This orientation shall provide an overview of rights,
responsibilities, obligations, and benefits of planned
community living, as well as possible consequences for
non-compliance. If there is an existing association,
that association shall participate in the orientation.

(b) Prior to signing a lease, the future lessee
of a new planned community shall attend a planned
community education training program approved by the
department, which shall include training specific to
the development regarding member and association
obligations and rights, and community planning and
governance.

(c) The association shall develop and conduct an
orientation for lessees, transferees, and successors
moving into an existing planned community. The
department shall notify the association of lease
transfers and successorships to facilitate the
orientation process conducted by the association.

[Eff and comp ] (Auth: HHC Act §222)
(Imp: HHC Act §207.5)

§10-7-27 Association membership. (a) TUpon
gsigning the lease, the lessee shall become a member of
the association. By signing the lease, lessee also
agrees to abide by the governing documents.



§10-7-35

(b) Lessees shall ensure that members of their
family who reside with the lessee, and guests and
invitees of such lessee, observe and perform the
provisions regarding use and occupancy set forth in
the governing documents. [Eff and
comp ] (Auth: HHC Act §222) (Imp:
HHC Act §207.5)

§10-7-28 Payment of assessments. The lessee
shall pay assessments to the association in accordance
with the governing documents. [Eff and
comp ] (Auth: HHC Act §222) (Imp:
HHC Act §207.5)

§10-7-29 Alteration of the unit prohibited. The
lessee shall not construct or alter any improvements
on the property except in accordance with the
governing documents and with written approval of the
department under section 10-3-34. [Eff and
comp 1 (Auth: HHC Act §222) (Imp:
HHC Act §207.5)

§810-7-30 to 10-7-34 (Reserved)

SUBCHAPTER 5

ENFORCEMENT OF GOVERNING DOCUMENTS

§10-7-35 Compliance required. The association,
all lessees, and other persons lawfully in possession
and control of any property interest shall comply with
the bylaws, any rules lawfully adopted by the



§10-7-37

association, and any covenant, condition, and
restriction set forth in any recorded document to

which they are subject. [Eff and comp
] (Auth: HHC Act §222) (Imp: HHC Act §207.5)
§10-7-36 Enforcement. (a) The declaration

shall include a formal process for the association to
enforce the governing documentsg, including collection
of delinguent assessments and any lease violations.

(b) The association shall adopt a collection
policy with formal procedures whereby the lessee shall
have the opportunity to settle amounts owed the
association, including but not limited to delinquent
assessments, penalties, late fees, and associated
costs, before private legal action to collect the debt
is taken under the authority of the association and
section 10-7-37.

(c) If collection of the debt is unsuccessful
through private legal action under the authority of
the association and section 10-7-37, the association
may petition the commission for a contested case
hearing for lease cancellation pursuant to this title.
The decision and order of a contested case hearing may
direct the department to assume the outstanding debt
on the unit, including but not limited to delinguent
assessments, penalties, late fees, and associated
costs.

(d) The association shall adopt formal
procedures for the enforcement of lease viclations
other than delinquent assessments whereby the lessee
shall have at least 90 days to cure the violation. If
the lessee fails to cure the violation within the time
provided, the association may petition the commission
for a contested case hearing for lease cancellation
pursuant to this title. [Eff and
comp 1 (Auth: HHC Act §222) (Imp:

HHC Act §207.5)

§10-7-37 Civil action. Any violation is grounds

7-12



§10-7-41

for the association, any lessee, or lawful interest
holder to commence a civil action for damages,
injunctive relief, or both, and an award of court
costs and reasonable attorney's fees in both types of
action. The department shall not be party to any
civil suit related to the violation of or
noncompliance with the bylaws, any rules lawfully
adopted by the association, or any covenant,
condition, and restriction set forth in any recorded
document. [Eff and comp ] (Auth: HHC
Act §222) (Imp: HHC Act §207.5)

§§10-7-38 to 10-7-40 (Reserved)

SUBCHAPTER 6

RENTAL HOUSING

§10-7-41 Rental housing offers. (a) If rental
housing is available, the department and the property
management company shall coordinate to offer the
rental housing to native Hawalians.

(1) The department shall notify residential
applicants on the respective area or island
wide waiting lists of the rental housing
opportunity.

(2) The department shall provide the property
management company with the list of native
Hawaiians, who replied to the notice in
paragraph (1), in rank order according to
the appropriate waiting list.

(3) The property management company shall
identify qualified potential renters from
the list based upon the rental program
parameters and notify the department.

(4) The department shall verify the



§10-7-42

application status of those native Hawaiians
identified by the property management
company as qualified for the rental program.
Upon verification, the department or the
property management company, or both, shall
make the rental housing offers.

(b) Project-specific parameters shall be
provided to the applicant pool as soon as practicable.
[Eff and comp ] (Auth: HHC Act §222)

(Imp: HHC Act §207.5)

§10-7-42 Kupuna housing. (a) A native
Hawaiian, fifty-five years or older may be eligible
for kupuna housing. If kupuna housing is available,
the department shall notify native Hawaiians that
would meet the age requirement for the kupuna housing
development. The department and the property
management company shall then proceed under section
10-7-41, as applicable.

(b) If a lessee accepts a kupuna housing offer,
the lessee shall immediately occupy the kupuna housing
unit and, within six months, either transfer or
surrender his or her homestead lease. Upon accepting
a kupuna housing offer, the lessee becomes a renter
and a previous lessee under section 10-3-23.

(c) If the list compiled under subsection (a)
has been exhausted and units are still available, the
property management company may accept as renters
native Hawailans that are not homestead applicants,
lessees, or previous lessees 1f the potential renter
is:

(1) Verified by the department as eligible

for Hawaiian home lands under the act; and

(2) Qualified for the kupuna housing develcpment

by the property management company.

(d) The renter’'s spouse may reside in the unit
with the renter. An additional occupant, including an
adopted minor or a legal caregiver, may also reside
with the renter in the unit as allowed by applicable
state or federal law. [Eff and comp ]



§10-7-45

(Auth: HHC Act §222) (Imp: HHC Act §207.5)

§10-7~43 Rental agreement controlling. The
department shall review the property management
company’s final rental agreement. The rental
agreement shall control the rights, responsibilities,
and obligations, including eviction, between the
renter and the property management company. The
rental agreement shall comply with the Hawaii landlord
and tenant code, chapter 521, HRS, and the Fair
Housing Act insofar as they do not conflict with the

act. [Eff and comp ] (Auth: HHC Act
§222) (Imp: HHC Act §207.5)
§10-7-44 Successorship. (a) If the renter is a

homestead applicant, a successor under section 10-3-8
may succeed to the rental agreement; provided the
successor meets the rental program requirements that
apply to the specific unit. If the successor does not
meet the rental program requirements or refuses the
unit, the successor shall succeed to the appiication
as provided in section 10-3-8.

(b) For kupuna housing, a spouse eligible to
succeed under section 209 of the act and gqualified for
the kupuna housing unit may succeed to the kupuna
housing rental agreement. [Eff and
comp 1 (Auth: HHC Act §222) (Imp:
HHC Act §207.5)

§10-7-45 Vacant units. To ensure units do not
become vacant for unnecessarily long periods of time,
the property management company shall request from the
department, as appropriate, names of additional
potential renters. Upon such request, the department
and the property management company shall proceed
under section 10-7-41. If parameters of the previous



§10-7-46

offering have not changed, the department shall
provide notice to the list of applicants in rank order
from the application date of the last applicant
previously contacted for the rental housing
development. [Eff and comp ] (Auth:
HHC Act §222) (Imp: HHC Act §207.5)

§10-7-46 Conversion to lessee. A renter who is
a homestead applicant shall remain a homestead
applicant during the rental periocd. The renter’'s
homestead application and rank on any waiting list
shall be maintained without regard to his or her
status as a renter. The renter shall become a lessee
upon signing a homestead lease. [Eff and
comp ] (Auth: HHC Act §222) (Imp:
HHC Act §207.5)



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

Chapter 10-7, Hawaii Administrative Rules, on

Summary Page dated [ ], following public
hearings held on [ 1, after public
notice was given on [ lin the Honolulu

Star-Advertiser, The Maui News, West Hawaii Today,
Hawaii Tribune-Herald, and The Garden Island; and in
the Molokai Dispatch on [ 1.

The adoption of chapter 10-7 shall take effect
ten days after filing with the Office of the
Lieutenant Governor.

JOBIE M. K. MASAGATANI, Chairman
Hawaiian Homes Commission

APPROVED:

DAVID Y. IGE, Governor
State of Hawaii

Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

()

De t?yhttofney General

Filed



D ITEMS



STATE OF HAWATI
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

May 20, 2018

TO: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission
From: Dean T. Oshiro, Acting HSD Administrator
SUBJECT: Homestead Services Division Status Reports

RECOMMENDED MOTIQN/ACTION

NONE

DISCUSSION

The following reports are for information only:

Exhibit A: Homestead Lease & Application Totals
and Monthly Activity Reports

Exhibit B: Delinguency Report

Exhibit C: DHHL Guarantees for USDA-RD Mortgage
Loans

Exhibit D: DHHL Guarantees for FHA Construction
Loans

ITEM NO. D-1




May 20, 2019

SUBJECT: Homestead Lease and Application Totals and Monthly Activity Reports

LEASE ACTIVITY REPORT

Month through Aprit 30, 2019

As of As of

3/31/18 Add Cancel 4/30/19
Residential 8,372 5 0 8,377
Agriculturual 1,096 0 0 1,096
Pastoral 410 0 0 410
Total 9,878 5 0 9,883

The number of Converted Undivided Interest Lessees represents an increase of 450
families moving into homes. Their Undivided Interest lease was converted to a regular

homestead lease.

Rescinded/
As of Surrendered/ As of
3/31/19 Converted Cancelled 4/30/19
Undivided 872 0 0 B72
Balance as of 4/30/2019
Awarded 1,434
Relocated to UNDV 7
Rescinded 111
Surrendered 5
Cancelled 3
Converted 450
Balance to Convert B72

ITEM NO,

EXHIBIT A

D-1



|ease Report For the Month Ending April 30, 2019

e RESIDENCE asies AGRICULTURE semven ——— PASTURE ——— = TOTAL LEASES ~—-
Last Month  Add Cancel TOTAL  Las Montf; Add Cancel TOTAL  LastMonth Add Cancel TOTAL Lasi Month Add Cancel TOTAL
OAHU
Hoslimalima 00 0 70 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 )] 0 o 0
Kakaina 2 0 o 21 L] 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0 21 0 0 I
Kalawahine 9 0 0 91 ] 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 H
Kanehili 30 0 1] kL) ] 0 ] 0 0 a 0 B9 0 o 359
Kapalei 25 0 0 235 L] 0 1] [} 0 0 25 0 0 235
Kauluckahal 19 2 o 21 a 0 0 0 0 0 Q 0 19 2 0 21
Kaupea 328 0 0 325 ] 0 1) 0 0 0 0 26 0 0 325
Kaupuni 19 0 o 19 0o 0 0 1] 0 D 0 0 19 0 0 19
Kewalo 48 0 0 249 g 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 249 0 o 249
Kumuhau 52 0 0 52 o 0 0 1] 0 0 Q 0 52 0 0 52
Lualualei 49 0 0 149 "o 0 K3 0 0 Q 0 180 0 0 180
Malu'ghat % 0 0 156 L] 0 ] 0 0 0 0 156 0 0 158
Nanakuli 147 0 0 1,047 0 0 0 1] 0 0 a 0 1,47 0 0 1,047
Papakolea [ ] 0 54 L] 0 0 0 0 0 0 64 0 0 64
Princess Kahanu Estates 21 0 0 M 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 70 0 21
Waizghole 0 0 0 0 % 0 0 16 0 0 Q 0 16 0 0 16
Waianze H9 0 4 449 " 0 0 b4l 0 0 g 0 430 0 ] 430
Waimanalo w0 0 724 2 0 0 2 0 0 qQ [ 726 0 0 726
TOTAL 4210 z 0 4,212 60 0 0 b6 0 0 0 [ 4,330 2 0 4,332
[MADI
Hikina nm oA 0 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 ] 0 o 1 0 A
Kahikinut [ 0 0 0 0 0 0 7|0 0 75 B0 0 IH
Keokea 0 0 0 0 65 0 0 65 00 il 1) 65 0 1] 65
Lealii 04 0 0 104 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 104
Paukukalo 180 0 0 130 [ ] 0 0 0 0 0 ] 180 0 0 130
Waiehu 1 1?0 0 39 0 0 0 0 [} [} 0 3 0 0 39
Waiehu 2 08 0 0 109 g 0 0 0 [} 0 0 09 0 0 109
Waiehu 3 14 0 0 114 a9 0 0 ] 0 o0 0 0 "4 0 0 114
Waiehu 4 5 0 0 97 g 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 97 0 0 97
Waichuli 593 0 0 593 a o 0 L} ¢ 0 0 0 593 0 0 593
TOTAL 1,266 1 0 1,267 65 0 0 65 B0 1] 75 1406 1 0 1,407
[EAST HAWAN
Diseovery Harbour 2 0 0 2 00 0 )] o0 0 0 2 0 Q 2
Kamaoa 0 0 0 0 g 0 0 0 #B0 0 25 25 0 L] 25
Kaumana 42 0 0 42 00 0 0 0 0 0 ] 42 0 a 42
Keaukaha 474 0 0 474 9 0 0 ] 00 0 0 40 0 41
Kurtistown 3 0 0 3 a4 0 0 0 o0 0 0 I 0 Q 3
Makuu /] 0 0 121 0 0 121 T 0 0 ] 121 0 0 121
Panaewa 0 0 0 0 262 0 0 262 o 0 0 )] %2 0 0 262
Piihenua i7 0 0 i7 o0 0 0 0 o0 0 0 7 0 0 17
Puugo 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 12 00 0 0 12 0 0 12
Universtty Heights 4 0 0 4 10 ] 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 4
Waiakea 298 0 0 293 ] 0 0 o0 0 [ 28 0 1] 293
TOTAL 840 - 0 0 340 KL 0 395 25 0 0 25 1,260 0 0 1,260
WEST HAWAII
Honokaia 0 0 0 0 [ ] 0 [ 24 0 0 1} 24 0 0 bLt
Humuula a 0 M 0 [ 0 0 5 0 0 § 5 0 0 )
Kamoku 0 0 0 0 [ ] o [ % 0 0 16 % 0 0 1§
Kanlchale 24 0 0 24 00 o [ 0 0 0 o 248 0 0 24
Kawaihae 188 2 o 190 00 0 [ 1 0 0 1 1% 0 0 189
Lalopua 284 0 0 234 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 264 0 0 284,
Lalamila K 1{ ] o 30 0 40 )] 1] 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 30
Nianie 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2t 0 0 il 1] 0 21
Puukapu/WaimeaKubio Vil 16 0 0 116 10 @ 0 110 25 0 0 215 41 0 0 441
Puupulehu B0 0 n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 33
TOTAL 875 2 0 877 10 0 0 110 |2 0 0 282 1,260 2 0 1,267
KAVAI
Anahala 54 0 0 534 % 0 0 45 0o 0 0 0 580 O 0 580
Hanapepe 47 0 0 47 0 0 Q 0 0 0 0 0 a7 0 0 47
Kekaha i 0 0 17 00 0 0 [ 0 0 11 0 0 17
Puu Opae 00 0 [ 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 1
TOTAL 638 0 0 698 46 0 0 46 1 L} 0 1 745 0 0 745
MOLOKAI
Hoolehua 156 0 0 158 Mg 0 0 6 21 0 0 b1 523 0 0 523
Kalamatla 163 0 0 183 10 0 " 30 0 3 237 0 0 237
Kapaakea 47 0 0 47 0 0 0 0 i 0 0 3 50 4 0 50,
Mocmomi 00 0 o 3 0 0 3 0 90 0 0 30 0 3
Q'ne Alii 28 d 0 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28 0 0 28
TOTAL 394 L] 0 394 20 0 0 420 217 0 L} 27 341 0 0 841
LANAI
Lanai 2 0 0 29 0 0 0 0 [ 0 ] 29 0 29
TOTAL 23 0 4 29 00 0 0 00 0 ] 29 0 0 29
STATEWIDE TOTAL 3312 & 0 8,377 09 0 0 1,096 L 0 410 98718 5 0 9.383|

EXHIBIT-A

ITEM NO. D-1



0z aVLOL

0 payienbun DHN

0 abealoy BUOIPPY

0 ,_Ommwuuzw ON _u_umn_

0 syuawsnipy OHH rLO‘SE 850'¢ £E6'8L £20'6T
0 sd|ysiossanong asean 19 V1oL 18 0 0 /8

0 suolje|jeaue) ABjUnos 5} spawysnpy OHH POLT 0z 8:0't ¥Z8

0 [80UBQ 820N Algnd 1] sjawajelsusy ddy ZET'Y oze 622'T 249°L
0 UMQ ]93B pUE pINg o SUOISSIDSaY BSEaT ZZ0's1 ri6'l BET'L 698'S
6 si8)suel) ucyeoddy 6 sugjsuel | uoyes)|ddy £EL6 919 699't 8re'e
Ll Splemy eses] MeN zs suopeolddy maN 9gp'vl 0 gL's 2812'03

SNOLLYTI13INYD | SNOLLIaaY | IviolL sSvd oy CEL
699°EY 816'C £ z 646'Z 0888l ¥ £2 198'1 LSl £l 9g 88L°LT
18 0 0 0 i} 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 8
5902 102 0 ] Loz 0%01 0 0 0g0l 708 0 b £og
051y BE2 0 0 962 9zz'z b l 9zz'z 9z9'l L b 929’
gLe'pL gog'l z 1 698't Hz'e z £l 00z'L 6EL'S 4 43 LeL's
¥10'6 119 b 1 L9 599'y 1 ¢ £99't 86.'€ z € 26L'S
siv'el ] 0 0 1] 8LL'E 0 9 ZLL'e 151'6 g 6 PrLE
AVLOL vioL laoues ppy  Ljuop ise AVLOL jaaues ppY  Yuop iseq aviol laauen ppy  Yuop iseq
| JMNISYd [ ANLINIIEDY JoN3AIS3IY

SYE'L 08 0 0 08 £5 0 0 £5 zZLz'L 0 0 ZIz'L
BE b 0 0 L 8l 0 0 8l 0z 0 0 0z

z8 9z 0 ] 74 € ] 0 £ 1 0 0 s
roz av 0 0 ot 0z 0 0 8z 0gl 0 0 0EL

85 g 0 0 g ¥ 0 0 v 0s 0 0 05

196 0 0 0 0 0 0 1] 0 196 i) 0 L96
vioL vlioL [e3ue) PPY  juoW iseq viol [23UR) PPY IO ISE] AVLOL [oSueg ppy  Yiuop 3sen

[ FUNLEYd [ FHOLINIEDY JoNIAISTY
6L0Z ‘0g dy

ONIONT HLNOW 3H1 804 1H0d3d ATHLNOW 1S ONILIVM SNOLLVIITddY 3AIMANVTIS]I ANV VUV av3LS3INOH

IVLOL
I¥NY1
IVAOTOW
VA
IIVMYH
1NV
NHYO

S1S17 IUIMANYIS] ANV VIHV

V1ol
eue]
ENOION
1eney
nemeH
Inefy
nyeo
aNY1S!

LS ONLLIVM SAIMANYISI

VL0l
Ui B0
121481 tEney
PLISIq IemeH
W1As10 e
1auIstd MyeQ
VIUY LIMLSIa

LS17 ONLLIVA V3NV

ITEM
EXHIBIT A

-a-



v10'st 250°¢ € z 650' ££6'8L 4 £Z 14731 £T0'ET £l -1 000°cZ
699'ch 816°C £ z 616'C 08a'sl v £z 19881 (A X ¥ gl 9g 88L°1T
StE'l 08 0 0 08 €5 0 0 €5 T 0 0 TIZTL
i8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 i8 0 0 8
i8 0 0 [i 0 0 0 0 [V 18 0 0 8
oL’z z0Z 0 0 z0Z 840°L 0 0 8.0'L A 0 ! £Z8
S90'Z 102 0 [i L0Z 080°L 0 0 090" 08 0 3 £08
6E L 0 0 L gL 0 0 8l 0z 0 0 0z
1 ] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 L 0 0 L
L ] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 ] L
1z 3 0 0 b gL 0 0 8L 8 0 ] 8
¥ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ¥ 0 ] 4
zZsz'y 9zg 0 0 T4 6ZZ'T i L 622'T L19°) L L LiY')
05L't 96C 0 0 862 9zT'T i 3 Er74 9za'L 3 1 Ty
z8 i 0 0 8z £ 0 0 £ 15 ] ] (£
Sl yl 0 0 Fi 0 0 0 0 g ] ] g
19 1z 0 0 (¥4 £ 0 0 £ 5 ] 0 £t
Zz0'sy ¥16'L z L SL6'L 654 z £l 8zz'L 698°'S ¥ zk 198's
8l8'y 898"1 F L 692°} Le's F4 £l 00Z'L 6eL'G ¥ zh 1€2'S
¥02 av 0 0 o 82 0 0 8z (o] 0 ] (A
£0} at 0 0 T zh ] 0 4! = 0 0 St
ol ] 0 0 0 ] ] 0 0 gt 0 0 94
0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0
o] 0 0 0 0 gl 0 0 gt 0 0 0 0
69 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 69 0 0 69
££1°6 gLg I L gL9 699 ) £ 199'% Bre'E z £ g’
¥.0'6 L9 1 L 119 5e9't L € £99'f 6L'E z £ 16L'€
6% S 0 ] S ¥ ] 0 14 0s ] ] 05
6 S 0 0 S ¥ ] 0 v 0 0 ] 0
0% 0 0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 05 0 ] a5
SEFVL 0 0 0 0 8LL'E 0 9 ZLi'e gL2'0L 9 61 S0L'01
SIV'EL 0 0 0 0 gLL'e 0 9 zZLL'e i51'6 9 61 vri'e
196 0 o] ] 0 ] 0 0 0 196 0 0 196
815 0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 85 0 0 8IS
¥ 0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 LL 0 0 LL
] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
44} ] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 vl ] ] zyrl
04L 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0Ll 0 ) 743
IVLOL Iv10L [30ueD ppy  LPUOW ISET] IvLOL |2duen ppy Yo jse IviOL 122ueD ppy  yjuop ise

[ 3HNLSVd | FENLINDINOY | IONIAISTH

610Z '0g 1udy

DNIAONT HINOW JHL HOd LHOdIH ATHINOW LSTT ONILIVAL SNOILYDTddV JAIMANY IS ANV v3dy avaLSIWOH

JAIMILYLS TVLOL
JAIMANYIS] TVLOL
ATNO vY3dv TW10L
Sddv IYNV] V101

apimpue|s|
LOIH1S1a IVNY]
SddV¥ VHOIOW Tv10lL

apmpuels|

B3Iy [Bl0}qnS

Hiy sUQ

eayeede)y

BNY3|CoH

B|NELIE|EY
LOHLSIA (YHOI0ONW
SddV¥ IVNVYY TYLOL

OPIMPUE|S]

ealy [Bjong

aedQ nndreyexay

B|oyBUY
LIIMLSIA IVNYH

SddV IVMYH TVLOL
SPIMPUE]S]
EQUY [BIOIQNG
BAWEAA
ABYIEMEY
BnwnK
BMIEURH
BONRIBAA/EUBNNEDY
LOIYLSIA livAVH
Sddv INVIA Tv1lOL
Ipimpue|s|
B3y [BIOIQNS
BNy
o[eynyned
LOMLSIA INYIN
Sdd¥ NHVO Y10l
apimpues|
ealy [elogng
C[BUBIIBAA
ojemad|/es[oxeded
@jenjen
SBUBIEAA
I[nyeueN
1J141s1a NHVO

EXHIBIT A

4



uanbuljap 18 p6' 2654 16°CS Bu|eto) ‘Sueot 91 "§1L0Z '0E SUNF 1O SE pR'ERS' L00'ZOLS 4O souBjeq [edidund BuIPUBISING [210) B UM ‘SUBC| 6Gp Sey wesboid Ueo| Ypgl QNH 9JON

%L ¢k ¥r8'0e
%6 L1 %8¥h ¥re'0e
%L8 %E0r 0z89r
%95 %89
%216 %6p8  0z8‘oL
%SG°E %eE
%2 0Z %9%C
%E'y %6'¥
%00 %00
%E96  %G/B
%0°001 %000l
%00 %00
%L9S  %PSS
%L'BE  %PiL
%00 %00
%IEE  %IBE  YZO'vL
%001 %001
%691
%89z  %9SZ VIOVl
%68 %19z cv0c
%LGL  %ZZl  Z0E
%6 %OEZ  Obp
%621 %86l (R
%ZTE %98 9I€'t
%OCTE  %ilz  10§'Z
g ON FUT
{sop0o)
610Z/0¢i¥

S{ejol Jo %

Fi43

%Sl
vl

¥i
9
£l
A
A4

59

oN

{s1an0g) sfeq 0g!l

90g'st
¥9.'9¢

LIS5¢
655 ¥¢
6Lt
£e9
YLl

viL

I

w

[ B o

062
z
0
962'L
Zrl'e
0

050°Z1

£¢5'8

%
Los'e

€69
(A
08
T4
oz
Zo8’L

iy
{s000)

895

-—
| =
L]

[=2]
|
=

< w0 O
—
o Ol ™M

(3]

O%FO#Q’ONlm

Lz

LZe

%Sv
144

wl

{ubiH) sheq 06
NSy

8912
89tz

0

[r]

o

[aNoNaNeNolalNeNall-

590°C

cL
80}
6El
8lLe
18Z°L

Uiy
{s000)

(wnipapy) sAeq 09

o o
™N N

N O ol

SO0 Ooooo

%L'2
9z

€

¥

¥l

ON

L9
(824

-

o g Ol
-

Qo000 0o oo

1292

49
vy
S60'L

Y
{s000)

£e
£e

(=2 =R |

OO0 000 000

(A%

¥l

ON

(mo) sheq 0g

09Z'1L8
LL22L

Iy
655 v
Z5LLL
9€0°}

9vL’L
b

0

174
L

0
96z}
rik'e

£9.'0g

£v5'g

%892
vzz'ze

vE9
8sy'l
vEZ'Y
199'LE

oy
(s000)

_.G.._m:cm___mn_ ejoL

{spuesnoy]g)
6102 '0Z AEN

668
Z49

578

061
6Z1

w

|

- 2]

(]

O%PO\"Q’ONN

9iv

iZ¢

%95
6¥Z

[t
Ll
0z
9l
19

433
BN

IAIMILYLS - 1HOd3H AONINONIT3A

8Zt'619 652 STVLOL A3L1snrayvy
588'019 ZES'P AHAPY DXI)STVLOL TIVHIAD
207'68F T3 SNVOT SNi VL0l
ECe V¥ 08¢ SUBOT PAINSU| YHA
zol'gl Z51 A1aa028y 10} GINDISSYIN ANH
z82'62 ogl sueo [Nd
662°8% (%3 ATINVHYND TVLOL
85z Lt YHO
09z'lL 8 wiatuf YHA
LOE al Aunod g Ao
z 1 SHN tinyeueN
v G funo) inep
602 95 fiuewny Joj yevgey
966°€E 182 ay-vasn
6 b vas
BT OF ounr Jo 58 S35 NvaYND NYO T
zZzr'Le 00zZ') S8UBAPY § SNVO1 THHA
cY5's 122 (Ld¥ Buipnjoul) sasueapy
%0001 %0°00L
6.9'Z8 £.6 1953410 TVL0L
SS501 85 iYW
809'Z 66 YN
8rL'g L8 YYOTOW
£2e'8 L8 IMAMYH LSIM
gaL'cL €1z IIVAMVYH 1Sv3
£9¥'9E S0F NHYO
A N — SRYOTLo3d1d
{s000)

Buipugising (eloL

EXHIBIT B



nueQ—e—  [|RIBAQ ~X~

6L.- 8L, 1€3 |edsid

& 8, e, 6. L & & % & & % &
o, “2, ‘4, Y % % ‘5 m, %, %
. ‘c7 en-qr w8 cz ¥8 7T BV
ag-97 %2°9C %5797 %€°97 %797 $9°9z g.°-97 ¥6 9% %0797 X
MAE:EI;!]!V_A X > ¢ X N V_A&\el\.l}x K X
+’ - *
— T se0r %8°6C 47 0% 20" %9°0¢ %8°6Z %0°0¢€
s0-ze 0 OF 50-zg °0 It %8°T¢ %G 1€

1oday oney Asusnbuleq
sueoT 12adiq
NHVO

%00

%0°G1l

%0°0¢

%0°'S¥

ITEM NO. D-1
EXHIBIT B




IeMEH 1SE] —e—  [[BIBAQ X

6}.- 8}, JE3 |EISI]

& & & P> & & & & & & % &
o 4, ‘%, ‘%, “%, ", % ) “a T, %, %,
: : : _ _ _ _ : _ . . %00
%0°Gl
™
: . 96" 50797 8-z o /¢ e
bhg oz  ¥CT9T gg 97 BETIT %P9 49797 g9z 36 SC o0 KK
thl,iix X X > < X Xix.i%%% >4 K
—— — | yo0e
Q\/\!\‘II&/‘|0\.\\\.\@@P@N s 0f  %2°0€ %L.°8¢
- R . - \m
sz ze TOTE gipc ¥PITE BETTIE ggpe gerre OO LE
%0’ G

Moday oney Lousnbuijag
sueoT 319811
IIVMVH 1SVv3

ITEM NC. D-1
EXHIBIT B




IBMEH ]SO\ —8—  [|BIOAQD —Xo~

6L, - 81, 1BIA [EOSId

P g s & & & & & & & % &
o A‘@v : % ‘e, ’ % .P@v “4 % ‘9 7 ", %
: - _ : : _ _ _ _ : : %00
%0°Gl
<f
V_A......l.‘.;.i.iaV_A X X X > < V_All\\\.n,v\..aM.A V_A omva %R P 2L ¥ve
e 97 %C 9T %5797 %E'97 ¥V°9C 29797 gL-gz IO ¢ B079r ¥8'ST
%0°0€
. - %0 5%

Hoday oney Asuanbuijeg
SUBO0T }9al1Qg
[IVAMAVH LS3M

D-1

ITEM NO.
EXHIBIT B



YOO —8—  |[2IBAQ Ko

6L, - 8L, 1B3A |BOSL]

6, ) ) & & & & & & o 8 8
306 RE6 486 40°07 %0°TT
3ETT 89S TT g1-77 - $€°TT
AR
-~
-_..Il..l..iz...i.l...x
e =K o
K X X X X oK X Ky SETE

9g-97 %2792 %6797 $E£°9T V9T %9°97 g, -9z 0 ST %0°9T

Hoday oney Asuanbuljeg
sueoT 12a.41q
IVMOTON

%00

%0°GL

%0'0€

%0'GY

ITEM NO. D-1
EXHIBIT B




Ieney| —e— ([BIBAQ ~K—

61, - 81, JESA |BISIH

6. &% % > & &, & & 8 8 ) 5
Z ,\@ " c\& 4 Q.MY < Q@\u v OGAV . \__.O\m\ Z Avo \0@.9 Q\WNY ;“\W.. @n\\w.. \.ﬁ&*
%G°CT
30 7T WL 5991
) -
BT°ST 20°ST oo . \\x\\\\\\¢;f/fff4
%8 L
o it x ..MA
NV X X X X Sy K X % 38 pz 3L VT
s8-97 %C 9T 85797 %E°9T $P°9C $9°97 g,-9g OO0 S¢ %079z ¥B'ST

Hoday oijey Asuanbuljeq
sueoT joa11qg
Vv

%00

%0°SL

%0°0€

%0°SY

ITEM NO. D-1
EXHIBIT B




e —e— [[BIBAL) Ko

61, - 81, 1BDA [€IS1d

% % %
4 4 o
C, 0, (=]

4 C Ly

$G°92C 3L°9¢C

%9792 &L°9¢

%6°S¢C

e,

V*A....si.iisisii.i... ...V*A

V_Aiiiiix

ag-p7 Bt VL

S

BV°SC  %6°6T

%/°87 %1°6C

%8°8¢ %9°8¢

Hoday| oney Asuanbuijsg

sueo| 3109211
INVIN

%00

%0°GL

%002

%06y

D-1

ITEM NO.
EXHIEBIT B



May 20, 2019

SUBJECT: DHHL Guarantees for USDA-Rural Development Mortgage

Loans

DISCUSSION: The Department issued guarantees for the following
USDA Rural Development loans:

LOT NO. AREA

89-A Keokea-
Waiohuli
48 Anahola

5-A Hoolehua

FY Ending 6/30/18

Previous Months
This Month
FY 718-'19 to date

LESSEE

Tinao,

Anuhea M.A.

Kohatsu, Brian T.

Iginoetf,

dow o |

Elizabeth I..

Loan Date
Amount Approved

$243,500 3/7/18

$356,500 3/14/19
$176,468 4/24/19

Balance

$ 682,166

S 995,072
776,468

5 1,771,540

ITEM NC. D-1
EXHIBIT C




May 20, 2019

SUBJECT: DHHL Guarantees for FHA Construction Loans

DISCUSSION: The Department issues guarantees to FHA lenders
during the construction period of a home, as FHA does
not insure the loan until the home is completed. The
loan term for these loans do not exceed fifteen (15)
months from the date of loan signing. The following
FHA Interim Construction loans were issued
guarantees:

*Note: FHA loans are insured by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and do not impact
the State’s guaranty ceiling.

Loan Date
LEASE NO. AREA LESSEE Amount Approved
10422 Waichuli Kintareo, Maile K.K. $327,110 4/3/19
4004-A Panaewa Rawlins, Makaala J. $188,930 4/16/719
11786 Kapolei Akiu, Renee H. $256,505 4/22/19
No. Balance
FY Ending 6/30/18 3 5 885,331
Previous Months 12 | § 3,367,142
This Month 3 772,545
FY *18-'19 to date 15 5 4,139,687

ITEM NO. D-1
EXHIBIT D




STATE OF HAWATT
DEPARTMENT OF HAWATITAN HOME LANDS
May 20, 2019
TO:" Chairman and Members, Hawalian Home mmission

FROM: Dean Oshiro, Acting HSD Administrat&r:
Homestead Services Division

SUBJECT: Approval of Consent to Mortgage

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTIQN

To approve the following consents to mortgages for
Federal Housing Administration (FHA) insured loans, Department

of Veterans Affairs

Agriculture, Rural Development (USDA, RD)
and Urban Develcopment {HUD 184Aa)

United States Housing
guaranteed loans

and Conventional (CQON)

private mortgage insurers.

DISCUSSION

PROPERTY
OAHU

Nanakuli
Lease No. 3805
TMEK: 1-8-9-006:042

Waimanalo
Lease No. 8815
TME: 1-4-1-038:051

Kaupea
Lease No. 12113
TME: 1-9-1-140:016

Maluohai
Lease No. 9811
TME: - 1-9-1-120:028

LESSEE

ALVERIO,
Joel XK. K. (Cash Out
Refinance) FHA

LOPES,
Phoebe P. (Cash Out
Refinance)FHA

AURIO,
Kacie (Purchase}FHA

LEWIS,
Gary D.
(Purchase)HUD 1844

(va) loans, United States Department of

guaranteed loans,

loans insured by

LENDER LOAN AMQUNT
Aries Loan S 267,000
Inc.

Hightechlend § 242,000
ing Inc.

HomeStreet $ B35,876
Bank
HomeStreet s 425,110
Bank

ITEM NO. D-2




OAHU

Lualualei
Lease No. 5621
TMK: 1-8-6-023:064

Nanakuli
Lease No. 4718
TMK: 1-8-9-010:070

Waianae
Lease No. 4579
TMK: 1-8-5-030:025

Waimanalo
Lease No. 3132
TMK: 1-4-1-021:029

Kaupea
Lease No. 11921
TMEK: 1-9-1-139:138

Nanakuli
Lease No. 8590
TMK: 1-8-9-012:045

Lualualei
Lease No. 9709
TMK: 1-8-6-023:016

Waimanalo
Lease No. 8187
TMK: 1-4-1-037:052

Nanakuli
Lease No. 2598
TMK: 1-8-9-004:120

KELIIKOA,
William K.
(Purchase) VA

TIFFANY,
Petricia K. (Cash
Out Refinance)FHA

SAGIAQ,
Gail P. (Cash Out
Refinance)FHA

GRACE,
Abraham (Cash Out
Refinance)FHA

PASCUA,
Colleen L. W. K.
{Purchase)HUD 184A

NAONE,
Moses K. (Cash Out
Refinance)FHA

KAMAKEEATINA,
Loyna L. {Cash oOut
Refinance)HUD 184A

KAIWI,
Adam, Jr. (Cash Out
Refinance)FHA

KALIKO, Tricle K.
L. D. &,

KALIKO, William E.
{Cash Out
Refinance)FHA

Department
of Veterans
Affairs

Guild
Mortgage Co.

Hightechlend
ing Inc.

Cardinal
Financial

Bank of
Hawail

Hightechlend
ing Inc.

Bank of
Hawaii

Mann
Mortgage LLC

Cardinal
Financial

330,000

182,000

352,000

126,876

485,000

339,000

192,000

156,000

140,649

ITEM NO. D-2




CAHU

Nanakuli
Lease No. 4542
TMK: 1-8-9-010:006

Kaulukahai
Lease No. 12854
TMK: 1-9-1-017:161

Kanehili
Lease No. 11868
TMK: 1-9-1-152:120

Nanakuli
Lease No. 8574
T™YMK: 1-8-9-012:057

Waimanalo
Lease No. 1998
TMK: 1-4-1-016:070

Kaulukahai
Lease No. 12381
TME: 1-9-1-017:088

Kaulukahai
Lease No, 12857
TMK: 1-9-1-017:161

Kaulukahai
Lease No. 12868
T™MK: 1-9-1-017:161

Kaulukahai
Lease No. 12867
TMK: 1-9-1-017:1¢61

KIDO,
Roland L. N. {Cash
Out Refinance)}FHA

GONSALVES,
Angie
(Purchase) FHA

NAHTINA,
Solomon K. {Cash Out
Refinance) FHA

KEALCHA,
Rodney K. (Cash Out
Refinance)HUD 184A

SCHOLTZ,
Jon T. K.
(Purchase)HUD 184A

LIKE,
Raelene
{Purchase)FHA

TANAKA,
Maude
{Purchase)FHA

AMTINA,
Edward
{Purchase)HUD 184A

ENOKA,
Jeffrey-Lee
(Purchase)HUD 184A

Rank of
Hawaii

HomeStreet
Rank

Aries Loan
Inc.

HomeStreet
Rank

HomeStreet
Bank

Bank of
Hawaii

Bank of
Hawaii

Bank of
Hawaii

Bank of
Hawaii

276,000

404,571

362,000

164,430

191,785

355,000

285,000

350,000

370,000

ITEM NO. D-2




OAHU

Waiehu
Lease No.
TMK :

Nanakuli
Lease No.
TMK :

Maluohai
Lease No.
TMK :

MAUT

Waiehu 4
Lease No.

5827

2-3-2-021:024

5129

1-8-9-013:014

9716

1-9-1-119:004

12279

TMK: 2-3-2-025:005

Waiehu 3
Lease No.
TMK :

Walehu
Lease NO.
TMK -

HAWATT

Panaewa
Lease No.
TMK ;

Kawaihae
Lease No.
TMK :

9941

2-3-2-024:088

5966

2-3-2-021:035

4004A

3-2-1-025:219

7128

3-6-1-007:046

FUJIMOTO,
Ruth J.K.A {Cash
Qut Refinance)FHA

BROWN,
Rosalynn K. {(Cash
Qut Refinance}FHA

KATAWE,
Jeffrey S.
{Purchase) VA

NEEDHAM,
Kimo W. {Cash Out
Refinance) FHA

PACHECO,
Curstyn J. L. (Cash
Out Refinance)FHA

ABBEY,
Dannelle {Cash Out
Refinance)HUD 184a

RAWLINS,
Makaala (1 Step
Construction)FHA

GAMBILL,
Mahealani M. H.
(Cash Out
Refinance)FHA

Cardinal
Financial

Hightechlend
ing Inc.

Department
of Veterans
Affairs

HomeStreet
Bank

Aries Loan
Inc.

HomeStreet
Bank

HomeStreet
Bank

Bank of
Hawaii

$

134,940

106,000

500,200

236,664

128,000

131,000

188,930

171,270

ITEM NO, D-2




HAWATT

Keaukaha
Lease No. 4263
T™™K: 3-2-1-021:070

Panaewa
Lease No. 11179
TMK: 3-2-2-064:005

Keaukaha
Lease No. 9085
T™MK: 3-2-1-022:019

KAHALIOUMI,
Keenan K. ({(Cash Out
Refinance)FHA

RAMOS,
Maui J. (Cash Out
Refinance)FHA

COSTA,
Geraldine L. {Cash
Qut Refinance)}FHA

Aries Loan
Inc.

Siwell Inc.,
dba Capital
Mortgage
Services of
Texas

Aries Loan
Inc.

ITEM NO. D-2

$ 240,000

$ 259,000

$ 173,000



RECAP FHA
NO. AMOUNT

FY Ending 6/30/18 298 § 77,704,372

Prior Months 227 § 66,368,630
This Month 23 5,661,876

VA USDA-RD
NO. AMOUNT NO. AMOUNT

Total FY '18-'19 250 § 72,030,506

HUD 184aA
FY Ending 6/30/18 82 $23,579,214

Prior Months 62 $19,218,933
This Month 8 2,309,325
Total FY '18-'19 70 $21,528,258

13 $4,914,100 12 $3,929,543

10 $4,123,495 15 5,222,827
2 - 830,200 0 ' 0
12 $4,953,695 15 §5,222,927

ITEM NO. D-2




STATE OF HAWATI
DEPARTMENT OF HAWATIAN HOME LANDS

May 20, 2019

TO: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission

FROM: Dean Oshiro, Acting HSD Administrato
Homestead Services Division

SUBJECT: Approval of Refinance of Loans

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

To approve the refinancing of loans from the Hawaiian
Home General Loan Fund.

DISCUSSION

There are lessees who are seriously delinquent on their
loans, but have been making consistent payments for twelve {12)
months or more. These lessees have been trying to pay an
additional amount above and beyond the reqguired pavment in an
effort to reduce their delinquency amount. However, because the
delinqguency amount is large, it would take vears for that amount
to be paid in full.

HSD’'s recommendation for approval is based on actual
payment history, at minimum, over the preceding twelve (12)
months. If a lessee has demonstrated a conscientious effort to
reduce the delinguency amount by making consistent monthly
payments for twelve months, HSD will recommend that the lessee’s
loan balance be refinanced. Loan refinancing will provide a
deserving lessee a new start in establishing a credit standing.

The following lessee(s) has met the aforementioned
criteria and is recommended for loan refinancing:

ITEM NO. D-3




LESSEE LEASE NO. & AREA REFINANCING LOAN TERMS

Keohulca, Nolan H. 3326, Kaniohale NTE $13,700, @3% interest
: per annum, payment NTE $71
monthly, repayable over 22

years.

Loan Purpose: Refinance of Contract of Loan no.
17883. Original loan amount of $17,551
at 3% per annum, $136 monthly payable
over 13 years. A Contested Case
Eearing was not held for this account.

-2- ITEM NQ., D-3




STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

May 20, 2018

TO: Chairman and Members, Hawalian Homes Commission

FROM: Dean Oshiro, Acting HSD Administrato
Homestead Services Division

SUBJECT: Approval of Streamline Refinance of Loans

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

To approve the refinancing of loans from the Hawaiian
Home General Loan Fund.

DISCUSSION

The following lessees have met the “Streamline/Interest
rate reduction loan” criteria, which was approved by the
Hawaiian Homes Commission at its August 19, 2013 meeting. This
criteria includes twelve (12) consecutive monthly payments,
borrower’s current interest rate is higher than the current DHHL
interest rate, current with their Homeowners Insurance, Real
Property Tax, Lease Rent, county sewer/refuse fees, and does not
have any advances made by DHHL on the borrowers behalf.

HSD’s recommendation for approval is based on actual
payment history, over the past twelve (12) months and the review
of the above-mentioned criteria. Streamline/Interest Rate Loan
refinancing will provide lessees a chance to simply reduce their
interest rate and payments without DHHL having to credit and/or
income qualify the borrower.

The following lessee(s) has met the aforementioned

criteria and is recommended for Streamline/Interest rate
reduction loan refinance program:

ITEM NO. D-4




LESSEE LEASE NO. & AREA REFINANCING LOAN TERMS

Louis, Ivan K. . 9426, Kaniohale NTE $152,000 @4.5%
interest per annum, NTE
$845 monthly, repayable
cver 25 vyears.

Loan Purpose: Refinance Contract of Loan no. 17838.
Original loan amount of $147,832 at 9%
per annum, $1,190 monthly, repayable
over 30 yvears. A Contested Case
Hearing was held on March 25, 2014 for
this account.

-2~ ITEM NO. D-4




STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS
May 20, 2019
TO: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission

FROM: Dean Oshiro, Acting HSD Administrator
Homestead Services Division

SUBJECT: Approval to Schedule Loan Delinguency Contested Case
Hearings

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

To authorize the scheduling of the following loan
delingquency contested case hearings as shown below.

DISCUSSION

The department has been working to resolve the problem
of loan delinquencies. The past due delinquent loan status with
lessees continues to be a problem for the department; therefore,
we recommend that contested case hearings be scheduled:

Lease Loan Monthly Amount Balance
Lessee No. Area No. Payment at 4/19 At 4/19
Maui
Pali, Wesley K. 94923 WK - III 19267 STBD $45,314 $45,314

ITEM NO. D-5




STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

May 20, 2019

TO: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes C ission
THROUGH: Dean T. Oshiro, Acting HSD Administrato

FROM : Ross X. Kapeliela, Application Office
Homestead Services Division

SURJECT: Approval of Homestead Application Transfers/Cancellations

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

To approve the transfers and cancellations of
applications from the Application Waiting Lists for reasons
described below:

DISCUSSION

1. Requests of Applicants to Transfer

QAHU ISLANDWIDE RESIDENTIAL LEASE LIST

AU, Lesmond E. 06/13/2005 HAWAIT RES 12/18/2018
POATI, Avis K, 04/07/1998 HAWAII RES 02/06/2019
STEVENS, Howard C. 08/02/2010 HAWATT RES 02/04/2019

MAUT TISLANDWIDE RESIDENTIAL LEASE LIST

KAUKA, Elizabeth K. 12/12/72007 OAHU RES 12/28/2018

HAWAIT ISLANDWIDE AGRICULTURAL LEASE LIST

HUGO, Jan K. 04/03/1995 OAHU AGR 01/08/2019
KAUPU, Starlynn M.K. 05/31/2006 KAUAIL AGR 02/06/2019
LOBO, Trudy A. 01/25/1988 OAHU AGR 02/12/2019

ITEM NO. D-6




RUSSELL, Joanne K.H,O, 06/23/1998 QAHU

WILLING, Kendall 08/22/2012 MOLOKAT

HAWATI ISLANDWIDE RESIDENTIAL LEASE LIST

AGR 01/08/2019

AGR 04/26/2018

KAUPU, Starlynn M.K. 05/31/2006 KAUAT
LOBO, Trudy A. 01/25/1988 OAHU
WILLING, Kendall 08/22/2012 MOLOKAT

MOLOKAY TISLANDWIDE AGRICULTURAL LEASE LIST

RES 02/06/2019
RES 02/12/2018

RES 04/26/2018

LONO, Joel K. 01/22/2013 HAWATI

MOLOKAT ISLANDWIDE RESIDENTIAL LEASE LIST

AGR 01/15/2018

LONO, Joel K. 01/22/2013 OAHU

2. Deceased Applicants

NONE FOR SUBMITTAL

3., Awards of Leases

OAHU ISLANDWIDE RESIDENTIAL LEASE LIST

RES 01/15/2019

KAATAKAMANU, Clint P. Assigned Residential Lease
#12800, Lot 13764 in Maluochai,
Oahu dated 04/22/201%. Remove
application dated 01/30/2012.

NAKATA, Tiare Lynn K, Assilgned Residential Lease

#6787, Lot 75

in Lualualei,

Qahu dated 12/05/2017. Remove
application dated 06/07/2016.

ITEM NO. D-§




PAT, Evelyn U.

Assigned Residential Lease
#4471, Lot 117 in Walanae, Oahu
dated 04/17/2019. Remove
application dated 06/10/1593.

MAUTI ISLANDWIDE RESIDENTIAL LEASE LIST

OSTERMILLER, Reggie aAnn K.

Agsigned Residential Lease
#10231, Lot 18, in Hikina, Mauil
dated 04/17/2019. Remove
application dated 04/19/1990.

HAWATT ISLANDWIDE RESIDENTIAL LEASE LIST

HOQKE, Deirdree L.I.

KAMAKANA, Rex E.K.

PATO, Moses J.K.K.

Assigned Residential Lease
#12823, Lot 116 in Kawaihae,
Hawaii dated 04/05/2019. Remove
application dated 02/07/2005.

Agsigned Residential Lease
#3114, Lot 106 in Waimanalo,
Oahu dated 04/13/2012. Remove
application dated 02/02/2001.

Agsigned Residential Lease
#12824, Lot 127 in Kawalhae,
Hawaii dated 04/05/201%9. Remove
application dated 10/15/2003.

MOLOKAI ISLANDWIDE AGRICULTURAL LEASE LIST

ROSA, Marshall X.

Assigned Agricultural Lease
#6127, Lot 131 in Kalamaula,
Molokal dated 07/10/2017.
Remove application dated
06/17/1986.

MOLOKATI ISLANDWIDE RESIDENTIAL LEASE LIST

NAWELT, George K.

Assigned Residential Lease
#7282, Lot 32 in Nanakuli, Oahu
dated 04/17/2018. Remove
application dated 08/19/1987.

ITEM NO. D-6




4, Native Hawaiian Qualification

NONE FOR SUBMITTAL

5. Voluntary Cancellation

NONE FOR SUBMITTAL

6. Successorship

OQAHU ISLANDWIDE AGRICULTURAL LEASE LIST

KEKAWA, Nolen XK., Jr. Succeeded to Oahu Islandwide
Agricultural application of
grandfather, James K. Kekawa
dated (05/21/1986. Remove
application dated 08/02/2017.

QAHU ISLANDWIDE RESIDENTIAL LEASE LIST

DELIMA, Charmaine L. Succeeded to Waimanalo Area /
Oahu Islandwide Residential
application of mother, Charlene
K. Naipo, dated 10/17/1962.
Remove application dated
11/28/2000.

PORTER, Salamasina T. Succeeded to Oahu Islandwide
Residential application of
mother, Jane K. Iereneo, dated
01/19/1993. Remove application
dated 05/27/2010.

MOLOKAI ISLANDWIDE AGRICULTURAL LEASE LIST

RITTE, Tyler L. Succeeded to QOahu Islandwide
Agricultural application of
father, Geroge G. Rin, dated
06/29/1987. Remove application
dated 01/06/2014.

-4- ITEM NQ. D-6




MOLOKAT ISLANDWIDE RESIDENTIAL LEASE LIST

RITTE, Tyler L. Succeeded to Molokai Islandwide
Residential application of '
father, George G. Rin, dated
11/08/1982. Remove application
dated 01/06/2014.

7. Additional Acreage

NONE FOR SUBMITTAL

8. HHC Adjustments

NONE FOR SUBMITTAL

Last Month's Transaction Total 20
Last Month's Cumulative FY 2018-2019 Transaction Total 264
Transfers from Island to Island 14
Deceased 0
Cancellations:
Awards of Leases 9
NHQ 0
Voluntary Cancellations 0
Successorship 5
Additional Acreage 0
HHC Adjustments 0
This Month's Transaction Total 28
This Month's Cumulative FY 2018-2019 Tramsaction Total 292

-5- ITEM NO. D-6




STATE OF HAWAIT
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAITAN HOME LANDS

May 20, 2019

TC: Chairman and Members, Hawalian Homes Compmhxssion
THROUGH: Dean T. Oshiro, Acting HSD Administrato

FROM: Ross K. Kapeliela, Applications Cffice
Homestead Services Division

SUBJECT: Commission Designation of Successors to Application
Rights - Public Notice 2016, 2017

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

To designate the following individuals as
successors to the application rights of deceased applicants who
have no qualified successors of record.

DISCUSSION

The following cqualified applicants passed away on or
after October 26, 1998, without naming gqualified successors.
Pursuant to 10-3-8{(c) of the Hawail Administrative Rules, a
public notice listing the names of deceased applicants and
calling for possible successors to their application rights was
published in the Honolulu Star-Advertiser, The Maui News, Hawaii
Tribune Herald, West Hawaii Today, and The Garden Island on the
last two consecutive Sundays of November for the vyear the
department received notification. Regquests to succeed to the
decedents’ application rights were submitted within the required
180 days following the last date of publication. Prospective
successors were the sole respondents and are deemed by the
department to have met the requirements of successorship. ESD
recommends epproval of the following designees:

1l.Deceased Applicant: Marjorie-Ann M. Akoil
Date of death: December 2, 2014
Successor to application rights Samuel A. Akoli, IV
Relationship to decedent: Son
Island: Maui
Tvpe: Islandwide Pastoral
Date of Application: October 31, 2005
Date of Public Notice: November, 2017

ITEM NO. D=7




2 .Deceased Applicant:

Date of death:

Successor to application rights
Relationship to decedent:
Island:

Type:

Date of Application:

Date of Public Notice:

.Deceased Applicant:

Date of death:

Successor to application rights
Relationship to decedent:
Island;:

Type:

Date of Application:

Date of Public Notice:

.Deceased Applicant:

Date of death:

Successor to application rights
Relationship to decedent:
Island:

Type:

Date of Application:

Date of Public¢ Notice:

5a.Deceased Applicant:

Date of death:

Successor to application rights
Relationship to decedent:
Island:

Type:

Date of Application:

Date of Public Notice:

hb.Island:

Type:
Date of Application:
Date of Public Notice:

James K. Kekawa
September 30, 2016
Nolen K.Kekawa, Jr.
Grandchild

QOahu

Islandwide Agricultural
May 21, 198¢

November, 2016

Charlene K. Naipo
November 3, 2014
Charmaine L. Delima
Daughter

Oahu

Waimanalo Area / IW Res
October 17, 1962
November, 2017

Rodney H. Puu, Sr.
February 23, 2012
Rodney H. Puu, Jr.

Son

Oahu

Islandwide Residential
June 7, 2000

November, 2017

George G. Rin

July 28, 2015

Tyler L, Ritte

Son

Oahu

Islandwide Agricultural
June 28, 1987

November, 2017

Molokai

Islandwide Residential
November 8, 1982
November, 2017

Previcus Cumulative Total for Current FY 41
Current Month's Total 6
Fiscal Year Total: July 2018-June 2019 47

-2- ITEM NO. D-7




STATE OF HAWAIT
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS
May 20, 2019
TO: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Ho Commission

THRQOUGH: Dean Oshiro, Acting Administrator
Homestead Services Division

FROM: Juan Garcia, Oahu District Offi Supervisor
Homestead Services Division

SUBJECT: Approval of Designation of Sucdessors to Leasehold

Interest and Designation of Persons to Receive the Net
Proceeds

RECOMMENDED MOTICN/ACTION

To approve the designation of successor to the
leasehold interest and person to receive the net proceeds,
pursuant to Section 209, Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920,
as amended.

*Sea attached list of Lessee,

Leasehold Interest:

Approved for May 2019 6
Previous FY 2018 - 2018 81
FY 2018 - 2019 Total to Date 87
Approved for FY ‘17 - 18 87
Net Proceeds

Approved for May 2019 1
Previous FY 2018- 2019 _0
FY 2018 - 2019 Total to Date 1
Approved for FY ‘17 - 18 1

ITEM NO. D-8




LIST OF LESSEES WHO DESIGNATED SUCCESSORS TO THEIR
LEASEHOLD INTEREST AND DESIGNEE TO RECEIVE NET PROCEEDS
FOR MONTH OF MAY 2019

Deceased Lessee Designated Successor
Rose A. Anderson PRIMARY :
Lot No.: l6-A Kaiulani Cindy Anderson-
Area:; Kuhic Village, Kanoa, Daughter
Hawaii
Lease No. 4885 ALTERNATE:

N/A

DESIGNEE TO RECEIVE NET

PROCEEDS:
N/A
Dellvyne L. Gandia PRIMARY: Joint Tenants
Lot No.: 24 Dellyn K. Gandia, Daughter
Area: Anahola, Kauai Derek P. Gandia, Son
Lease No. 5998 Derelyne K. R. Gandia,
Daughter
ALTERNATE:

*Carlos Hernandes, Jr., Brother
*Oomit due to lack of genealogy
documents to determine
eligibility to successorship.

DESIGNEE TO RECEIVE NET

PROCEEDS:
N/A
Richard I. K. Kanahele PRIMARY :
Lot No.: 68 N/A
Area: Kekaha, Kauai
Lease No. 5380 AL TERNATE :
N/A

DESIGNEE TO RECEIVE NET
PROCEEDS:
Mary Beth Girod, Wife

-1- ITEM NC. D-8
Exhibit A




Albert E. Kaulia

Lot No.: 7

Area: Lalamilo, Hawali
Lease No. 12529

Christmas K. Kelii
Lot No.: 139-B

Area: Nanakuli, Oahu
Lease No. 3801

Abraham Kuhaulua

Lot No.: 76

Area: Anahola, Kauai
Lease No. 3090

PRIMARY :
Alapaki E. K. Kaulia, Son

ALTERNATE :
N/A

DESIGNEE TO RECEIVE NET
PROCEEDS :
N/A

PRIMARY: Joint Tenants
Heather Ah-Hoon, Daughter
Christine L. Kea, Daughter

AT TERNATE:
Owen Kelii, Son

DESIGNEE TO RECEIVE NET
PROCEEDS ;
N/A

PRIMARY :
Earlet M. Lanning, Niece

ALTERNATE:
N/A

DESIGNEE TO RECEIVE NET
PROCEEDS :
N/A

-2- ITEM NO. D-8

Exhibit A



STATE OF HAWAIT
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS
May 20, 2019
TC: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission

THROUGH: Dean Oshiro, Acting Administrato
Homestead Services Division

FROM: Juan Garcia, QOahu District Offz upervisor
Homestead Services Division

SUBJECT: Approval of Assignment of Leas¢hold Interest

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

To approve the assignment of the leasehold interest,
pursuant to Section 208, Hawailan Homes Commissicon Act, 1920, as
amended, and subject to any applicable terms and conditions of
the assignment, including but not limited to the approval of a
loan.

DISCUSSION

Eleven (11) assignments of lease.

1. Lessee Name: Jocelynn M. Adams
Res. Lease No. 3429, Lot No. 47
Lease Date: 7/20/1962
Area: Nanakuli, Cahu
Property Sold & Amount: Yes, $45,000.00
Improvements: 3 bedroom, 2 bath dwelling

Transferee Name: Joycelynn N. McShane
Relationship: Sister

Loan Assumption: N/A

Applicant: Yes, Oahu IW Res., 11/02/1990

Reason for Transfer: "Giving lease toc relative.' Special

Condition: Transferee to obtain funds to pay purchase
price.

ITEM NO. D-9




Lessee Name: Wesley K. Chow

Res. Lease No. 10218, Lot No. 28

Lease Date: 4/15/2013

Area: Anahola, Kauai

Property Sold & Amount: Yes, $500,000.00
Improvements: 3 bedroom, 2 bath dwelling

Transferee Name: Melanie N. Thompson
Relationship: None

Loan Assumption: N/A

Applicant: Yes, Kaual IW Res., 10/21/2008

Reason for Transfer: "Want to apply for a new location.®
Special Condition: Transferee to obtain funds to pay
purchase price.

Lesgsee Name: Mary Ann K. Dowsett

Agr. Lease No. 4758, Lot No. 1

Lease Date: 7/8/1978

Area: Waimea, Hawaii

Property Sold & Amount: No, N/A
Improvements: 2 bedroom, 2 bath dwelling

Transferee Name: Pomaikalani Z. Dowsett
Relationship: Daughter

Loan Assumption: N/A

Applicant: No

Reason for Transfer: "Giving lease to relative."

Lessee Name: James A, Enoka

Res. Lease No. 12867, Lot No. 150

Lease Date: To be determined

Area: Kauluokahai, 0Oahu

Property Sold & Amount: Yes, $380,000.00
Improvements: 4 bedroom, 3 bath dwelling

Transferee Name: Jeffery-Lee K. Enoka
Relationship: Son

Loan Agsumption: N/A

Applicant: No

Reagson for Transfer: "Giving lease to relative." Special

Condition: Transferee to obtain funds to pay purchase
price.

-2- ITEM NO. D-9




Lessee Name: June K. Hauhio

Res. Lease No. 12852, Lot No. 140

Lease Date: To be determined

Area: Kauluckahai, 0Oahu

Property So0ld & Amount: Yes, $381,400.00
Improvements: 5 bedroom, 3 bath dwelling

Transferee Name: Mason A. S. Aina
Relationship: Son

Loan Assumption: N/A

2Applicant: No

Reason for Transfer: "Giving lease to relative." Special
Condition: Transferee to obtain funds to pay purchase
price.

Lessee Name: Leonora K. Moisa

Res. Lease No. 12855, Lot No. 143

Lease Date: To be determined

Area: Kauluokahai, Oahu

Property Sold & Amount: Yes, $400,000.00
Improvements: 5 bedroom, 3 bath dwelling

Transferee Name: Melvin H. Moisa
Relationship: Son

Loan Assumption: N/A

Applicant: No

Reason for Transfer: "Giving lease to relative." Special

Condition: Transferee to cbtain funds to pay purchase
price.

-3- ITEM NO, D-9




Lessee Name: Hyenie E. Sato

Res. Lease No. 12870, Lot No. 152

Lease Date: To be determined

Area: Kauluokahai, 0Oahu

Property Sold & Amount: Yes, $370,000.00
Improvements: 5 bedroom, 3 bath dwelling

Transferee Name: Karllene P, K. S. Allen
Relationship: Granddaughter

Loan Assumption: N/A

Applicant: No

Reason for Transfer: Giving lease to relative." Special
Condition: Transferee to obtain funds to pay purchase
price.

Lessee Name: Hannah E. Silva

Res. Lease No. 12113, Lot No. 16957
Lease Date: 11/16/2007

Area: Kaupea, 0Oahu

Property Sold & Amount: Yes, $525,000.00
Improvements: 3 bedroom, 2 bath dwelling

Transferee Name: Kacie K. Aurio
Relationship: None

Loan Assumption: N/A

Applicant: Yes, Oahu IW Res., 1/13/2009

Reason for Transfer: "Financial Reason." Special Condition:
Transferee to obtain funds to pay purchase price.

_a- ITEM NO. D-9




L.essee Name: Alexander E. Uahinui, Jr.
Res. Lease No. 12850, Lot No. 122

L.ease Date: To be determined

Area: Kauluokahai, 0Oahu

Property Sold & Amount: Yes, $400,000.00
Improvements: 5 bedroom, 3 bath dwelling

Transferee Name: Joseph K. Uahinui
Relationship: Brother

Loan Assumption: N/A

Applicant: Yes, Oahu IW Res., 1/20/2006

Reason for Transfer: "Giving lease to relative." Special
Condition: Transferee to obtain funds to pay purchase
price.

Lessee Name: Wallis XK. Wong & Haaheo F. Castro
Res. Lease No. 4441, Lot No. 21

Lease Date: 10/7/1877

Area; Waianae, 0Oahu

Property Scold & Amount: No, N/A

Improvements: 3 bedroom, 2 bath dwelling

Transferee Name:; Haaheo F. Castro
Relationship: Sister

Loan Assumption: N/A

Applicant: No

Reason for Transfer: "Giving lease to relative."

Lessee Name: Mary Jane L. N. Kamcku
Agr. Lease No. 7009, Lot No. 65
Lease Date: 11/14/1997

Area: Makuu, Hawaii

Property Sold & Amount: No, N/A
Improvements: None

Transferee Name: Leila I. B. W. XKealocha
Relationship: None

Loan Assumption: N/A

Applicant: Yes, Molokal IW Pas., 11/16/19594

Reason for Transfer: "Giving lease away."

-5- ITEM NO.




Assignments for the Month of May "19 11

Previous FY '18 - '1l9 balance 234
Fy '18 - '1l9 total to date 245
Assignments for FY '17 - '18 271

-6~ ITEM NO. D-9




TO:

THROUGH :

FROM:

SUBJECT:

STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAITAN HOME LAWNDS

May 20, 2019

Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes ission
Dean Oshiro, Acting HSD Administrator

Juan Garcia, Oahu District 0ff{¥ige Supervisor
Homestead Services Division

Approval of Amendment of Leasghold Interest

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

To approve the amendment of the leasehold interest listed

below.

DISCUSSION
Four (4) amendments of lease.

1. lLessee: Christmas K. Kelii
Res. Lease No.: 3801

Lot No., Area, Island: 139-B, Nanakuli, ©Oahu
Amendment : To amend the lease title and

Lessor's name, to incorporate the
currently used terms, covenants,
and conditions to the lease, and to
extend the lease term to an
aggregate term of 199 vears.

2. Lessee: La Vaina N. A. Kilbey

Res.

Lease No.: 6054

Lot No., Area, Island: 9, Hoolehua, Molokai
Amendment: : To amend the property description

and commencement date due to final
subdivision.

ITEM NO. D-10




L.essee: Abraham Kuhaulua
Res. Lease No.: 3090

Lot No., Area, Island: 76, Anahola, Kauai

Amendment : To amend the lease title and

Lessor's name, to incorporate the
currently used terms, covenants,
and conditions to the lease, and to
update the property description.

Lessee: Henry Waiolama
Res. Lease No.: 3118

Lot No., Area, Island: 89, Waimanalo, Oahu

Amendment : To amend the lease title and

Lessor's name, to update the
property description, to
incorporate the currently used
terms, covenants, and conditions to
the lease, and to extend the lease
term to an aggregate term of 199

years.

Amendments for the Month of May ‘19 4

Previous FY '18 - '19 balance 147
- '19 total to date 151

Amendments for FY '17 - '18 249

-2- ITEM NO. D-10




STATE QOF HAWAIT

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

May 20, 2019
TO: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes ission
THROUGH: Dean Oshiro, Acting HSD Administrator
FROM:; Juan Garcia, Oahu District O Supervisgor
Homestead Services Division
SUBJECT: Approval to Issue a Non-Exclugive License for Rooftop

Photovoltaic Systems for Certain Lessees

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

To approve the issuance of a non-exclusive license to
allow the Permittee to provide adequate services related to
the installation, maintenance, and operation of a photovoltaic
system on the premises leased by the respective Lessees.
the Lessee

The non-exclusive license 1is

cannot issue his/her own licenses.

necessary as

DISCUSSION
Seven (7) non-exclusive licenses.

1. Lessee: Puahauoliokalani Gaspar
Res. Lease No.: 11806
Lot No., Area, Island: 18611, Kanehili, Oahu
Permittee: RevoluSun Power LIC

2. Lessee: Kahaleone Hanawahine
Res. Lease No.: 11574
Lot No., Area, Island: 18554, Kanehili, Oahu
Permittee: RevoluSun Power LLC

3. Lessee; Benjamin Kamalani
Res. Lease No.: 8112
Lot No., Area, Island: 13, Walakea, Hawaii
Permittee: Sunrun Installation Services Inc.

ITEM NO. D-11




'18 -

Lessee:

Res. Lease No.
Lot No., Area,
Permittee:

Lessee:
Res.
Lot No., Area,
Permittee:

Lessee:
Res.
Lot No., Area,
Permittee:

Lessee:
Res.
Lot No., Area,
Permittee:

Lease No.:

Lease No.:

Lease No.:

Island:

Island:

Island:

Island:

Non-Exclusive License for March
Previous FY '18 - '19 balance

'19 total to date

Non-Exclusive License for FY

117 -

Francis J. Kaniaupio

11388

17153, Kaupea, Oahu

Sunrun Installation Services Inc.

Adeline W. L. Mandac

11883

18657, Kanehili, Qahu

Sunrun Installation Services Inc.

Corinna Nakea-Franclsco

12318

73, Kaniohale, Hawaii

Sunrun Installaticon Services Inc.

Vanna M. K. Naecle-Raymondo
9990

112, Waianae, Oahu
RevoluSun Power LLC

~J

'19

80

'18 102

ITEM NO. D-11




STATE OF HAWATIT
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAITIAN HOME LANDS

February 17, 2015

TO: Chairman and Members, Hawailian Homes Commission

FROM: Dean Oshiro, Acting HSD Administrato
Homestead Services Division

THRU : Juan Garcila, Oahu District Off1 upervisor
Homestead Services Division

SUBJECT: Cancellation of Leasehold Int st
Daisy K. T. Simeona
Lease No. 12522, Lot No. UNDV, Kapolei, Oahu

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

To approve the cancellation of Lease No. 12522, Lot
No. Undivided, Kapolei, ©Oahu (Lease), pursuant to the Hawaiian
Homes Commission aAct of 1920, as amended, as there is no
qualified successor to the Lease interest; and

DISCUSSION

Daisy K. T. Simeona ({Decedent} was awarded the Lease
commencing December 6, 2008. The Decedent designated her son,
Lynnboy L. Simeona (Lynnboy), as the successor to the leaseheold
interest in the Lease, on December 6, 2008,.

Decedent passed away on July 31, 2010.

The Department made numerous attempts to locate and
contact Lynnboy in order to process the successorship of the
lease. Unfortunately, the Department was unsuccessful in
locating Lynnboy, therefore, the successorship of the Lease
could not be completed.

On August 21, 2017, the Hawaiian Homes Commission
(Commission) approved the Department’'s regquest to schedule a
contested case hearing to address the pending successorship of
the Lease. The contested case hearing was conducted on May 17,
2018 before a hearings cofficer. The Commission rendered its
Findings of Fact Conclusions of Law and Decision and Order,

ITEM NO. D-12




dated August 16, 2018, cancelling Lymnnboy’s successorship
interest in the Lease.

In compliance with the Administrative Rule 10-3-63,
the department published legal ads in the Honolulu Star
Advertiser, The Garden Island Newspaper, the Hawaii Tribune
Herald, the West Hawail Today, and The Mauli News on December 2,
12, 16, and 26, 2018, to notify all interested, eligible and
gqualified heirs of Decedent, to submit their lease successorship
claims.

The Department did not receive a successorship claim
to the Lease.

Pursuant to Section 209 of the Hawaiian Homes
Commission Act of 1920, as amended (Act), “the land subject to
the lease shall resume its status as unleased Hawalilan home
lands and the Department is authorized to lease to another
qualified native Hawaiian as provided in this Act.”

The Department 1s requesting the approval of its
recommendation.

-2- ITEM NO. D-12




STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

May 20, 2019

TO:-._ ; Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission
THRU : Dean Oshiro, Acting HSD Administrator
FROM:  Juan Garcia, Oahu District Offigé pervisor

Homestead Services Division
SUBJECT: Commission Designation of Succegsor — JAMES D. H.

WONG, Residential Lease No. 11848, Lot No. UNDV305,
Kapolei, Oahu

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

. To approve the designation of Jason Kapono. Donatiello
(Jason), as successor to Residential Lease No. 11848, Lot No.
UNDV305, Kapclei, Oahu (Lease), for the remaining term of the
lease.

DISCUSSION

James D. H. Wong (Decedent), was awarded the Lease
commencing on December 2, 2006.

On December 2, 2006, the Decedent designated his wife,
Nada H. L. Wong (Nada), as the primary successor and his
daughter, Jenifer N. K. Donatiellc (Jenifer), as the alternate
successor to the Lease.

On September 18, 2010, Nada passed away. However, the
Department did not receive her death —certificate until
February 7, 2017.

On September 23, 2016, the Decedent passed away and
the Department received the death certificate on February 3,

2017.

On June 28, 2018, Jenifer renounced her successorship
rights to the Lease.

ITEM NO. D-13




In compliance with the Administrative Rule 10-3-63,
the department published legal ads in the Honclulu Star
Advertiser, The Garden Island Newspaper, the Hawaii Tribune
Herald, . the West Hawaii Tcday, and The Maui News on December 2,
12, 16, and 26, 2018, to notify all interested, eligible and
gqualified heirs cof Decedent, to submit their lease successorship
claims.

The Department received a successorship claim from the
Decedent’s grandscn, Jascn, who has been determined to be at
least 25% Hawaiian ancestry and is eligible for successcrship to
the Decedent’s lease.

Pursuant tc Section 209 o¢f the  Hawaiian Homes
Commission Act, .1920, as amended (Act), when a lessee fails to
designate a successor, the commission is authcorized to terminate
this lease or to continue the lease by designating (a) qualified
successcr(s) . Secticn 209 states in part that the department
may select from only the following qualified relatives .cf the
decedent:

1. Husband cor wife; or

2. If there 1is no husband or wife, then the
children; or

3. If there is nc husband, wife, or child, then the
grandchildren; or

4, If there is no husband, wife, child, or
grandchild, then brothers or sisters; or

5. If there is no husband, wife, child, grandchild,
brother, or sister, then from the following relatives
cf the lessee who are native Hawaiilan: father and
mother, widows or widowers of the children, widows or
widowers of the brothers and sisters, or nieces and
nephews.

The lease rent acccocunt reports a credit balance of $85
and the real property tax are not being assess at this time.

The Department requests approval of its
reccmmendation.

-2- ITEM NO. D-13




STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

May 20, 2019

TO: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission

THROUGH: Dean Oshiro, Acting Administrator
Homestead Services Division

FROM: Juan Garcia, Oahu District Offi¥e Supervisor
Homestead Services Division

SUBJECT: Cancellation of Tenant-In-Commgn Leasehold Interest
JOY K. PALAKIKO, Residential Lease No. 4478,
Lot No. 86, Waianae, Oahu

RECCMMENDED MCTION/ACTION

1. To approve the cancellation of the late Joy K. Palakiko
(Decedent} tenant-in-common leasehold interest in Residential
Lease No. 4478, Lot No. 86, Waianae, Oahu (Lease); and

2. To approve with the dispensing of awarding the Decedent’s
tenant-in-common leasehold interest in the lease; and

3. To approve Thia K, Palakikoc (Thia), the surviving tenant-

in-common lessee, as the tenant by severalty, for the
remaining term of the Lease.

DISCUSSION

On August 6, 2004, the Decedent, by Assignment of Lease
and Consent to Lease, received Department of Hawaiian Home Lands
Residential Lot Lease No. 4478, Lot No. 86, Wailanae, QOahu (Lease),
as a tenant-in-common interest lessee with Thia K. Palakiko (Thia).

On May 22, 2018, the Decedent passed away without naming
a successor to his tenant-in-common interest to the Lease.

In compliance with the Administrative Rules 10-3-63, the
Department published legal ads in the Honolulu Star Advertiser,
The Hawaii Tribune Herald, The West Hawaii Today, The Maui News,
and The Garden Island newspapers on December 2, 12, 16, and 26,

ITEM NO. D-14




2018 to notify all interested, eligible and qualified heirs of the
Decedent, to submit their lease successorship claims.

The Department did net receive a successorship claim for
the tenant-in-common interest.

Section 209%(a) of the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act
(Act) states “In the case of the death of a lessee leaving no
designated successor or successors, husband, wife, children,
grandchildren, or relative qualified to be a lessee of Hawaiian
Home Lands, the land subject to the lease shall resume its status
as unleased Hawaiian Home Lands and the Department is authorized
to lease the land to a Native Hawaiian as provided in this Act.”

Alsc, Section 209(d) of the Act states that “After the
cancellaticn of a lease by the Department in accordance with
sections 210 and 216 of this title, or the surrender of a lease by
a lessee, the Department may transfer the lease or issue a new
lease to any qualified Native Hawaiian regardless of whether that
person 1s related in any way by blood or marriage to the previous
lessee.

Although there were no qualified claimants to designate
as successcr to the Decedent’s tenant-in-common leasehold
interest, it would be unreasonable for the lease to “resume its
status as unleased.” Furthermore, it would be unreasonable to offer
the Decedent’s tenant-in-common interest to another Native
Hawaiian from the application waitlist. It would be inappropriate
that an unrelated beneficiary be awarded a one-half interest in
the lease and be expected to reside in the home with the co-lessee.

Thia continues to hold a tenant-in-common interest in
the lease. As no successorship claim to the Decedent’s interest
was received by the Department, it is recommended that Thia hold
the lease as the tenant by severalty as any other recommendation
could negatively impact Thia’s right to use and enjoy the premises
demised under the Lease.

There is an outstanding loan balance of approximately
$142,000.00. The Lease rent and Real Property Tax is paid current.

The Department requests approval of its recommendation.

-2- ITEM NO. D-14




STATE OF HAWATT
DEPARTMENT OF HAWATITAN HOME LANDS

May 20, 2019

TO : Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission

THROUGH: Dean T. Oshiro, Acting HSD Administrator

FROM: Darlene K. Fernandez, Homestead Lease CoordinatOrd*/
Homestead Services Division

SUBJECT : Request to Surrender Lease — CARMELA X. GOMEZ
Agricultural Lot Lease No. 6139, Lot No. 158,
RKalamaula, Molokai, Hawaiil

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

1. To approve the surrender of Department of Hawaiian Home
Lands Agricultural Lot Lease No. 6139, Lot No. 158, Kalanianaole
Colony, 274 Series, situate at Kalamaula, Molokai, Hawaii,
consisting of approximately 2.000 acres, and further identified
as Tax Map Key: (2) 5-2-008:048;

2. To authorize the Department to award Lot No. 158,
Kalamaula, Molokai, Hawail to another qualified applicant on the
waltlist.

DISCUSSION

Agricultural Lot Lease No. 6139, Lot No. 158, Kalamaula,
Molokai, Hawaii, and commenced on October 1, 1985, was awarded to
Carmela K. Gomez.

On April 5, 2019, the Department received a Notice of
Surrender of Lease from Carmela K. Gomez dated March 29, 2019.
Her reasons for surrendering are she is unable to farm the land
due to no infrastructure and her age, and she has waited too long
and wasted years waiting for a pastoral lot on Oahu.

DHHL Molokai District Office confirmed Agricultural Lot No.
158 is vacant without any improvements or growing crops therefore
an appraisal is not necessary. There will be no net proceeds.
Lease rent is past due $12.00 as of April 30, 2019.

The department regquests approval of its recommended motion.

ITEM NO. D-15




TO:

THROUGH :

FROM:

SUBJECT:

STATE OF HAWAIT
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAITAN HOME LANDS

May 20, 2019

Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission

Dean Oshiro, Acting Homestead Servig Division
Administrator /

Olinda L. Fisher, East Hawaii District Office
Homestead District Assistant Supervisor

Approval of Subdivision Transfer of a Portion of
Lease and Amendment - OSAIASI TUAKALAU, SESILILT
TUAKALAU, CARRILYN K, MAIMA, JOHN M., TUAKALAU,
Residential Lease No. 2397, Lot No. 43A, situate
Keaukaha, Hilo, Hawaii

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

1.

To authorize approval for the request of Osaiasi A.
L. Tuakalau, Sesilili K. Tuakalau, Carrilyn K.
Maima, and John M. Tuakalau to subdivide Department
of Hawalian Home Lands (DHHL) Residential Lease No.
2397, Lot No. 43A, Keaukaha, Hawaii, consisting of
42,131 square feet and identified as TMK: (3) 2-1-
021:062, into two (2) lots. The subdivision is
subject to the following conditions:

a. To approve the amendment of Lease No. 2397, to
reflect the subdivision of Lot No. 43A into two
(2) lots; to update the property description:
and to amend the lease title and lessor’s name;
to incorporate the currently used terms,
covenants, and conditions in the lease.

b. To approve the designation of Residential Lease

No. 23897 demising the newly created lot.

c. To approve the transfer of the newly created
lot, under Lease No. 2397-A to co-lessee John
M. Tuakalau, to build a home for his family.

ITEM NO. D-16




Osaiasi A. L. Tuakalau, Sesilili X. Tuakalau,
and Carrilyn K. Maime will remain as joint
tenants to the existing Lease and Lot. Upon
completion of the transfer of the new lot, John
will have one (1) year from the date of
execution of the Lease to build and occupy the
homestead.

d. The above are subject to the completion of the
survey work done by a licensed surveyor,
including but not limited to the surveying and
staking of boundary corners of the lots,
submitting the required number of final
subdivision maps to the County, preparing and
submitting the legal description of the lots to
the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands
(Department), applying to the County for
subdivision approval, obtaining the tax map
keys for the Lots, and final subdivision
approval by the County of Hawaii and
recordation of the subdivision with the State
of Hawaii Bureau of Conveyances.

e. Lessees and transferee shall be subject to
Hawaii Administrative Rule §10-3-38 Subdivision
and transfer of a portion of residential lot
lease. "“The Department shall not be required to
finance the construction of the house on the
transferred portion. The Department shall not
be required to pay for any costs incurred in
the processing and obtaining of the
subdivision.”

DISCUSSION

On March 19, 2008, but effective from August 22, 2001, by
way of Transfer Through Successorship and Amendment to Lease No.
2397, Keaukaha, Hawaii (Lease), was succeeded by Osaiasi A. L.
Tuakalau (Osaiasi), Sesilili K. Tuakalau (Sesilili), Carrilyn K.
Maima (Carrilyn), and John M. Tuakalau (John) .

Osaiasi, Sesilili, Carrxilyn, and John are regquesting the
approval to subdivide their 1lot into two (2) 1lots and to
transfer the newly created lot to John.

2 ITEM NO. D-16



Once the lot is subdivided, Osaiasi, Sesilili, and Carrilym
will remain on the existing Lease and lot, and John will receive
the newly created lot.

Attached is “Exhibit A" which illustrates the proposed plan
to subdivide the lot into two (2) lots. The existing home is
located on the front portion of Lot No. 43A, which is to be
retained by Osaiasi, Sesilili, and Carrilyn.

There 1s no outstanding loan attached to the lease. The
lease rent to the Department and real property tax is paid
current. ' s '

The Department recommends the approval of its
recommendation.

3 ITEM NO. D-16




e AN AN Aol E AVE

|

1 ~

° Dediasi A. [usKolaw
®© Secilil K. (usKolau
e CG(/V”)(V\ K. TuaRolog

Y
¥ —

v (-‘Oh"\ . TuaKa oy

ITEM NO. D-16
EXHIBIT &




STATE OF HAWATII
DEPARTMENT OF HAWATTIAN HOME LANDS

May 20, 2019

TO: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homeg Commission

THROUGH: Dean Oshiro, Acting Administrator
Homestead Services Division

FROM: Olinda L. Fisher, East Hawail District ©Qffice
Supervisor

SUBJECT: Cancellation of Tenant-In-Common Leasehold Interest -
NEWTON K. LESLIE, Residential Lease No. 2943, Lot No.
206-A, Keaukaha, Hawaiil

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

1. To approve the cancellation of the late Newton K. Leslie’s
{(Decedent) tenant-in-common leasehold interest in Residential
Lease No. 2943, Lot No. 206-A, Keaukaha, Hawaii; and

2. To approve to dispense with the awarding of Decedent’s
tenant-in-common leasehold interest in the lease:; and

3. To approve Yvonne L. Leslie (Yvonne), the surviving tenant-
in-common lessee, as the tenant by severalty in Residential
Lease No. 2943, Lot No. 206-A, Keaukaha, Hawaii, for the
remaining term of the lease.

DISCUSSION

On July 07, 2003, Newton K. Leslie (Decedent), by way of
Transfer Through Successorship and Amendment to Lease, received
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands Residential Lot Lease No. 2943,
Lot No. 206-A, Keaukaha, Hawaii (Lease), as a tenant-in-common
interest lessee with Yvonne L. Leslie.

On June 27, 2011, the Decedent passed away without naming
a successor to the Lease.

In compliance with the Administrative Rules 10-3-63, the

Department published legal ads in the Honolulu Star Advertiser,
The Hawaii Tribune Herald, The West Hawaii Today, The Maui News,

ITEM NO. D-17




and The Garden Island newspapers on June 3, 13, 17, and 27, 2018,
to notify all interested, eligible and qualified heirs of the
Decedent, to submit their Lease successorship claims.

The Department did not receive any successorship claims
for the tenant-in-common interest to the Lease.

Section 209(a) of the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act
(Act) states "In the case of the death of a lessee leaving no
designated successor - or successors, husband, wife, children,
grandchildren, or relative qualified to be a lessee of Hawaiian
Home Lands, the land subject to the lease shall resume its status
2s unleased Hawaiian Home Lands and the Department is authorized
to lease the land to a Native Hawaiian as provided in this Act.”

Also, Section 209(d) of the Act states that “After the
cancellation of a lease by the Department in accordance with
sections 210 and 216 of this title, or the surrender of a lease by
a lessee, the Department may transfer the lease or issue a new
lease to any qualified Native Hawaiian regardless of whether that
person is related in any way by blood or marriage to the previous
lessee.

Although there were no qualified claimants to designate
as successor to the Decedent’s tenant-in-common leasehold
interest, it would be unreasonable for the lease to “resume its
status as unleased.” Furthermore, it would be unreasonable to offer
Newton'’s tenant-in-common interest to another Native Hawaiian from
the application waitlist. It would be inappropriate that an
unrelated beneficiary be awarded a one-half interest in the lease
and be expected to reside in the home with the co-lessee.

Yvonne continues to hold a tenant-in-common interest in
the lease. As no successorship claim to the Decedent's interest
was received by the Department, it is recommended that Yvonne hold
the lease as the tenant by severalty as any other recommendation
could negatively impact Yvonne’'s right to use and enjoy the
premises demised under the Lease. '

There is no outstanding loan. The Lease rent is
delinquent in the amount of $10.00 and Real Property Tax is
approximately delinquent in the amount of $851.

The Department requests approval of its recommendation.

-2- ITEM NO. D-17




STATE OF HAWAIT
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAITAN HOME LANDS

May 20, 2019

TO: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission

FROM: Dean Oshiro, Acting HSD Administrator
Homestead Services Division

THRU : Olinda L. Fisher, East Hawail District Office
Supervisor

SUBJECT: Cancellation of Lease - KELBY K., PUNG
Agricultural Lease No. 7016, Lot No. 74, Makuu, Hawaii

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

To approve the cancellation of Lease No. 7016, Lot No.
74, Makuu, Hawaii, pursuant to the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act
of 1920, as amended, as there is no qualified successor to the
Lease interest.

DISCUSSION

On October 1, 1986, Kelby K. Pung (Decedent), was
awarded Department of Hawaiian Home Lands Agricultural Lot Lease
No. 7016, Lot No. 74, Makuu, Hawaili (Lease).

On October 18, 1986, the Decedent did not name a
successor, but designated his wife Donna M. Pung as the receilver
of net proceeds to the Lease.

On July 17, 2018, a death certificate was received by
the Department that the Decedent had passed away on October 22,
2013,

In compliance with the Hawaii Administrative Rule 10-
3-63, the Department published legal ads in the Honolulu Star
Advertiser, The Garden Isle, the Hawaii Tribune Herald, the West
Hawali Today, and The Maui News on December 2, 12, 16, and 26,
2018, to notify all interested, eligible and qualified heirs of
the Decedent, to submit their lease successorship claims.

ITEM NO. D-18




On April 2, 2019, the period to claim closed. There
were no claims received by the Department to succeed to the
Lease.

Pursuant to Section 209 of the Hawallian Homes
Commission Act of 1920, as amended (Act), “the land subject to
the lease shall resume 1its status as unleased Hawaiian home
lands and the Department 1s authorized to 1lease to another
qualified native Hawaiian as provided in the Act.”

There 1is presently a 1 bedroom, 1 bath structure on
the lot, which was built in 2007. An appraisal is pending to

determine the wvaluation of the structure.

There are no outstanding debts attached to the Lease.
The Lease rent and real property tax are current.

The Department request the approval of its
recommendation.

-2- ITEM NO. D-18




STATE OF HAWAIT
DEPARTMENT OF HAWATTAN HOME LANDS

May 20, 2019

TO: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Hom Commission

THROUGH: Dean Oshiro, Acting Administrator
Homestead Services Division

FROM: Olinda ZI. Fisher, Fast Hawall District O0Office
Supervisor

SUBJECT: Request to Schedule Contested Case Hearing -
DENISE ROSEHILL-MAHI, Residential Lease No. 01891,

Lot No. 63, Walakea, Hawaii

RECOMMENDED MQTION/ACTION

To deny the reguest by Ms. Paula Anuhea Victorino (Paula)
to schedule a Contested Case Hearing regarding Lease No. 01891,
Lot No. 63, Walakea, Hawaii.

DISCUSSION

This issue was previously addressed by the Hawaiian Homes
Commission (“HHC”) originally in November of 2013 and acted
upon in May of 2014. It was also recently deferred by HHC on
April 15, 2019. :

The minutes of the HHC meetings dated November 18 and 19,
2013 (Exhibit A) reflect that the action item was presented to
HHC, however action was deferred December 2013. It was not
until May 19, 2014 that a submittal for action was once again
submitted to the HHC (see Exhibit B). The action item was denied
by the HEC., (see Exhibit C).

Paula has once again submitted a request to schedule a
Contested Case Hearing.

The Department is again recommending denial of the request
as the rightful lessee, Denise Rosehill-Mahi, on September 25,
2012 requested that she surrender her lease back to the
Department. The HHC ratified her request on June 16, 2014.

ITEM NO. D-19




Hawaiian Homes COm:.aB:.on :v!:.nutas — November 18 and 19, 2013 -12-
Hilo, Hawail .

ITEMNO: D-11
SUBJECT: _Approval of Assipnment of Leasehold Interest (see exhibit)

MOTION/ACTION

Moved by Commissioner Hopkins, and seconded by Commissioner Kahikina. Motion carried
unanimously.

ITEM NO: D-12 _
SUBJECT: _Approval of Amendment of Leasehold Interest (see exhibit)

MOTION/ACTION

Moved By Commissioner Kahikina, and seconded by Commissioner Hopkins, Motion carried
unanimously,

ITEMNO: D-13
SUBJECT: Commission Designation of Successor — Amy K. Waipa, Lease No. 3978,

Waimanalo, Oahu

MOTION/ACTION

Moved by Commissioner Hopkins, and seconded by Commissioner Kahikina. Motion carried
unanimously.

ITEM NO: _ D-14

SUBJECT: Reguest to Approve Thlrd Party Agreement — Benjamin K. Lindsey, Lease
No. 4762, Puukapu, Hawaii

MOTION/ACTION

Moved by Commissioner Hopkins, and seconded by Comrmssmner Kahikina, Motion carned
unanimously.

ITEM NO: D-15
SUBJECT: _Regquest to Schedule Contested Case Hearing — Denise Rosehill-Mahi. Lease
No. 1891, Waiakea, Hawaii .

RECOMMENDA TION

, ITEM NO.D-19
EXHIBIT &




Hawalian Homes Commission Minutes - November 1B and 19, 2013 “l3-
Hilo, Hawaii

Acting Administrator Dean Oshiro, Homestead Services Division, recommended denying a
request for a contested case hearing by Robin Anuhea Victorino for the above-stated lease.

MOTION

Moved by Commissioner Hopkins, and seconded by Commissioner Kahikina.

DISCUSSION

East Hawaii Acting District Manager Louis Hao provided information on the events leading up
to today’s submittal. He conveyed that Robin (Anuhea) Victorino does not qualify as a 50%
blood quantum, native Hawaiian. However, he spoke with Robin’s mother, Anuhea Nahalea,
explaining that the only way Robin would receive the lease would be for her (Nahalea) to
surrender her lease, obtain the lease from Denise Mahi, then transfer to daughter Robin
Victorino, who would then qualify as a 25% qualified successor. Since Anuhea Nahalea was not
assured that her lease in Keaukaba would be returned to her, she decided against it. According to
L. Hao, this is a long-standing issue which has not been rectified since 1984. At one point,
Denise Mahi considered transferring the lease to Anuhea Victorino, however, it was never filed
in court, Today, Denise Mahi is seeking to return the lease to the department with an
opportunity to be compensated from the sale of the home,

Commissioner Hopkins noted that the decedent Damien Kuamoo filled out a request to transfer
the lease to his sister Miriam, although it was never finalized. Robin Victorino maintained that
there was a sale; however, the department cannot validate it. These types of money exchanges
do not fall under the purview of the commission and should be designated a civil matter. He
agreed with the department to deny the request. Commissioner Kahikina said he sees the
inconsistencies as it relates to another similar situation on Qah.

MOTIGN/ACTION

Moved by Commissioner Hopkins, seconded by Commissioner Kahikina, to adjourn to executive
session to consult further with counse} on this matter. Motion carried unanimoysly.

ACTION

Motion carried unanimously.

RECEéS 1:23 p.m,

EXECUTIVE SESSION

The Commission convéned in executive meeting pursuant to Section 92-5 (a)(4) HRS, to consult

with its legal counsel on questions and issues pertaining to the commission's powers, duties,
privileges, immunities, and liabilities on the above-mentioned item.

2 ITEM NO. Dal9
EXOIBIT A




_ Hawallan Homes Commission Minutes - November 18 a.nd. 19, 2013 -14-
Hile, Hawalil

RECONVENE 1:51 pm,
AMENDED MOTION/ACTION
Moved by Commissioner Hopkins, seconded by Comumissioner Kahikina, to continue the regular

meeting and to defer Item No. D-15 until December 2013. Motion carried unanimously.

F - LAND MANAGEMENT DIVISION

ITEMNO: F-1
SUBJECT: __Approval to Issue Iicense to Panaewa Hawaiian Home Lands Community

Association, Panaewa, Hawaii

RECOMMENDATION

Income Property Branch Manager Kahana Albinio recommended approval to issuance of a
30-year license to Panaewa Hawaiian Home Lands Community Association (PHHLCA), in
Panaewa, Hawaii. K. Albinio noted that License No, 365 was cancelled in September due to it
being a co-licensee where one of the parties, Hoala, Inc., fell to the wayside and was no longer in
operation. In establishing the Kamoleau Laulima Resource Community Center (Kamoleau)
project, PHHLCA expressed a desire to re-acquire the license. The NAHASDA (Native
American Housing Assistance and Self-Determination Act) team was able to assist in acquiring
funds- for this resource center and Kamoleau expressed a desire to continue the project and its
partnership with the University of Hawaii Hilo. '

MQTION

Moved by Commissioner Ishibashi and seconded by Commissioner Kahikina,

DISCUSSION

PHHLCA. President, Bill Brown, expressed his thoughts and he is hopeful that this will prove to
be a good relationship between PHHLCA. and the department. He is pleased that the project will
continue on the same, designated 12-acre parcel.

ACTION

Motion carried unanimously.

ITEM NO: F-2 . _
SUBJECT: Status Update — Anahola Solar Project, Anahola, Kauai

MOTION/ACTION

3 ITEM NO. D-19
EXHIBIT A




STATE OF HAWAI'T
{

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAITAN HOME LANDS
May 19, 2014
TO: Chairman and Members, Hawailian Homes Commission

THROUGH: Dean T. Oshiro, Acting HSD Administrator
Homestead Services Division

FROM: Louis Hao, Acting District Officer Supervisor
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands

SUBJECT: Request to Schedule Contested Case Hearing -
DENISE ROSEHILL-MAHI, Department of Hawaiian Home
Lands Residential Lot Lease No. 1891, Waiakea, Hawaii

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION

Deny petitioner Robin Victorino’s {(Robin) reruest for a hearing
to contest the successorship to State of Hawaii, Department of
Hawailan Home Lands Residential Lot L.ease No. 1891 (Lease).

DISCUSSION

Brief Background:

Decedent Damien Kuamoc (Damien) acquired the leasehold interest
under the Lease in July 1983.

Damien submitted a request to transfer his leasehold interest to
his sister, and Robin‘s mother, Miriam Kuamoo (Miriam), in
July 1984. There is no indication on the transfer request form
that the transfer involved a sale. Department of Hawaiian Home
Lands (DHHL) staff prepared the leasehold transfer document, but
received no response from Damien to DHHL staff’s May 1988 and
February 1989 written requests to execute the transfer document.
Damien passed away in August 1993 without signing the transfer
document.

Damien’s leasehold interest was transferred to Elizabeth Kuamoo
{Elizabeth), his surviving spouse, pursuant to his October 1982
designation of successor. Elizabeth transferred her leasehold
interest to her sister, and current lessee, Denise Rosehill-Mahi
{Denise}, in April 2000.

—

ITEM NO. D-14
, ITEM NO. D-19_
EXEIBIT B




The DHHL held contested case hearing proceedings against Denise
in September 2007 because she was not occupying the homestead.
Denise admitted she was not occupying the homestead and agreed
to initiate court proceedings to remove the occupants from the
home.

Robin’s sister submitted an affidavit to the DHHL in 1998 and a
request to address the HHC regarding the alleged purchase in
2008. The DHHL responded that the family must request a
contested case hearing. There is no record of a request for
contested case hearing in response to this correspondence.

Denise filed an ejectment complaint with the circuit court in
April 2008. The DHHL was not a party to the action. Denise,
Robin and the DHHL signed a medlation agreement in December 2009
in which Robin would pay Denise $39,000 in monthly installments

and execute a mortgage and note. In return, Denise would add
Robin as a cotenant to the Lease,. It deoes not appear that the
agreement was filed with the court. The court action was
dismissed in July 2013. As of the date of this submittal,

Denise is the sole lessee under the Lease.

The Chairman, HHC, approved Denise’s Notice of Surrender of
Lease in September 2012, but the approval has not vet been
ratified by the HHC. Denise cited her inability to. occupy the
homestead as the reason she was surrendering the Lease. The
DHHL staff has not been able to move forward with the surrender
as the home is currently occupied. To the best of the DHHL’s
information and belief, Robin is occupying the homestead.

Robin believes that the leasehold interest should have been
transferred to Miriam in 1984. A copy of the reguest for a
hearing is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Department’s Investigation and Findings:

A copy of the Department’s report of investigation is attached
hereto as Exhibit B.

Relevant Administrative Rules

Section 10-2-16(c) {(3), Hawail Administrative Rules (HAR),
states, in pertinent part:

Subject to the provisions of section 10-2-17, the
chairman may...(3) Accept surrenders of homestead
leases; and :

2 ITEM NO. D-14
2 . ITEM NO, D=19
EXHIBIT B




Section 10-2-17, HAR, states:

The chairman éhall report to the commission for
ratification of any actions taken as permitted under
section 10-2-16{c). }

Section 10-5-31, HAR, states, in pertinent part:

(a) Any person...may reguest a contested case hearing
and shall have the right and full opportunity to
assert a claim provided that the claim is based on a
law or rule over which the commission has

jurisdiction...(d) It is the policy of the commission
not to initiate ©proceedings where the matters
complained of involve a private controversy

redressable in the courts and where the public
interest is not involved, or where i1t is clear on the
face of the complaint that there has been no violation
of the law or any rule of the commission. {ellipses
added)

Section 10-5-32(a), EAR, states:

{a) The commission shall hold a contested case hearing
whenever it finds that: (1) Such a hearing is required
by Chapter 91, HRS; (2) There is a reason to believe
that a law or rule of the commission- has been
violated; (3) Such a hearing would be in the best
interest of one or more of the beneficiaries of the
act; and (4) A proceeding by the commission would be
in the 'intérest of the department. (emphasis added)

This item was originally submitted the Hawaiian Homes Commission
at its’' November 2013 meeting but was deferred for further
documentation. At issue qu whether Damien and Elizabeth were
legally married at the time of Damien’s death in August of 1983.
The Department obtained a copy of Damien and Elizabeth’s
marriage certificate reflecting a date of marriage as May 9,
1988. '

3 ITEM NO. D-14

3 _ ITEM NO. D-jg
EXHIBIT B




Department’s Recommendation:

The Department once again respectfully recommends that this
request be denied for a hearing because:

1.

The allegations  involve a private . controversy
redressable in the courts;

There has been no violation of a law or rule of the
commission; and

It has been verified that Elizabeth Kuamoo was indeed
wedded to Damien Kuamoo at the time of his death. As
such, she was legally qualified to succeed to his

" lease as his spouse.

4 ITEM NO. D-14

4 | ITEM NO. D= 19
EXHIBIT B




ITEM D-14  Request to Scliedule Contested Case Hearing — Denise Rosehill-Mahi, Lease No,
1891, Waiakea, Hawai‘i

RECOMMENDED MQTION/ACTION

Actinig HSD Administrator Dean Oshiro recommended the following:

Motion to deny petitioner Robin Victorino's (Robin) request for a heafing to contest the
successorship to State of Hawaii, Department of Hawaiian Home Lands Residential Lot Lease .
No. 1891 (Lease).

MOTION
Moved by Commissioner Hopkins, séconded by Commissioner Canto, ‘

The Department once again respectfully recommends that this request be denied for a hearing
because; , ' .

1. The allegations involve a private controversy redressable in the courts;

2. There has been ng violation of a law or rule of the Commission; and

3. It has been verified that Elizabeth Kuamoo was indeed wedded to Damien Kuamoo at'the time
of his.death. As such, she was legally qualified to succeed to his lease as his spouse.

MOTION/ACTION _
Moved by Commissioner Hopkins, seconded by Commissioner Davis, to convene in executive
session pursuant to HRS 92-5 (a) (4). Motion carried unanimously.

EXECUTIVE SESSION IN 1:25 p.m,

EXECUTIVE SESSION OUT , 1:45 p.m.

After consulting with counsel, the Chairman called for a vote to deny petitioner Robin
Victoring™s request for a hearing to contest the Successorship to Residential Lot Lease No. 1891.

ACTION | ' : :
Motion carried unanimously to deny petitioner Robin Victorino a request for a hearing on
Residential Lot Lease No. 1891. '

Hawaijan Homes Commission Minutes - May 19 & 20, 2014, Kamuela, Hawaii Page 0 of 22
ITEM NO., D-19
EXHIBIT C




E ITEMS















F ITEMS






















































































































































































































































G ITEMS





















































































































































































































































































































































































































] ITEMS
















































	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



